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GROUP STRUCTURE
REZRE

New Century Group Hong Kong Limited
MtLEKEEEERBRAT

Hong Kong Listed Company
with focus on

Tourism-Related Businesses, Property Investments and Securities Trading

EENREEBRE  YWERREREZEEZ2ERLT AT

Tourism-Related Property Securities
Businesses Investments Trading
il E i MERE HEHEE

Cruise Ship
Charter Services

50 70 5 PR IS BEAEE

Hotel Operations
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KEY FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
ERMBRE

2010 2009 2008 2007 2006
“E-BF C“TTNFE —TE\E —BT+FE C—ZTXFE

Revenue (HK$ million) WA (BEAT) 3294 219.1 3035 2473 252.5
Profit/(Loss) attributable to AYNGIE 2PN
owners of the Company FiEET/ (B8)
(HK$ million) (ABAT) 191.6 (69.7) 1762 124.8 202.3
Equity attributable to ARAHEEA
owners of the Company FE(E S
(HK$ million) (B&8#T) 1,153.2 982.6 1,072.8 7412 609.7
Earnings/(Loss) per share gREF/ (B8)
(HK cents) (&1L) 332 (1.21) 3.15¢ 2.55% 5.02°
*  As adjusted for the effect of share subdivision from which, *  BEMBEORAEZEZ2E0RAE  REAR
pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed at the special NAIR_ZEZELF LA+ B EITZ
general meeting of the Company held on 12 July 2007, BREFANMAEG LBBEBRAER B
each of the then existing issued and unissued share of —EFELEFEAT=ZHE  ARARAK
HK$0.01 each in the share capital of the Company has been FERSRAEBNOIBILZRAEBEHT
subdivided into four shares of HK$0.0025 each with effect RARZETKRG  EHFAROKREREE
from 13 July 2007. 0.0025/ 7T Z Bz 17
*  As adjusted for the effect of bonus issue on the basis of one  * B BMETAKR I ZEELHAE  RBEL
new share for every twenty shares held on 2 September ARABRZZFEZENFNLAZHBRITZR
2008, which was passed as an ordinary resolution at REAFRG BBz ERAZR AH
the annual general meeting of the Company held on 2 HEELSGR _ZENFALAZ_BEHSE
September 2008. TR FT B IT — AR FTAR (D ©
HKS million Revenue Hke milion  EQUIty attributable to owners of the Company
BEBT A EEAT RAREE ANEIERER
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
EFHRES

Dear Valued Shareholders,

I am pleased to present the annual report of New Century
Group Hong Kong Limited (“New Century” or the “Group”)
for the financial year ended 31 March 2010.

OVERVIEW

2009 was a turbulent year for the global economy during
which both challenges and opportunities existed. If there
is one thing that this year reminded us of, it is how quickly
the business environment could change and how important
it is to be proactive and diligent in the management of a

business enterprise such as ours.

Although major economies around the world have
recovered gradually during the year, the deterrent impact of
the HIN1 pandemics remained, which weakened tourists
to travel and adversely affected the travel industry. The
opening of Casino Hotel in Singapore in early 2010 also
lured away a number of our cruise ship guests, which
further affected the performance of the Group's tourism-
related business. Nevertheless, the Group successfully
leveraged on a prudent cash management strategy to
pace its growth. Our annual results turned from a loss
to significant profit growth compared with last year. The
turnaround was mainly attributed to the fair value gains
on securities trading and investment properties. Given the
unfavorable overall economic environment and intense
competition in tourism-related business in the Asia Pacific
region, the Group has also streamlined its daily operations,
which successfully lowered the Group's administrative

expenses.
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DIVIDEND

The Board recommends the payment of a final dividend
of HKO.4 cent per share, which is subject to the approval
of the Company's shareholders at the forthcoming annual
general meeting. This, together with the interim dividend
of HKO.2 cent per share, means total dividend for the year
stands at HKO.6 cent per share (2009: HKO0.35 cent per
share).

OUTLOOK

Due to an uneven global economic recovery and intense
competition in the tourism sector in Singapore, New
Century is cautiously optimistic towards the coming year.

The coming year will continue to be challenging and our
management team will not waver from its focus on liquidity,
cost control and revenue maximization to help us get
through these unprecedented economic times. | am excited
with the business platform we have created — a well-
established and diversified business model with talented
management and a strong cash position. | am confident it
will allow us to thrive in the long term. The Group will focus
on maintaining a strong and healthy financial position and
conserve sufficient cash to seek investment opportunities
of high quality. We will be aggressive in positioning our
company not only to respond to short-term challenges,
but also generate outstanding returns in an ever-changing
business environment.

APPRECIATION

Lastly, | would like to express my deepest thanks to our
talented and hardworking employees for their contributions
to our company. Their dedications make all the difference
in driving our success. We will continue to work hard to
justify and reward your faith in us.

Wilson Ng
Chairman

Hong Kong, 16 July 2010
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEEctm AT

RESULTS
For the year ended 31 March 2010, the Group achieved a

consolidated profit attributable to owners of the Company
of HK$191.6 million, compared with a consolidated loss
of HK$69.7 million in 2009. Basic earnings per share
was HK3.32 cents (2009: basic loss per share of HK1.21
cents). Revenue for the Group was HK$329.4 million
(2009: HK$219.1 million).

Net asset value rose to HK$1,143.2 million compared with

HK$984.8 million in the last corresponding year.

DIVIDEND

The Board recommends the payment of a final dividend of
HKO.4 cent per share, payable to owners of the Company
whose names appear on the register of members of the
Company on 1 September 2010. Subject to the approval
of the Company's shareholders at the forthcoming annual
general meeting to be held on 1 September 2010, the final
dividend will be paid on 15 September 2010.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The register of members of the Company will be closed
from Friday, 27 August 2010 to Wednesday, 1 September
2010, both days inclusive, during which period no transfer
of the Company's shares will be registered. In order to
qualify for the proposed final dividend, all share certificates
with duly completed transfer forms must be lodged with
the Company’s branch share registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor
Tengis Limited at 26th Floor, Tesbury Centre, 28 Queen's
Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong not later than 4:30 p.m.
on Thursday, 26 August 2010.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

OPERATIONS
Cruise Ship Charter Services

During the year, as the tourism business was affected by
the deterrent impact of the HIN1 pandemics and coupled
with strong competition from Casino Hotel in Singapore
which opened in January 2010, the cruise ship charter
services of “Leisure World” and “Amusement World” (the

“Cruise Ships") were adversely affected.

In view of the lower fixed daily charge rates in new
charter agreements that were signed in late 2008 and
the reduction of the floating charge from 45% to 20%
on net win of slot machines onboard the Cruise Ships
with effect from January 2010, revenue from cruise ship
charter services dropped by 36.4% to HK$141.2 million
from HK$221.8 million last year. That resulted in a drop in
segment profit to HK$30.4 million from HK$101.4 million
last year. The increase in advertising and promotion costs
to boost the cruise traveler was also one of the reasons
for the drop in segment profit. However, with the aforesaid
reduction of the floating charges, the Group will no longer
be responsible for the advertising and promotion costs

from January 2010.

Hotel Operations

In light of the impact of HIN1 flu as well as the opening of
Casino Hotel in Singapore in early 2010, hotel occupancy
rates have been unfavorably affected. Revenue stood at
HK$23.2 million (2009: HK$28.1 million). For the year
under review, the business has recorded an exchange gain
of HK$3.2 million from the appreciation of the Singapore
dollar to the Hong Kong dollar (2009: losses of HK$5.4
million) and a decrease in impairment of hotel premises
by HK$3.7 million (2010: HK$2.1 million; 2009: HK$5.8
million). Nevertheless, the segment still recorded a loss of
HK$5.0 million (2009: HK$6.0 million).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEEctm AT

OPERATIONS (continued)
Property Investment

For the year under review, global economies started to
emerge from the economic downturn. Property prices
in Hong Kong soared in late 2009, driven by large fund
inflows, low interest rates, and strong interest from buyers
in Mainland China. In Singapore, the property market also
enjoyed a rebound from the plunge in values towards the
end of 2008. The Group's property investments recorded
a steady 16.5% increase in revenue to HK$34.8 million
for the year under review, compared with HK$29.9 million
last year. Furthermore, a gradual recovery of the property
market led to fair value gains on investment properties
of HK$104.7 million (2009: losses of HK$102.0 million).
Thus, the segment recorded a profit of HK$133.4 million
compared with a loss of HK$93.9 million last year. Together
with about a 100% occupancy rate and average annual
rental yield of 4.79% (2009: 4.8%), rental income derived
from all investment properties in Hong Kong and Singapore

generated stable returns for the Group.

Securities Trading

Securities trading was the major source of the Group's
revenue and profit for the year under review. The
investment portfolio of the Group consists mainly of blue
chips that are capable of generating strong profits in Hong
Kong and Singapore. The equities markets in both cities
have regained their growth momentum since April 2009.
The Hang Seng Index in Hong Kong stood at 13,576 as
of 31 March 2009 and rose by 56% to 21,239 on 31
March 2010. The Straits Times Index in Singapore stood
at 1,700 as of 31 March 2009 and rose by 70% to 2,887
on 31 March 2010. The recovery of the securities markets
resulted in a significant gain of HK$130.0 million (2009:
loss of HK$60.8 million) for this segment.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As of 31 March 2010, the Company had outstanding
guarantees of HK$210.3 million (2009: HK$210.3 million)
given to banks to secure general credit facilities for
certain subsidiaries of the Company. Credit facilities in an
aggregate amount of HK$90.5 million (2009: HK$79.6
million) had been utilized by the subsidiaries in respect of

such guarantees as at the end of the reporting period.

CHARGE ON THE GROUP’S ASSETS
As of 31 March 2010, some of the Group's prepaid land

premiums, leasehold office premises and investment
properties with an aggregate value of HK$704.6 million
and equity investments with a carrying value of HK$422.2
million were pledged to banks, a fellow subsidiary and
securities dealers for loan facilities worth HK$380.2 million
granted to the Group. As of 31 March 2010, HK$167.8

million of the loan facilities had been utilized by the Group.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

As of 31 March 2010, the Group had net current assets of
HK$602.4 million and equity attributable to owners of the
Company of HK$1,153.2 million.

The Group's total indebtedness (representing the aggregate
amount of interest-bearing loans from banks, a fellow
subsidiary and securities dealers) was HK$167.8 million. All
loans were denominated in Hong Kong dollars or Singapore
dollars and charged at floating interest rates. It was secured
by mortgages over some of the Group’s properties that
have an aggregate net book value of HK$704.6 million
and equity investments with a carrying value of HK$422.2

million.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEEctm AT

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES (continued)

Regarding total indebtedness, HK$53.3 million will be
repayable within one year, HK$65.3 million will be
repayable from the second to fifth years and the remaining
balance of HK$49.2 million will be repayable after five
years. The Group's gearing ratio (total indebtedness divided
by equity attributable to owners of the Company) as at the
end of the reporting period was reduced to 0.15 compared
with 0.16 as of 31 March 2009.

EXPOSURE ON EQUITY PRICE RISK, FOREIGN
EXCHANGE RISK AND INTEREST RATE RISK

The Group is exposed to equity price risk arising from
individual equity investments classified as trading equity
investments. The Group's listed investments are listed on
the stock exchange of Hong Kong and Singapore and are
valued at quoted market prices at the end of the reporting
period.

The Group's cash and cash equivalents are mainly held
predominately in Hong Kong dollar or Singapore dollar. The
Group's borrowings are denominated in Hong Kong dollar
or Singapore dollar at floating interest rates. The Group's
exposure to the risk of changes in interest rates relates
primarily to the Group’s long-term debt obligations with a
floating interest rate. In the opinion of the directors, the
Group has no significant interest rate risk. As the impact
from foreign exchange exposure is minimal, no hedging

against foreign currency exposure is necessary.

HUMAN RESOURCES
As of 31 March 2010, the Group had a total of 261 staff.

233 of them were based in Indonesia, 4 in Singapore and
24 in Hong Kong. Remuneration packages for employees
and directors are structured according to market terms
and individual performance and experience. Benefits plans
maintained by the Group include mandatory provident
fund scheme, medical insurance, share option scheme and
discretionary bonuses. As of 31 March 2010, the Group
had 135.7 million outstanding share options granted to

eligible executives and employees of the Group.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

On 27 April 2010, the Group entered into a provisional sale
and purchase agreement with an independent third party
for the disposal of an investment property with tenancy at
Shop Nos. 1A, 1B, 1C, 1F, 1G and 1H of Retail Portions on
the Ground Floor of Commercial Podium, New Mandarin
Plaza, No. 14 Science Museum Road, Tsim Sha Tsui East,
Kowloon, Hong Kong at the consideration of HK$115.0
million. The disposal is expected to be completed on or
before 30 August 2010. For details, please refer to the
Company's announcement dated 27 April 2010.

On 15 June 2010, the Group entered into an option
agreement with an independent third party pursuant
to which the independent third party was granted an
option to purchase an investment property with tenancy
at AIG Building, 22 Martin Road, Singapore 239058
at the consideration of SG$46.5 million (equivalent
to approximately HK$259.5 million). The option was
exercised by the nominee of the purchaser on 29 June
2010. It is expected the disposal will be completed within
ten weeks from the date of exercise of the option. The
disposal constitutes a major transaction of the Company
under Chapter 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange and is therefore subject
to the shareholders’ approval in the coming special general
meeting of the Company on 26 July 2010. Please refer to
the Company's circular dated 8 July 2010 for details.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EEEGRE

The board of directors of the Company (the “Board”) is
committed to maintaining high standards of corporate
governance practices at all times. The Board believes
that good corporate governance helps the Company to
safeguard the interests of its shareholders and to enhance

the performance of the Group.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company has adopted the principles and complied
with all the applicable provisions of the Code on Corporate
Governance Practices (the “Code”) as set out in Appendix
14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”)
for the year ended 31 March 2010, except for certain
deviations as specified with considered reasons for such

deviations as explained below.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS
The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities

Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model
Code") as set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules as its
own code of conduct regarding securities transactions by
the directors of the Company. Having made specific enquiry
of all directors of the Company, all of them confirmed that
they have complied with the required standard set out in

the Model Code during the year.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board is responsible for leadership and control of the
Company. The Board reviews and approves the objectives,
strategies, direction and policies of the Group, the annual
budget, annual and interim results, the management
structure of the Company as well as other significant
policy and financial matters. The Board has delegated the
responsibility of the day-to-day operations of the Group to

the management of the Company.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

The Board currently comprises ten directors (the
"Directors”), seven of them are Executive Directors, namely
Mr. Wilson Ng (Chairman), Ms. Sio lon Kuan (Deputy
Chairman), Mr. Ng Wee Keat (Chief Executive Officer),
Ms. Ng Siew Lang, Linda (Chief Operating Officer), Ms.
Lilian Ng, Ms. Chen Ka Chee and Mr. Yu Wai Man; and
three of them are Independent Non-executive Directors,
namely Mr. Wong Kwok Tai, Mr. Kwan Kai Kin, Kenneth and
Mr. Ho Yau Ming. The Company has received from each
of the Independent Non-executive Directors an annual
confirmation of his independence pursuant to rule 3.13
of the Listing Rules. The Company considers all of the
Independent Non-executive Directors to be independent in
accordance with the independence guidelines set out in the
Listing Rules. Biographical details of the Directors (including
the relationships among members of the Board) are set out
under the section headed “Directors’ Biographies” on pages

27 to 35 of this annual report.

During the year, four regular board meetings were held and

the attendance of each Director is set out as follows:

Number of
Executive Directors attendance
Mr. Wilson Ng (Chairman) 2/4
Ms. Sio lon Kuan (Deputy Chairman) 3/4
Mr. Ng Wee Keat (Chief Executive Officer) 3/4
Ms. Ng Siew Lang, Linda
(Chief Operating Officer) 3/4
Ms. Lilian Ng 2/4
Ms. Chen Ka Chee 3/4
Mr. Yu Wai Man 4/4
Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Wong Kwok Tai 4/4
Mr. Kwan Kai Kin, Kenneth 4/4
Mr. Ho Yau Ming 4/4
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EEEGRE

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

Code provision E.1.2 stipulates that the chairman of
the Board should attend the annual general meeting of
the Company and arrange for the chairmen of the audit
and remuneration committees or in the absence of the
chairman of such committees, another member of the
committee or failing this his duly appointed delegate, to
be available to answer questions at the annual general

meeting.

Owing to another business engagement, Mr. Wilson
Ng, the chairman of the Board, was unable to attend
the annual general meeting of the Company held on 4
September 2009. In his absence, Mr. Ng Wee Keat, the
chief executive officer of the Company (who is also the
chairman of the remuneration committee) attended and
took the chair of the said annual general meeting and
ensured that proceedings of the meeting were conducted
in order, whereas the chairman of the audit committee
was also present at the meeting. The Company considers
that the members of the Board, the audit committee
and the remuneration committee who attended the said
annual general meeting were already of sufficient calibre
and numbers to address shareholders’ questions at the

meeting.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

The positions of the Chairman and the Chief Executive
Officer are distinct and separate. The former is mainly
responsible for the leadership of the Board while the latter

is responsible for the overall performance of the Company.
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
(continued)

The Board is headed by the Chairman, Mr. Wilson Ng
and the Deputy Chairman, Ms. Sio lon Kuan. They are
responsible for overseeing the Company's strategic
development and setting appropriate policies to manage
risks in pursuit of the Company strategic objectives. The
Chief Executive Officer, Mr. Ng Wee Keat, working with
other Executive Directors, is responsible for managing
the business of the Company. Mr. Wilson Ng is the elder
brother of Mr. Ng Wee Keat. Their respective responsibilities

are clearly established and set out in writing.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Code provision A.4.1 stipulates that non-executive directors
should be appointed for a specific term, subject to re-

election.

The independent non-executive directors of the Company
are not appointed for a specific term but shall retire from
office by rotation at least once every three years as referred
to the bye-law 87 of the Company where provides that at
each annual general meeting one-third of the directors of
the Company for the time being (or, if their number is not
a multiple of three (3), the number nearest to but not less

than one-third) shall retire from office by rotation.

As such, the Company considers that sufficient measures
have been taken to ensure that the Company's corporate
governance practices are not less exacting than those in the
Code.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EEEGRE

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS

The Remuneration Committee was established on 12 July
2005 with specific terms of reference. It comprises five
members, including two Executive Directors, namely Mr.
Ng Wee Keat (Chairman of the Remuneration Committee)
and Mr. Yu Wai Man, and three Independent Non-executive
Directors of the Company, namely Mr. Wong Kwok Tai, Mr.
Kwan Kai Kin, Kenneth and Mr. Ho Yau Ming.

The major roles and functions of the Remuneration

Committee are as follows:

1. to make recommendations to the Board on the
Company'’s policy and structure for all remuneration
of directors and senior management and on the
establishment of a formal and transparent procedure

for developing policy on such remuneration; and

2. to review and approve performance-based
remuneration by reference to corporate goals and

objectives resolved by the Board from time to time.

During the year, two meetings were held and the

attendance of each member is set out as follows:

Number of
Members attendance
Mr. Ng Wee Keat
(Chairman of the Remuneration Committee) 1/2
Mr. Yu Wai Man 2/2
Mr. Wong Kwok Tai 2/2
Mr. Kwan Kai Kin, Kenneth 2/2
Mr. Ho Yau Ming 2/2
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REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS (continued)

The following is a summary of work performed by the

Remuneration Committee during the year:

1. to determine the remuneration of the Directors; and

2. to review the remuneration policy of the Group.

NOMINATION OF DIRECTORS

The Board is responsible for considering the suitability
of an individual to act as a Director, and approving and
terminating the appointment of a Director. The Company
currently does not have a nomination committee. The
Chairman is responsible for identifying suitable candidates
for member of the Board when there is a vacancy or an
additional director is considered necessary. The Chairman
proposes the appointment of such candidates to the Board
for consideration. The Board will review the qualifications of
the relevant candidates for determining the suitability to the
Group on the basis of his or her qualifications, experiences

and background.

AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

During the year under review, the remuneration paid to the
Company's auditors, Ernst & Young for audit and non-audit
services to the Group, is set out as below:

Services rendered Fee paid/payable

HK$
Audit services 1,300,000
Non-audit services 350,000
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

EaRE

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee comprises three Independent
Non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Wong Kwok Tai
(Chairman of the Audit Committee), Mr. Kwan Kai Kin,
Kenneth and Mr. Ho Yau Ming. One of the Independent
Non-executive Directors possesses the appropriate
professional qualifications, or accounting or related financial

management expertise as required under the Listing Rules.

The major roles and functions of the Audit Committee are:

to make recommendation to the Board on the
appointment, re-appointment and removal of the
external auditors, to approve the remuneration and
terms of engagement of the external auditors, and
any questions of resignation or dismissal of those

auditors;

to review and monitor the external auditors’

independence and objectivity;

to develop and implement policy on the engagement

of external auditors to supply non-audit services;

to monitor integrity of financial statements of the
Company and the Company's annual report and
accounts, half-year report and to review significant

financial reporting judgments contained in them;

to review the Group’s financial controls, internal

control and risk management systems;

to review the Group's financial and accounting

policies and practices; and

to review the external auditors’ management
letters and to ensure the Board will provide a
timely response to the issues raised in the external

auditors’ management letter.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE (continued)

During the year, two audit committee meetings were held

and the attendance of each member is set out as follows:

Number of

Members attendance
Mr. Wong Kwok Tai

(Chairman of the Audit Committee) 2/2

Mr. Kwan Kai Kin, Kenneth 2/2

Mr. Ho Yau Ming 2/2

The following is a summary of work performed by the Audit

Committee during the year:

1. to review with the management and auditors of the
Company the accounting principles and practices
adopted by the Group, to discuss the audited
financial statements for the year ended 31 March
2009 and to recommend them to the Board for

approval; and

2. to review with the management and auditors of the
Company the accounting principles and practices
adopted by the Group, to discuss the unaudited
interim financial statements for the six months
ended 30 September 2009 and to recommend

them to the Board for approval.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EEEGRE

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE ACCOUNTS

The Board is responsible for presenting a balanced, clear
and understandable assessment of annual and interim
reports, price-sensitive announcements and other financial
disclosures required under the Listing Rules and other

regulatory requirements.

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing
the financial statements of the Company for the year ended
31 March 2010.

The statement of the external auditors of the Company
about their responsibilities on the financial statements is
set out in the “Independent Auditors’ Report” on pages 47

to 49 of this annual report.

INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Board is responsible for maintaining a sound and
effective system of internal control and for reviewing its
effectiveness. During the year under review, the Board has
reviewed the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control
system including financial, operational and compliance

controls and risk management functions.

ANNUAL REPORT 2010 #3&

EEHRBZER
EXZeARENFERTHRSE  KE
BREMO QM REAMRE £ AR R
HMEERERAFHZMBRE2HR—
RN RN L D B =i

EFARBNEEREARAEBE_FT—
TEA=Z+T—HILEFEZHBRERDN
BfE-

AARINEZEMRT ERER 2ETRE
RS R AR EIRFEATEL49E 7 [ L= &
BhsRE | o

AV g
EERRARRFTARBNANEZERS
BiRZE YR ERY - REEFE -
EFeCRNAKSENABREZEZRD
R BRI ERERERAR
EEAREREERE -



New Century Group Hong Kong Limited $tt 2 £E&EEER AT

The directors present their report and the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries (the “Group”) for the year ended 31 March
2010.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
The principal activities of its subsidiaries comprise the
provision of cruise ship charter services, hotel operations,
property investments and securities trading. There were no
significant changes in the nature of the Group’s principal

activities during the year.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The Group's profit for the year ended 31 March 2010 and
the state of affairs of the Company and the Group at that
date are set out in the financial statements on pages 50 to
183.

An interim dividend of HKO.2 cent per ordinary share was
paid on 29 January 2010. The directors recommend the
payment of a final dividend of HKO.4 cent per ordinary
share in respect of the year to shareholders on the register
of members on 1 September 2010. This recommendation
has been incorporated in the financial statements as an
allocation of retained profits within the equity section of the

statement of financial position.

SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A summary of the results and assets, liabilities and minority
interests of the Group for the last five financial years, as
extracted from the audited financial statements, is set out
on page 184. This summary does not form part of the

audited consolidated financial statements.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
BEFEERE

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND
INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment
and investment properties of the Group during the year
are set out in notes 13 and 14 to the financial statements,
respectively. Further details of the Group's investment

properties are set out on pages 185 to 187.

SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE OPTIONS

There were no movements in either the Company’'s
authorised or issued share capital during the year. Details
of movements in the Company's share capital and share
options during the year are set out in notes 26 and 27 to

the financial statements, respectively.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company's bye-laws or the laws of Bermuda, being the
jurisdiction in which the Company is incorporated, which
would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro

rata basis to existing shareholders.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased,
sold or redeemed any of the Company's listed securities

during the year.
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RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and
the Group during the year are set out in note 28 to the
financial statements and in the consolidated statement of

changes in equity, respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 March 2010, the Company had reserves available
for distribution of approximately HK$642,707,000, of which
HK$23,061,000 has been proposed as a final dividend for
the year.

Under the laws of Bermuda, the amount standing to the
credit of the share premium account of the Company of
approximately HK$351,944,000 as at 31 March 2010, may
be distributed in the form of fully paid bonus shares.

Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended),
the contributed surplus of the Company in the amount
of approximately HK$162,587,000 as at 31 March 2010
is distributable to shareholders in certain circumstances,

prescribed by Section 54 thereof.

CHARITABLE CONTRIBUTION

During the year, the Group made charitable contributions
totaling HK$3,000.

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
BEFEERE

fai fm
ARRFRAEBFAZFHBEBFIZD B
HNRT B RERM AR EEE B R
%0

Al 2K 2 7 %
RZE—ZTEF=A=+—H ' AQAAH
Al 5 R 7 # #9642,707,00008 7T - H A
23,061,000/ 7T 2 & B 1EF AR Bk

B o

AN

BEBREEM ARAR_ZTE—ZTF
“—A=+—H ZHXT%EEEE,HD%%W%
351,944,000/ 7T © Rl AR 4L IR 2 75 =
K ©

BIE—NN\—FBREQRE (KIEFT) -
KRB AIRESAGHBEZE THER

REBREDPEARFR_ZE—ZFF=A
=+ —HZEHEEL162,587,000/& 7T °

WSt
i)

E8/E
NN

o

A\
¢

r

EH A Z B R A £3,00008

ol

ANNUAL REPORT 2010 £3%

25



26

New Century Group Hong Kong Limited $ritt 2B &8GR AT

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
BEFEERE

DIRECTORS

The directors of the Company during the year were:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Wilson Ng (Chairman)

Ms. Sio lon Kuan (Deputy Chairman)

Mr. Ng Wee Keat (Chief Executive Officer)

Ms. Ng Siew Lang, Linda (Chief Operating Officer)
Ms. Lilian Ng

Ms. Chen Ka Chee

Mr. Yu Wai Man

Independent Non-executive Directors:
Mr. Wong Kwok Tai

Mr. Kwan Kai Kin, Kenneth

Mr. Ho Yau Ming

In accordance with bye-laws 87(1) and 87(2) of the
Company's bye-laws, Mr. Wilson Ng, Ms. Sio lon Kuan, Ms.
Chen Ka Chee and Mr. Wong Kwok Tai will retire by rotation
and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election at the

forthcoming annual general meeting.

The Company has received annual confirmations of
independence from Mr. Wong Kwok Tai, Mr. Kwan Kai Kin,
Kenneth and Mr. Ho Yau Ming, and as at the date of this

report still considers them to be independent.
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DIRECTORS’ BIOGRAPHIES

(@) Executive Directors

Mr. Wilson Ng Chairman

Aged 38. Mr. Ng joined the Company as an executive
director in July 2002 and was appointed as the
chairman of the Company in October 2002. Mr. Ng
is also a director of various members of the Group.
Mr. Ng graduated from Santa Clara University with a
Bachelor's Degree in Chemistry and Psychology. Mr.
Ng has extensive investment experience in Southeast
Asia. Prior to joining the Company, Mr. Ng was primarily
involved in corporate development and business
investment activities. Mr. Ng is a director of Huang
Worldwide Holding Limited, the immediate holding
company of New Century Investment Pacific Limited
("NCIPL"), which is the controlling shareholder of the
Company. Mr. Ng is the elder brother of Ms. Lilian Ng,
Mr. Ng Wee Keat and Ms. Ng Siew Lang, Linda and is
also a cousin of Ms. Chen Ka Chee. All of them are
executive directors of the Company. Mr. Ng is a son
of Mr. Ng (Huang) Cheow Leng who is the settlor of a
discretionary trust of which it holds the entire interest
in Huang Group (BVI) Limited, the ultimate holding
company of the Company. Mr. Ng was an executive
director of Beijing Yu Sheng Tang Pharmaceutical
Group Limited (formerly known as Poly Development
Holdings Limited) from 18 September 2002 to 25
October 2007, which is listed on the main board of
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange"). Save as disclosed above, Mr. Ng did not
hold any directorship in other listed public companies

in the last three years.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
BEFEERE

DIRECTORS’ BIOGRAPHIES (continued)
(a) Executive Directors (continued)

Ms. Sio lon Kuan Deputy Chairman

Aged 43. Ms. Sio joined the Company as an executive
director in October 2002 and was appointed as
the deputy chairman of the Company in October
2004. Ms. Sio is also a director of various members
of the Group. Ms. Sio has over 15 years of
extensive management experience in various fields
including retailing, property investments, tourism
and entertainment. Ms. Sio is a director of Huang
Worldwide Holding Limited, the immediate holding
company of NCIPL, which is the controlling shareholder
of the Company. In addition, Ms. Sio is also a director
of NCIPL. Ms. Sio did not hold any directorship in other

listed public companies in the last three years.
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DIRECTORS’ BIOGRAPHIES (continued)

(a) Executive Directors (continued)

Mr. Ng Wee Keat Chief Executive Officer and the
chairman of the Remuneration Committee

Aged 33. Mr. Ng joined the Company as an executive
director in January 2003 and was appointed as the
chief executive officer of the Company in April 2004.
Mr. Ng is also a director of various members of the
Group. Mr. Ng graduated from Indiana University with a
Bachelor of Arts Degree in Economics. Prior to joining
the Company, Mr. Ng worked in a ship management
company where he was responsible for re-engineering
the Company's structure as well as ensuring the daily
operations of that Company in a smooth and efficient
way. Mr. Ng is a director of Huang Worldwide Holding
Limited, the immediate holding company of NCIPL,
which is the controlling shareholder of the Company.
In addition, Mr. Ng is also a director of NCIPL. Mr. Ng is
a younger brother of Mr. Wilson Ng and Ms. Lilian Ng
and an elder brother of Ms. Ng Siew Lang, Linda and
is also a cousin of Ms. Chen Ka Chee. All of them are
executive directors of the Company. Mr. Ng is a son
of Mr. Ng (Huang) Cheow Leng who is the settlor of a
discretionary trust of which it holds the entire interest
in Huang Group (BVI) Limited, the ultimate holding
company of the Company. Mr. Ng was an executive
director of Beijing Yu Sheng Tang Pharmaceutical
Group Limited (formerly known as Poly Development
Holdings Limited) from 1 April 2003 to 20 November
2007, which is listed on the main board of the Stock
Exchange. Save as disclosed above, Mr. Ng did not
hold any directorship in other listed public companies

in the last three years.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

Aged 32. Ms. Ng joined the Company as an executive
director in June 2003 and was appointed as the
chief operating officer of the Company in October
2004. Ms. Ng is also a director of various members
of the Group. Ms. Ng brings to the Group experiences
in the fields of real estate management, human
resource management and retail operations. Ms. Ng
graduated with a Bachelor of Arts Degree majoring
in Telecommunications and a minor in Computer
Science from Indiana University. Ms. Ng is a younger
sister of Mr. Wilson Ng, Ms. Lilian Ng and Mr. Ng Wee
Keat and is also a cousin of Ms. Chen Ka Chee. All
of them are executive directors of the Company. Ms.
Ng is a daughter of Mr. Ng (Huang) Cheow Leng who
is the settlor of a discretionary trust of which it holds
the entire interest in Huang Group (BVI) Limited, the
ultimate holding company of the Company. Ms. Ng
did not hold any directorship in other listed public

companies in the last three years.
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DIRECTORS’ BIOGRAPHIES (continued)

(a) Executive Directors (continued)

Ms. Lilian Ng

Aged 36. Ms. Ng joined the Company as an executive
director in July 2002. Ms. Ng is also a director of
various members of the Group. Ms. Ng graduated from
San Francisco State University with a Bachelor's Degree
in Business Administration. Ms. Ng has extensive
experience in hotel management. Prior to joining the
Company, Ms. Ng was a finance and operation director
of a conglomerate with businesses in tour industry and
cruise liner management as well as hotel and property
management in Southeast Asia. Ms. Ng is a director
of NCIPL, which is the controlling shareholder of the
Company. Ms. Ng is a younger sister of Mr. Wilson
Ng and the elder sister of Mr. Ng Wee Keat and Ms.
Ng Siew Lang, Linda and is also a cousin of Ms. Chen
Ka Chee. All of them are executive directors of the
Company. Ms. Ng is a daughter of Mr. Ng (Huang)
Cheow Leng who is the settlor of a discretionary trust
of which it holds the entire interest in Huang Group
(BVI) Limited, the ultimate holding company of the
Company. Ms. Ng did not hold any directorship in other

listed public companies in the last three years.

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEERE

EEHE (&)
(a) BITESE (&)

EFEZL

365 c BEX TR ZFEZTE=FEAMNMA
ARBHERTESE - EXLTHA/R
SEZEKERARIZEF B LTE
Z7ASan Francisco State University -
ERIMERETEM B THA
BEZHEERLR BRXRIMAR
RNAER - B AR S KSR
X HmEEMAEEREYEERE M
EERMBLEEES BXETR/K
NRAIERBRENCIPLZZEE - 2+
REBBREEZRKMEREEHRLEE
BE B T 2 M R IR R R A% B
TR BWEHREARABZHITE
F-BmRIRAEMBEEZLRE &
BB TER—E2EEREIRTA
Mz 2 EEREFE AR ARLERA
AlHuang Group (BVI) Limited .z & &6
Bm o BXLIBE=FIWENEAM L
MARARBEEEMEERS

ANNUAL REPORT 2010 £3%

31



New Century Group Hong Kong Limited $ritt 2B &8GR AT

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

EEERE

DIRECTORS' BIOGRAPHIES (continued) EEEE (&)

(a) Executive Directors (continued) (a) MITEE (E&)
Ms. Chen Ka Chee BRI B+

Aged 45. Ms. Chen joined the Company as an
executive director in May 2000. Ms. Chen is also a
director of various members of the Group. Ms. Chen
holds a Bachelor of Commerce Degree and is an
associate member of the Australian Society of Certified
Practising Accountants. Ms. Chen has over 22 years of
experience in the accounting field, including 4 years in
auditing. Ms. Chen is a cousin of Mr. Wilson Ng, Mr. Ng
Wee Keat, Ms. Ng Siew Lang, Linda and Ms. Lilian Ng.
All of them are executive directors of the Company. Ms.
Chen is a niece of Mr. Ng (Huang) Cheow Leng who
is the settlor of a discretionary trust of which it holds
the entire interest in Huang Group (BVI) Limited, the
ultimate holding company of the Company. Ms. Chen
did not hold any directorship in other listed public

companies in the last three years.
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DIRECTORS’ BIOGRAPHIES (continued)

(a) Executive Directors (continued)

Mr. Yu Wai Man Member of the Remuneration
Committee

Aged 45. Mr. Yu joined the Company in August 1997
and was appointed as an executive director of the
Company in October 2004. Mr. Yu is also a director
of various members of the Group. Mr. Yu is a fellow
member of both of the Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants and the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and has over 25 years of
experience in the accounting field, including 3 years
in external audit and 2 years in internal audit. Mr. Yu
has over 17 years of financial experience in companies
listed both in Hong Kong and the United Kingdom. Mr.
Yu was an executive director of Beijing Yu Sheng Tang
Pharmaceutical Group Limited (formerly known as Poly
Development Holdings Limited) from 11 April 2001 to
5 November 2008, which is listed on the main board
of the Stock Exchange. Save as disclosed above, Mr.
Yu did not hold any directorship in other listed public

companies in the last three years.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
BEFEERE

DIRECTORS' BIOGRAPHIES (continued) EEMEE (E)
(b) B HHITES
ERARAEFR TS FERTWNE

=- o

(b) Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Wong Kwok Tai Chairman of the Audit Committee

and member of the Remuneration Committee

Aged 71. Mr. Wong joined the Company as an
independent non-executive director in May 1999. Mr.
Wong is also the chairman of the Audit Committee
and a member of the Remuneration Committee. Mr.
Wong is a Practising Certified Public Accountant and
a fellow member of both of the CPA Australia and the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Mr.
Wong has more than 45 years of financial experience.
Mr. Wong is the principal of W. Wong & Co., C.PA..
Mr. Wong was an independent non-executive director
of CIL Holdings Limited from 6 August 2001 to 4
May 2008. Mr. Wong is currently an independent
non-executive director of Beijing Yu Sheng Tang
Pharmaceutical Group Limited (formerly known as
Poly Development Holdings Limited), China Power
New Energy Development Company Limited (formerly
known as Oriental Investment Corporation Limited),
Takson Holdings Limited and Sewco International
Holdings Limited, all of which are listed on the main
board of the Stock Exchange. Save as disclosed above,
Mr. Wong did not hold any directorship in other listed

public companies in the last three years.
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DIRECTORS’ BIOGRAPHIES (continued)

(b) Independent Non-executive Directors

(continued)

Mr. Kwan Kai Kin, Kenneth Member of the Audit
Committee and the Remuneration Committee

Aged 63. Mr. Kwan joined the Company as an
independent non-executive director in April 2003.
Mr. Kwan is also a member of the Audit Committee
and the Remuneration Committee. Mr. Kwan holds
a Bachelor of Applied Science Degree in Civil
Engineering and a Bachelor of Business Administration
Degree with Honours from the University of Toronto
and the University of Windsor respectively. Mr. Kwan
has 8 years of experience in the accounting and
tax auditing fields together with over 29 years of
experience in the real estate business and business
agent. Mr. Kwan did not hold any directorship in other

listed public companies in the last three years.

Mr. Ho Yau Ming Member of the Audit Committee and
the Remuneration Committee

Aged 59. Mr. Ho joined the Company as an
independent non-executive director in April 2003.
Mr. Ho is also a member of the Audit Committee
and the Remuneration Committee. Mr. Ho holds a
Master Degree in Finance from University of Leicester
in England, United Kingdom. Mr. Ho had worked in
the banking industry for over 27 years in official and
senior executive positions including The Hongkong
and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited and Dao
Heng Bank Limited. Mr. Ho was an independent non-
executive director of Brightoil Petroleum (Holdings)
Limited (formerly known as First Sign International
Holdings Limited) from 20 October 2004 to 11 July
2008, which is listed on the main board of the Stock
Exchange. Save as disclosed above, Mr. Ho did not
hold any directorship in other listed public companies

in the last three years.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
BEFEERE

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

As at the date of this report, no director proposed for
re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting
has a service contract with the Company or any of its
subsidiaries which is not determinable by the Company
or its subsidiaries within one year without payment of

compensation, other than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS' INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 March 2010, the interests and short positions of
the directors of the Company in the shares and underlying
shares of the Company or any of its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (the “SFQO")) as recorded in the register required
to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the
SFO, or otherwise notified to the Company and The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange")
pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed lIssuers (the “Model Code"), were as

follows:
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DIRECTORS' INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES (continued)

EERNROREERS 2EHER
#a (&)

Long positions in ordinary shares of the Company: RARRNRIEBEE 2078 -

Number of ordinary shares held,

capacity and nature of interest

FEEEREE SORESENE

Directly Through Percentage of the

beneficially controlled Beneficiary Company's issued

Directors owned corporation of a trust Total share capital

AN BRI

EZ ERERER g ok VN EREZEHEA @t REZEDL

Mr. Wilson Ng 17,850,000 266,552,000 3,455,753,691  3,740,155,691 64.87
BEREEKE (note 2) (note 3)
(Hizt2) (H1#£3)

Ms. Sio lon Kuan 42,000,000 266,552,000 3,455,753,691  3,764,305,691 65.29
REHLL (note 2) (note 3)
(Hfit2) (H1it3)

Mr. Ng Wee Keat 30,030,000 266,552,000 3,455,753,691  3,752,335,691 65.08
BREAELE (note 2) (note 3)
(Hrit2) (#7:23)

Ms. Ng Siew Lang, Linda 26,250,000 266,552,000 3,455,753,691  3,748,555,691 65.02
BEFMATL (note 2) (note 3)
(Hizt2) (H1#£3)

Ms. Lilian Ng 26,250,000 266,552,000 3,455,753,691  3,748,555,691 65.02
BEMELL (note 2) (note 3)
(Hfit2) (Hfit3)

Ms. Chen Ka Chee 8,400,000 - - 8,400,000 0.15

BRBSLL
Mr. Yu Wai Man 3,360,000 - - 3,360,000 0.06
REXFKE
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES (continued)

Long positions in share options of the Company:

EERROREBERO Z2ERR
# A ()
RARBBIRIEZ TR

Number of share options directly

Directors beneficially owned
= EEEsHAE2BEREHER
Mr. Wilson Ng mERLE 21,000,000
Ms. Sio lon Kuan BREELT 21,000,000
Mr. Ng Wee Keat HEAERE 18,900,000
Ms. Ng Siew Lang, Linda EEHL T 18,900,000
Ms. Lilian Ng \mAELT 12,600,000
Ms. Chen Ka Chee BRAG B E + 12,600,000
Mr. Yu Wai Man RIEX 4 12,600,000

117,600,000

Notes:

1.  As at 31 March 2010, the total number of issued shares of
the Company was 5,765,288,705.

2. 266,552,000 shares were held by New Century (Huang's)
Foundation Limited, a company limited by guarantee and a
charitable institution of public character of which Mr. Wilson
Ng, Ms. Sio lon Kuan, Mr. Ng Wee Keat, Ms. Ng Siew Lang,
Linda and Ms. Lilian Ng are members and members of its

council of management.

3.  3,455,753,691 shares were held by New Century Investment
Pacific Limited which is ultimately owned by Huang Group
(BVI) Limited under a discretionary trust of which Mr. Wilson
Ng, Ms. Sio lon Kuan, Mr. Ng Wee Keat, Ms. Ng Siew Lang,

Linda and Ms. Lilian Ng are the discretionary beneficiaries.
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DIRECTORS' INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES (continued)

Save as disclosed above, none of the directors had
registered an interest or short position in the shares or
underlying shares of the Company or any of its associated
corporations that was required to be recorded, pursuant
to Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model
Code.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' AND OTHER
PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

So far as is known to any director of the Company, as at 31
March 2010, other than the interests of the directors of the
Company as disclosed above, the following interests of 5%
or more of the issued share capital of the Company were
recorded in the register of interests required to be kept by

the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO:

Long positions in ordinary shares of the Company:

Shareholders Notes
B R Kt
New Century Investment Pacific Limited 2,4
Huang Worldwide Holding Limited 2
Huang Group (BVI) Limited 2,3
Mr. Ng (Huang) Cheow Leng 3,4
E=RBEEE

Mr. Kan Ka Chong, Frederick 3,5
BEX. BiHes

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
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EERNROREBEROD ZEER
#xa (&)

R EXPEEI  EFHMERARAK

HAMMBB AR 2D RO #E
RIEFEHF NG RIIEI2GAE L 2
mEORR - IARBEIREST R Z R EMAM
SARB R ZERIRR

FERREREMATRRGKAE
BROzZEERKE

MARBERMEEMN R-T—TF=
A=+—8 BEXHBEEARFESRZ
B (AR A D EITRAS%KIA
Z Mo ERTIIRIERE 5 R ERGI %336
R ERRARRBIZART ZE R

MARBEBRZIFR

=

el

Number of Percentage of the
ordinary Company’s issued

shares held share capital
ERATEET

FREEEREE BAB DL
3,455,753,691 59.94
3,455,753,691 59.94
3,455,753,691 59.94
3,842,293,691 66.65
3,455,753,691 59.94
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEERE

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' AND OTHER
PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES (continued)

Notes:

1.

As at 31 March 2010, the total number of issued shares of
the Company was 5,765,288,705.

Huang Group (BVI) Limited is the ultimate holding company
of New Century Investment Pacific Limited. Huang Worldwide
Holding Limited is the immediate holding company of New
Century Investment Pacific Limited. Accordingly, Huang Group
(BVI) Limited and Huang Worldwide Holding Limited were
deemed to be interested in a total of 3,455,753,691 shares.

Huang Group (BVI) Limited is held by Mr. Kan Ka Chong,
Frederick, as the trustee of a discretionary trust, the settlor of

which is Mr. Ng (Huang) Cheow Leng.

3,455,753,691 shares were held by New Century Investment
Pacific Limited. 266,552,000 shares were held by New
Century (Huang's) Foundation Limited, while 119,988,000
shares were held by Mr. Ng (Huang) Cheow Leng. Mr. Ng
(Huang) Cheow Leng is one of the members of New Century
(Huang's) Foundation Limited. Accordingly, Mr. Ng (Huang)
Cheow Leng was deemed to be interested in a total of
3,842,293,691 shares. New Century (Huang's) Foundation
Limited is a company limited by guarantee and a charitable

institution of public character.

Mr. Kan Ka Chong, Frederick held 3,455,753,691 shares as
the trustee of the discretionary trust of which Mr. Wilson Ng,
Ms. Sio lon Kuan, Mr. Ng Wee Keat, Ms. Ng Siew Lang, Linda

and Ms. Lilian Ng are the discretionary beneficiaries.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' AND OTHER
PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES (continued)

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2010, no
person (other than the directors or chief executive of
the Company) who was recorded in the register of the
Company had interests or short positions in the shares or
underlying shares of the Company which would be required
to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions of
Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or recorded in the
register required to be kept by the Company under Section
336 of the SFO.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES AND
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed in the section “Directors’ interests and
short positions in shares and underlying shares” above and
in the section “Share option scheme” below, at no time
during the year were rights to acquire benefits by means of
the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company
granted to any director or their respective spouses or minor
children, or were any such rights exercised by them; or was
the Company, its holding company or any of its subsidiaries
or fellow subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable
the directors to acquire such rights in any other body

corporate.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company operates a share option scheme (the
“Scheme”) for the purpose of providing incentives and
rewards to eligible participants who contribute to the
success of the Group's operations. Further details of
the Scheme are disclosed in note 27 to the financial

statements.
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&t &l Z BRSNS E L EREL
ERlzAER2EERL T MOH - %
Bz E - PHBERBERM B MR
27 °

ANNUAL REPORT 2010 #3&

41



New Century Group Hong Kong Limited $ritt 2B &8GR AT

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

EEERE
SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued) BBIRFESTE (8)
The following table discloses the movements in the  F R AR A& KRITHE 2 08I S0
Company's share options outstanding during the year: T
Number of share options
BREHE
At Lapsed At Exercise
Name or category 1 April during 31 March  Date of grant of Exercise period price of
of participant 2009 the year 2010 share options of share options  share options*
RZ2EBhE RER R-2-8% BhRE BRE BRE
SRENZAEN MA-H P34 ZA=t-8H RnmAH kd TEE
HK$ per share
BRAT
Directors
Es
Mr. Wilson Ng 21,000,000 - 21,000,000 27-4-07 27-04-07 to 26-04-12 0.2667
REERE “EELF CETRLENAC-tLHE
MA=++H “E-—FEAZTRH
Ms. Sio lon Kuan 21,000,000 - 21,000,000 27-4-07 27-04-07 to 26-04-12 0.2667
REELL Z2Z+E —EREEMACTHAZ
MA-t+H “E-HEEA-TRA
Mr. Ng Wee Keat 18,900,000 - 18,900,000 27-4-07 27-04-07 to 26-04-12 0.2667
BREGELE "2t CETLFNA-tEAE
MAZttR  —F-ZFEA-tKA
Ms. Ng Siew Lang, Linda 18,900,000 - 18,900,000 27-4-07 27-04-07 to 26-04-12 0.2667
BEMLL “TRtE ZETLEMACTLERE
MAZttH  —E-Z#WA-1KA
Ms. Lilian Ng 12,600,000 - 12,600,000 27-4-07 27-04-07 to 26-04-12 0.2667
ENELT ZE%+E  —ZEtENAZTtAZE
MAZ+tR  ZE-ZFEACtiH
Ms. Chen Ka Chee 12,600,000 - 12,600,000 27-4-07 27-04-07 to 26-04-12 0.2667
REERL “E2LE ETAENA-TERE
MAZ++A  —F-ZF@EA-fiH
Mr. Yu Wai Man 12,600,000 - 12,600,000 27-4-07 27-04-07 to 26-04-12 0.2667
REXEE ZZR+E  ERLENA-tHHE

mE=++A “E--FNA-tH

117,600,000

117,600,000
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

Number of share options

BREHE
At Lapsed At

Name or category 1 April during 31 March
of participant 2009 the year 2010

R-BBREF RER  R-B-BF
SRELAIEN mA-H %%  =ZA=t-H
Other employees
AtbES
in aggregate 21,630,000 (3,570,000) 18,060,000
aft
Total
H 139230000  (3570,000) 135,660,000

*  The exercise price of the share options is subject to
adjustment in the case of rights or bonus issues, or other

similar changes in the Company's share capital.

DIRECTORS' INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

No director had a material interest, either directly or
indirectly, in any contract of significance to the business
of the Group to which the Company, its holding company,
or any of its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a party

during the year.
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BREstE (&)

Exercise
Date of grant of Exercise period price of
share options of share options  share options*
BRE BhRE BhRE
RHAH TEH TEE
HK$ per share
BRAT
27-4-07 27-04-07 to 26-04-12 0.2667

“ERtE ETHENAZTLAZE
mE-++A —E-—£WNA=155H

* o BRI ATE(E AT AR AR S BT AT AR
AR BIRA 2 HABFALIEE BN T T AR -

EECENES

FR - BFESEHMERAQR  AERA
A SHE AT B & R SR R B A RET
YAHAEEXRBEEEANBRZEMEH
PERMEEREREAER -
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
BEFEERE

MAJOR SUPPLIERS AND CUSTOMERS

In the year under review, the aggregate sales attributable
to the five largest customers accounted for 49.4% of
the Group's total sales, which includes gain on trading
of securities and fair value gain of securities in aggregate
of HK$122,979,000, for the year. The aggregate sales
attributable to the largest customer accounted for 32.5%
of the Group's total sales for the year. The percentage of
purchases attributable to the five largest suppliers is less

than 30% of the Group's total purchases.

None of the directors of the Company, or any of their
associates or any shareholders of the Company which, to
the best knowledge of the directors, own more than 5%
of the Company's issued share capital had any beneficial

interest in the suppliers or customers mentioned above.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Related party transactions, which fall within the definition
stipulated in Hong Kong Accounting Standard 24 (“HKAS
24") "Related Party Disclosures”, undertaken by the Group
during the year are set out in note 32 to the financial
statements. Certain transactions included in note 32 to the
financial statements also constituted connected transactions
as defined under the Listing Rules which are detailed in the

following paragraphs.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the year, the Group had the following connected
transactions and the transactions as disclosed in note 32
to the financial statements, certain details of which are
disclosed in compliance with the requirements of Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

The directors have reviewed the following connected
transaction under which the independent shareholders’
approval requirements as set out in Chapter 14A of the

Listing Rules have been obtained.

Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed at a special
general meeting on 4 September 2006, ACE Properties Pte.
Ltd. ("ACE"), a subsidiary of the Company, was granted a
mortgage loan in the sum of SG$12,500,000 (equivalent to
HK$61,625,000) from a fellow subsidiary of the Group on
27 September 2006. At 31 March 2010, the outstanding
balance of the mortgage loan advanced from a fellow
subsidiary of the Group amounted to SG$10,316,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$57,252,000). The
mortgage loan advanced from a fellow subsidiary of the
Group bears interest at 4.25% per annum for the first
year, 4.75% per annum for the second year, and 0.5%
per annum above the commercial financing rate quoted
by United Overseas Bank Limited for the third year and
thereafter. The mortgage loan is secured by a legal
mortgage on ACE's investment property with a carrying
amount of SG$44,500,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$246,975,000) as at the end of the reporting
period. During the year, ACE paid interest expenses of
HK$2,903,000 for the mortgage loan.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the directors, at least
25% of the Company's total issued share capital was held

by the public as at the date of this report.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
BEFEERE

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Details of the significant events after the reporting period
of the Group are set out in note 36 to the financial

statements.

AUDITORS

Ernst & Young retire and a resolution for their
reappointment as auditors will be proposed at the

forthcoming annual general meeting.

On behalf of the Board

Wilson Ng

Chairman

Hong Kong
16 July 2010
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Elf ERNST & YOUNG
= ik

New Century Group Hong Kong Limited
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the financial statements of New Century
Group Hong Kong Limited set out on pages 50 to 183,
which comprise the consolidated and company statements
of financial position as at 31 March 2010, and the
consolidated income statement, the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of
changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash
flows for the year then ended, and a summary of significant

accounting policies and other explanatory notes.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation and the true and fair presentation of these
financial statements in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
This responsibility includes designing, implementing and
maintaining internal control relevant to the preparation and
the true and fair presentation of financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error; selecting and applying appropriate accounting
policies; and making accounting estimates that are

reasonable in the circumstances.

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

BB &

BEtHLEEETEERAA
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
B BET R &

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
financial statements based on our audit. Our report is made
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with Section 90
of the Bermuda Companies Act 1981, and for no other
purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or
accept liability to any other person for the contents of this

report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance as to whether the

financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on
the auditors’ judgement, including the assessment of the
risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditors consider internal control relevant
to the entity’s preparation and true and fair presentation of
the financial statements in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the entity's internal control. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by
the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation

of the financial statements.
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AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITY (continued)

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is

sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit

opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and

fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of

New Century Group Hong Kong Limited $tt 2 £E&EEER AT

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
B RBETR &

¥ B4 AT B B AE (&)
BPIEE - RPPTESNERERRRA
BEBABRMOBLE RIRHER -

=R
BRARE  ZFEVBHRREREBETEMS

WELNEEM AL MR AR EZR

the Group as at 31 March 2010 and of the Group's profit —ZF—=Z44 = A =+ — BP0 R E

and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance

with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have

EZBILEFEENMESRE LR
BEERRAGO ZHBEREZBRS

been properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure

requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants
18/F, Two International Finance Centre
8 Finance Street, Central

Hong Kong

16 July 2010
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

HFEWER

Year ended 31 March 2010
HE T ZTF-_A=+—HIFE

2010 2009
—E-=F —ZEENEF
Notes HK$' 000 HK$' 000
gz TH&ExT FHETT
REVENUE A 5 329,440 219,148
Cost of services provided Fir £ £ AR 75 BX 2 (42,632) (53,631)
Gross profit EH 286,808 165,517
Other income H b W A 5 3,612 15,892
Selling and distribution costs HE Ko EK AR (33,187) (17,420)
Administrative expenses ITHAX (32,107) (38,490)
Foreign exchange differences, net [& i 258 & /F458 8,474 (27,595)
Other expenses, net EmAE - F5E 6 (2,307) (5,833)
Fair value losses on cruise ships  ES# 2 A FE(EEE (64,174) (56,970)
Fair value gains/(losses) REMEZ AFEE
on investment properties Wk, (E8) 14 104,740 (102,000)
Finance costs =N 7 (5,789) (7,186)
PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE TAX BRBEATER (EE) 6 266,070 (74,085)
Income tax expense Frig i & F 9 (36,746) 24,132
PROFIT/(LOSS) FOR THE YEAR  ZREEZRF ~(&F#E) 229,324 (49,953)
Attributable to: AT AL HEAS :
Owners of the Company ZIN/NEIE 7 RSN 10 191,613 (69,704)
Minority interests DB RS R R T 37711 19,751
229,324 (49,953)
EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE &2 R ER
ATTRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY REFE A
EQUITY HOLDERS BhEERAER
OF THE COMPANY (B#8) 12
Basic B3N HK3.32 centsfll  HK(1.21) cents/& 1L
Diluted e N/A 7 3E A N/A 778 A

Details of the dividends payable and proposed for the year BN FEEEMNRE REERENTIBE
are disclosed in note 11 to the financial statements. BRI NEE -
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

SFEZEWER

Year ended 31 March 2010
HE T ZF=-A=1+—HIL&FE

2010 2009
—2-Z2F —ZEENEF
Notes HK$’ 000 HK$' 000
ks TET THET
PROFIT/(LOSS) FOR THE YEAR  AEE#EF  (F5iE) 229,324 (49,953)
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME  H th 2 T W &
Loss on cruise ship revaluation TR 4w ZE ik B 18 13 - (28,901)
Exchange differences on IHEIBIMESE R
translation of foreign operations & A4 HY I i, = 58 828 (3,298)
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE AEEHM
INCOME FOR THE YEAR, 2EWE
NET OF TAX HIBR B K 828 (32,199)
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE AEERE
INCOME FOR THE YEAR g E R 230,152 (82,152)
Attributable to: AR A LA :
Owners of the Company PiN/NESTE? F SN 10 202,290 (90,161)
Minority interests D BAR R A A 27,862 8,009
230,152 (82,152)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

HFEMBIRAER
31 March 2010
—E-ZF=A=1+—H

2010 2009
—E-=F ZEENF
Notes HK$'000 HK$ 000
Bt THER FHT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment W - BB R 13 190,807 236,887
Investment properties REME 14 733,175 624,250
Prepaid land premiums FEAT i (B 15 14,825 15,045
Deposit paid to acquire property MEEERPYE
under development M EEI & 16 - -
Available-for-sale investments AHEE 2 IRE 780 780
Deferred tax assets RERIBE E 25 - 11,193
Total non-current assets ERBEERT 939,587 888,155
CURRENT ASSETS RBEE
Inventories e 920 796
Prepaid land premiums TET B 15 908 786
Trade receivables, prepayments, JEWE 5 BRA - TERIE -
deposits and other receivables e N E b E U BR 3R 18 44,335 52,357
Equity investments at fair value BRBEREATEEB
through profit or loss S8R 2 IRIERR B 19 422,229 207,395
Due from a related company JE U B8 5 A R IR 32(d) 970 -
Bank deposits RITFER 20 99,974 -
Pledged time deposit EEATERER 21 - 17,550
Cash and cash equivalents RehREZEY 21 148,505 276,039
Total current assets B EELRE 717,841 554,923
CURRENT LIABILITIES REBAEE
Interest-bearing bank loans SERTER 22 49,548 26,577
Mortgage loan advanced from EES) =N T pvd
a fellow subsidiary RIBER 23, 32(f) 3,780 3,305
Trade payables, accruals, other JERNE 5 RN - AT IE -
payables and deposits received HtEMNERERE KRS 24 48,328 48,566
Tax payable JE #5718 13,792 3,747
Due to a related company JE < 838 A RIRIB 32(d) - 1,004
Total current liabilities MB RGBS 115,448 83,199
NET CURRENT ASSETS RBEERSE 602,393 471,724
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT BEERRE
LIABILITIES a8E 1,541,980 1,359,879
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
HEMBRAR

31 March 2010

—E-ZFE=A=1+—H

53

2010 2009
—E-2F —EThF
Notes HK$' 000 HK$" 000
Bt FHET THET
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FRBEE
Interest-bearing bank loans SHRRTER 22 60,999 70,544
Mortgage loan advanced from SES PPN E- AN
a fellow subsidiary HBE R 23, 32() 53,472 52,610
Loans advanced from minority REBRBARZ
shareholders of the Group's DERREBAS
subsidiaries ZERK 32(e) 238,596 222,727
Deposits received BiZ & 24 10,518 9,064
Deferred tax liabilities RIETRIERE 25 35,162 20,143
Total non-current liabilities R EERRE 398,747 375,088
Net assets BEFRE 1,143,233 984,791
EQUITY s
Equity attributable to owners KRAREEA
of the Company FE 1k s
Issued capital BT 26 14,414 14,414
Reserves 1 28(a) 1,115,724 948,026
Proposed final dividends BEAHRE 11 23,061 20,179
1,153,199 982,619
Minority interests DERRER (9,966) 2,172
Total equity Mo AR ER 1,143,233 984,791
Wilson Ng Ng Wee Keat
EHEHR EEE
Chairman Chief Executive Officer
TiE T A
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New Century Group Hong Kong Limited $ritt 2B &8GR AT

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
GREEREEIRE
Year ended 31 March 2010

HE-T-BF=A=t+—HILFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

KAREARG
Cruise
Share  Share ship  Exchange Proposed
Issed premium option Contributed reveluation translation  Retained final Minoity ~ Total
captal  account  resee  suplus  reseve  resee  profits  dividend  Total interests  equity
BEf Kb ERE L] 2 ] HHRF
Bt REE  RE REER EHGR EXRE REEW RERE &R BE REAE
Notes  HKF000  HKS000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'O00  HK$'000  HK$'000
it Thr T TEn  TEn TR fEn TEr  TEn TEn TER TER
At 1 April 2008 R-EE)\EMA-A 13728 352630 6800 162587 16105 12611 508319 - 1072780 22163 1094943
Tota comprehenshe ncome. - 2§ 2 Al
for the year 4 - - - - (618 (@) (69704 S0e) 809 (821%)
Bonus issue EHD % 686 (60) - - - - - - - - -
Proposed 2009 fnel dvidend ~E5NEEZFERE 11 - - - - - - 1) 07 - - .
Dividend paid toa minorty 2~ {10 §5%E
hareholder LRE - - - - - - - - - (28000) (26000)
Share options lapsed durng ~ RERATZ
the year B - ) - - - 743 - - - -
At 31 March 2009 RZEENEZRZT-H 1444 351944 6057 162587 - 8259 419179 20179 982619 2070 984791
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At 1 Aprl 2009

Totel comprehensive income
for the year

Fingl 2009 dividend
dedlared

Interim 2010 dividend

Proposed 2010 final ividend

Dividend paid to a minoriy
shareholder

Share options lapsed

during the year

RZEENERA-A
REERENE
ek

o

BERZ-TENE

ks
REMKAL
R

New Century Group Hong Kong Limited $tt 2 £E&EEER AT

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

FEEREEHRE
Year ended 31 March 2010
HE T ZF=-A=1+—HIL&FE

Attributable to owners of the Company

KAARAARE
Share  Share Exchange Proposed
Issued  premium option Contributed translation  Retained final Minorty ~ Total

cpital  account  reseve  surplus  reseve  profits  dividend  Totel interests equity
BEfF RS BhE 2 ] YRR
Rx  EERE  BF E4RR ENRE REEW ABRE &% ER REEE
Note HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000
it TEr TAr  TEn  TEn TR TEr  TEn  TEr  TEL  TAR

14414 351944 6057 162587 §259 419179 20779 982619 21 984791

- - - - 06T 191673 S W BN

- - - - - - (0m) - m)
1 - - - - - () - () - ()
1 - - - - - B06)  B6 - - -

(40000)  (40,000)

- - - - - - - -

At 31 March 2010

m:§72¢5ﬂ5$7a

14414 351944 593F 12587%  18936%  576324* 23061 1153199 (9966) 1,143,233

*  These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves — * It 5@ HE R BIELR S B SRR TP LR
of HK$1,115,724,000 (2009: HK$948,026,000) in the & HE#1,115,724,0008 7T (Z BT AE
consolidated statement of financial position. 948,026,000/ 7T.) °
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New Century Group Hong Kong Limited $ritt 2B &8GR AT

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

HZERERER
Year ended 31 March 2010
HE T ZTF-_A=+—HIFE

2010 2009
—E-2f ZTTNF
Notes HK$' 000 HK$ 000
it TER FTAET
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING BexBeRE
ACTIVITIES RE
Profit/(loss) before tax: BREATER, (B8B) - 266,070 (74,085)
Adjustments for: FRNIES Ak
Finance costs BEKAK 7 5,789 7,186
Bank interest income HATHEMA 5 (727) (4,338)
Dividend income R S A 5 (7,274) (3,025)
Loss on disposal of items of property, HEME  BERSE
plant and equipment EAMER 6 45 -
Depreciation neE 6 24,429 28,743
Revaluation deficit/(surplus) of office ERBEMAENEL
premises in Hong Kong Bit/ (B#) 6 187 (4)
Recognition of prepaid land premiums RIEFIE 15 867 836
Fair value losses/(gains) on equity BBBREATEEY R
investments at fair value 2R E 2 AT E]
through profit or loss, net BB/ (W) B8 5 (105,600) 43,965
Fair value losses/(gains) on investment REMELATEE
properties BB/ (Ka) 14 (104,740) 102,000
Waiver from creditors and a related BEREAR—HBELT
company on long outstanding BRERBRKRER
trade payables FERNE SRR 5 - (7,437)
Impairment of items of property, ME  BERZBIER
plant and equipment ZRE 6 2,120 5,837
Deficit on revaluation of cruise ships BmEhELM 13 64,174 56,970
145,340 156,648
Decrease/(increase) in inventories BEZ®D/(38m) (124) 44
Decrease in trade receivables, EWE ZER - BNZE -
prepayments, deposits and Re RE MR KER
other receivables 2R 8,022 42,881
Increase in equity investments at fair BREEATEEINEZ
value through profit or loss RIERE 2B (109,234) (219,789)
Movements in balance with a related HEE N R
company #) % 8 (1,974) 1,349
Increase/(decrease) in trade payables, ENESER - i IE
accruals, other payables and deposits H R BRI
received BElkige zEgm/ i) 1216 (16,805)
Exchange adjustment BE 5 53 2 (7,907) 22,736
Cash generated from/(used in) operations X8/ (AR KLEBK RS 35,339 (12,936)
Interest received EUF & 727 4,338
Interest paid =ENELURSS (5,789) (7,186)
Hong Kong profits tax paid BEREBFNEH (108) (54)
Overseas tax paid BRIBINEIR (464) (909)
Dividend received EWRE 7274 3,025
Net cash flows from/(used in) KB/ (AR EEERE2
operating activities RengFR 36,979 (13,722)
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New Century Group Hong Kong Limited $tt 2 £E&EEER AT

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
HELERER

Year ended 31 March 2010
HE T ZF=-A=1+—HIL&FE

2010 2009
—E-EBF “TTNF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
it TER TET
Net cash flows from/(used in) ®E/ (BR)EE¥EB2
operating activities BeEmnEFHE 36,979 (13,722)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING RETHZES
ACTIVITY wE
Purchases of items of property, plant BEWE HEX
and equipment FEHE 13 (40,497) (2,564)
Proceeds from disposal of items HENE  BERREERE
of property, plant and equipment KB IR 375 -
Proceeds from disposal of an HEREME
investment property P53 15,500 -
Decrease in pledged time deposit EHEME PER B 17,550 -
Increase in bank deposits BATEFR 2L (99,974) -
Net cash flows used in investing activites ~ BREEEBzHEREFHA (107,046) (2,564)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING MEEB RS
ACTIVITIES wE
New bank loans MERITER 40,000 40,000
Repayment of bank loans BERTER (26,574) (71,871)
Repayment of a mortgage loan advanced ~ EERZME R A2 2
from a fellow subsidiary RIBEX (3,525) (3,366)
Dividends paid BERKRE (31,710) -
Dividends paid to a minority shareholder ~ B DEBER 2K S (40,000) (28,000)
Net cash flows used in financing activites FARBEEZBZREREFH (61,809) (63,237)
NET DECREASE IN CASH AND CASH ReRBESEY
EQUIVALENTS MWD FE (131,876) (79,523)
Cash and cash equivalents at FMzRER
beginning of year ReZED 276,039 364,920
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes INEEXEH HE 4,342 (9,358)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FR2BER
AT END OF YEAR RESEY 148,505 276,039
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH REeRBRESEYZ
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS BB
Cash and bank balances BaeRBrIE 21 56,843 108,032
Non-pledged time deposits with BARRE W HR
original maturity of less than TR=EAZ
three months when acquired BEEATEREX 21 91,662 168,007
Cash and cash equivalents as stated in the 31 %k % & A BT 2 &
statement of financial position BeRkReEEY 148,505 276,039
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New Century Group Hong Kong Limited $ritt 2B &8GR AT

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

BAFEAR LR

31 March 2010
—E-ZF=A=1+—H

2010 2009
—E—EF —EENF
Notes HK$' 000 HK$" 000
k=3 FExT FETT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - BB L& B 542 385
Interests in subsidiaries BT Bt /B8 A 7 2 #E 25 17 618,332 519,199
Available-for-sale investments AIEEE ZIRE 780 780
Total non-current assets FERBEELRT 619,654 520,364
CURRENT ASSETS REEE
Prepayments and deposits TEATRIE R iR & 18 774 737
Bank deposits RITFEX 20 99,974 -
Cash and cash equivalents BReMReEEY 21 114,704 197,244
Total current assets B E EAARE 215,452 197,981
CURRENT LIABILITIES REEE
Due to subsidiaries FET B B A B3k 1B 17 176,115 112,587
Accruals JE T B 24 1,870 1,464
Total current liabilities MBI B EARRE 177,985 114,051
NET CURRENT ASSETS hEEEFE 37,467 83,930
Net assets BEFE 657,121 604,294
EQUITY R
Issued capital BB TR AN 26 14,414 14,414
Reserves (R 28(b) 619,646 569,701
Proposed final dividend BERKERE 11 23,061 20,179
Total equity W w48 RE 657,121 604,294
Wilson Ng Ng Wee Keat
HER HEH
Chairman Chief Executive Officer
FE TTI A,
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2.1

New Century Group Hong Kong Limited $tt 2 £E&EEER AT

CORPORATE INFORMATION

New Century Group Hong Kong Limited is a limited
liability company incorporated in Bermuda. The
registered office of the Company is located at
Clarendon House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM 11,

Bermuda.

The principal activity of the Company is investment
holding. The principal activities of its subsidiaries
comprise the provision of cruise ship charter services,
hotel operations, property investments and securities

trading.

The Company is a subsidiary of New Century
Investment Pacific Limited, a company incorporated
in the British Virgin Islands. New Century Investment
Pacific Limited is an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary
of Huang Group (BVI) Limited, a company incorporated
in the British Virgin Islands.
Huang Group (BVI) Limited, which is

In the opinion of the
directors,
beneficially and wholly-owned by a discretionary trust,

is the ultimate holding company of the Company.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs") (which include all Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting
Standards (“HKASs") and Interpretations) issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
("HKICPA"), accounting principles generally accepted
in Hong Kong and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. They have been
prepared under the historical cost convention, except
for investment properties, cruise ships, office premises
and equity investments, which have been measured at
fair value. These financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollars ("HK$").

2.1

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B ¥R R M5t
31 March 2010
—E-ZFE=A=1+—H
AFRIEHR
AL EERTEERAAARER
EAMAZBRAF - RAF 2
= i ¥ = BR 2 7 Clarendon House,
2 Church Street, Hamilton HM 11,

Bermuda °

ARRFZEBEBR/IE R - HHf
BRARIZEZXH REHBREE
R EERE  MEREREFE

A A7l ANew Century Investment
Pacific Limited (R EE X BF & 5t
MKz 2z ~al) 2 M & 2R F - New
Century Investment Pacific Limited/3
Huang Group (BVI) Limited (723 J&
BRESHEMK LI AR 2MES
ENBAR - REFZER &B—
HE2EERER T EHA ZHuang
Group (BVI) LimitedJ3 4N A 8] 2 fx 4%
beali /NI

R HFHRRIDBRIBEZEEFMAE
([EEEFEAE]) Bt 2 BB

HEEN(TEBMBHREER] (2
Tﬁﬁﬁﬁ%;%ﬂﬁﬁ#&if&ﬁ” CEAEE
HA(TEBSFTER]D kZE) &
B E L%ZWZ FTRAIRFA QAR
DIz BEHREMME - FRIREWE
B HAEMENMBIBIRE TR
FEEEN  ZFEMHHRERIVIRE
SERRAERREBL o N TE KR TIIAE
(BT 25 °
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New Century Group Hong Kong Limited $ritt 2B &8GR AT

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BA ¥R R M RE

31 March 2010
—E-ZF=A=1+—H

2.1

2.2

BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include
the financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”)
for the year ended 31 March 2010. Adjustments are
made to bring into line any dissimilar accounting
policies that may exist. The results of subsidiaries are
consolidated from the date of acquisition, being the
date on which the Group obtains control, and continue
to be consolidated until the date that such control
ceases. All income, expenses and unrealised gains and
losses resulting from intercompany transactions and
intercompany balances within the Group are eliminated

on consolidation in full.

Minority interests represent the interests of outside
shareholders not held by the Group in the results and

net assets or liabilities of the Company’s subsidiaries.

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICY AND
DISCLOSURES

The Group has adopted the following new and revised
HKFRSs for the first time for the current year's financial

statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 1
First-time Adoption of HKFRSs
and HKAS 27 Consolidated and

Separate Financial Statements —

HKFRS 1 and HKAS 27

Amendments

Cost of an Investment in a
Subsidiary, Jointly Controlled
Entity or Associate
HKFRS 2 Amendments Amendments to HKFRS 2 Share-
based Payment — Vesting

Conditions and Cancellations

ANNUAL REPORT 2010 #3&
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New Century Group Hong Kong Limited $tt 2 £E&EEER AT

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICY AND
DISCLOSURES (continued)

HKFRS 7 Amendments

HKFRS 8
HKFRS 8 Amendment*

HKAS 1 (Revised)

HKAS 18 Amendment*

HKAS 23 (Revised)
HKAS 32 and HKAS 1

Amendments

Amendments to HKFRS 7
Financial Instruments:
Disclosures — Improving
Disclosures about Financial
Instruments

Operating Segments

Amendment to HKFRS 8
Operating Segments —
Disclosure of information about
segment assets (early adopted)

Presentation of Financial
Statements

Amendment to Appendix to HKAS
18 Revenue — Determining
whether an entity is acting as a
principal or as an agent

Borrowing Costs

Amendments to HKAS 32
Financial Instruments:
Presentation and
HKAS 1 Presentation of
Financial Statements — Puttable
Financial Instruments and
Obligations Arising on

Liquidation

DR EA ACTHIN

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B ¥R R M5t
31 March 2010
—E-ZFE=A=1+—H

22 ERNEFTHERIKE (&)

BEMBRERNETHR (BF]) FRMBFREEMETR

[2BTE  RE/N
Bil AERELA

TAHEE
ERUBRE

EIEH:F #E7

E L
BEMBREAEER (B3] ERMFREEN SRR

[EERHINER -

BEIHEEERY
RE(EHRR)
BRGHENS R (BB  ZAFHA

BiEgs RS 18%
[RA KSR -
EFERNTENER
RESGTE

BEQIRNEDR(BET) FEAL
B EUFRR

ERGHEAEDR
[2BIA 5%/
REBGIENE S
[E2HFHZ
CHREp %7
TAREEEFIEI

EHEEIEANACH)
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New Century Group Hong Kong Limited $ritt 2B &8GR AT

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BA ¥R R M RE

31 March 2010
—E-ZF=A=1+—H

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICY AND
DISCLOSURES (continued)

HK(IFRIC)-Int 9 and
HKAS 39 Amendments

Amendments to HK(IFRIC)-Int 9
Reassessment of Embedded
Derivatives and HKAS 39
Financial Instruments:
Recognition and Measurement
— Embedded Derivatives

HK(IFRIC)-Int 13 Customer Loyalty Programmes

HK(IFRIC)-Int 15 Agreements for the Construction
of Real Estate

HK(IFRIC)-Int 16 Hedges of a Net Investment in a
Foreign Operation

HK(IFRIC)-Int 18 Transfers of Assets from
Customers (adopted from
1 July 2009)

Amendments to a number of

HKFRSs

Improvements to HKFRSs
(October 2008) **

* Included in Improvements to HKFRSs 2009 (as issued in
May 2009).

**  The Group adopted all the improvements to HKFRSs
issued in October 2008 except for the amendments
to HKFRS 5 Non-current assets Held for Sale and
Discontinued Operations — Plan to sell the controlling
interest in a subsidiary, which is effective for annual

periods beginning on or after 1 July 2009.
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New Century Group Hong Kong Limited $tt 2 £E&EEER AT

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BA 5 R R B s
31 March 2010
—E-ZF=-A=+—H
2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICY AND 22 FE R ETSHEREE (8)
DISCLOSURES (continued)
BTN X EESFEREIS (KE
Al)  BEANBHRELERE7IRRESR
B mEENES TN EME &
FRFESN - PR GE LTI RT M A S ET BY
BN E A HE LT BERKE
BEAMBEE MEARPBERED
GETER NI mEREF -

Other than as further explained below regarding the
impact of HKAS 1 (Revised), HKFRS 7 and HKFRS 8,
the adoption of these new and revised HKFRSs has
had no significant financial effect on these financial
statements and there have been no significant changes
to the accounting policies applied in these financial

statements.

(@) HKAS 1 (Revised) Presentation of Financial
Statements

(a) BEARETHERE 1R (BERT)
[Z AR
FEREFHEREIR (BERD H
MEMROIBEAMBPEAST

HKAS 1 (Revised) introduces changes in

the presentation and disclosures of financial

statements. The revised standard separates owner TETEE - IS8T ERE D T
and non-owner changes in equity. The statement BAMEHEB ANERZE - E=
of changes in equity includes only details of BHRABDEEBE AR HHEF

transactions with owners, with all non-owner
changes in equity presented as a single line. In
addition, this standard introduces the statement of
comprehensive income, with all items of income
and expense recognised in profit or loss, together
with all other items of recognised income and
expense recognised directly in equity, either in
one single statement, or in two linked statements.

The Group has elected to present two statements.

B MIFHE ARDEBHAES
BITHNER b o) - BEERIB[HE T
EEER  EE - mRAMK
R B HHKRTHMAEEERD

REWATFEZIER - AKFT
FEEEREDTRERNEMEKA
MAXIAR - NEBDKIRET
WMWK -
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New Century Group Hong Kong Limited $ritt 2B &8GR AT

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BA ¥R R M RE

31 March 2010
—E-ZF=A=1+—H

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICY AND
DISCLOSURES (continued)

(b) Amendments to HKFRS 7 Financial

22 E NS HRERIKE (&)

(b) ERMBHRELERNEIR/ £

Instruments: Disclosures — Improving
Disclosures about Financial Instruments

The HKFRS 7 Amendments require additional
disclosures about fair value measurement
and liquidity risk. Fair value measurements
related to items recorded at fair value are to be
disclosed by sources of inputs using a three-
level fair value hierarchy, by class, for all financial
instruments recognised at fair value. In addition, a
reconciliation between the beginning and ending
balance is now required for level 3 fair value
measurements, as well as significant transfers
between levels in the fair value hierarchy. The
amendments also clarify the requirements for
liquidity risk disclosures with respect to derivative
transactions and assets used for liquidity
management. The fair value measurement
disclosures are presented in note 34 to the
financial statements while the revised liquidity
risk disclosures are presented in note 35 to the

financial statements.
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New Century Group Hong Kong Limited $tt 2 £E&EEER AT

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICY AND
DISCLOSURES (continued)

(c) HKFRS 8 Operating Segments

HKFRS 8, which replaces HKAS 14 Segment
Reporting, specifies how an entity should report
information about its operating segments, based
on information about the components of the
entity that is available to the chief operating
decision maker for the purposes of allocating
resources to the segments and assessing their
performance. The standard also requires the
disclosure of information about the products
and services provided by the segments, the
geographical areas in which the Group operates,
and revenue from the Group’s major customers.
The Group concluded that the operating
segments determined in accordance with HKFRS
8 are the same as the business segments
previously identified under HKAS 14. These
revised disclosures, including the related revised
comparative information, are shown in note 4 to

the financial statements.

The Group has early adopted in these financial
statements the Amendment to HKFRS 8 issued
in Improvements to HKFRSs 2009 which clarifies
that segment assets need only to be reported
when those assets are included in measures that

are used by the chief operating decision maker.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B ¥5 R R MIGE
31 March 2010
TE-TFE-A=+—H

22 ERNEFTHERIKE (&)

(c) BRMBRMELER B8R /4

i)
BEEMBHREERNFESFIRAE
et ERNE14 5L
R EREINAREEED K
ER G EEENRBEIEEERR
EEZN  BARERBAKED D
B AERE DD B EIRIL
FHEE KRR - ZEREBZRKFE
B8 10 70 BB BT HE £ A9 2 an AN AR 75
AEEREWEMKEEEEE
BEENWANER - AEEBH
N REBEF BV B HREE
Al ZE 857 B FE W AR & 70 B B2 SE Al
RIEF B ERE145R TR
M0 ERIAR - LIEFT IR ER
(BREABKETHLLERER) &
REA SRR M 54 -

F

REBEC KA E LY mAIER
ERBMGR (=B FIRE
B —FZNFE)]ANTE
MiEmEERESHRE 2B - H
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Bt F5 3R R P E
31 March 2010

—E-ZF=A=1+—H
2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

The Group has not applied the following new and

revised HKFRSs, that have been issued but are not yet

effective, in these financial statements.

HKFRS 1 (Revised) First-time Adoption of Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards '

HKFRS 1 Amendments  Amendments to HKFRS 1 First-time
Adoption of Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards — Additional
Exemptions for First-time Adopters ?

HKFRS 2 Amendments  Amendments to HKFRS 2 Share-
based Payment — Group Cash-
settled Share-based Payment
Transactions 2

HKFRS 3 (Revised) Business Combinations

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments ©
HKAS 24 (Revised)
HKAS 27 (Revised)

Related Party Disclosures *

Consolidated and Separate Financial
Statements '

HKAS 32 Amendment ~ Amendment to HKAS 32 Financial
Instruments: Presentation —
Classification of Rights Issues *

HKAS 39 Amendment  Amendment to HKAS 39 Financial
Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement — Eligible Hedged

Items '
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New Century Group Hong Kong Limited $tt 2 £E&EEER AT

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG

KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

(continued)

HK(IFRIC)-Int 14
Amendments

HK(IFRIC)-Int 17

HK(IFRIC)-Int 19

Amendments to
HKFRS 5 included
in Improvements to
HKFRSs issued in

Amendments to HK(IFRIC)-Int 14
Prepayments of a Minimum

Funding Requirement *

Distributions of Non-cash Assets to
Owners '

Extinguishing Financial Liabilities with

Equity Instruments #

Amendments to HKFRS 5 Non-current
Assets Held for Sale and
Discontinued Operations — Plan to
Sell the Controlling Interest in a

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B ¥5 R R MIGE
31 March 2010

—E-ZFE=A=1+—H
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October 2008
HK Interpretation 4

subsidiary '
Leases — Determination of the Length
(Revised in
December 2009)

of Lease Term in respect of
Hong Kong Land Leases ?

Apart from the above, the HKICPA has issued
Improvements to HKFRSs 2009 which sets out
amendments to a number of HKFRSs primarily with
a view to removing inconsistencies and clarifying
wording. The amendments to HKFRS 2, HKAS 38,
HK(IFRIC)-Int 9 and HK(IFRIC)-Int 16 are effective for
annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2009 while
the amendments to HKFRS 5, HKFRS 8, HKAS 1, HKAS
7, HKAS 17, HKAS 36 and HKAS 39 are effective for
annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2010
although there are separate transitional provisions for

each standard or interpretation.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BA ¥R R M RE

31 March 2010
—E-ZF=A=1+—H

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(continued)

1

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July
2009

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2010

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
February 2010

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July
2010

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2011

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1

January 2013

The Group is in the process of making an assessment

of the impact of these new and revised HKFRSs upon

initial application. So far, the Group considers that

except for the adoption of HK Interpretation 4 may

result in changes in accounting policies, these new

and revised HKFRSs are unlikely to have a significant

impact on the Group’s results of operations and

financial position.
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New Century Group Hong Kong Limited $tt 2 £E&EEER AT

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES
Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an entity whose financial and operating
policies the Company controls, directly or indirectly, so

as to obtain benefits from its activities.

The results of subsidiaries are included in the
Company’s income statement to the extent of
dividends received and receivable. The Company's
interests in subsidiaries are stated at cost less any

impairment losses.

Joint ventures

A joint venture is an entity set up by contractual
arrangement, whereby the Group and other parties
undertake an economic activity. The joint venture
operates as a separate entity in which the Group and

the other parties have an interest.

The joint venture agreement between the venturers
stipulates the capital contributions of the joint
venture parties, the duration of the joint venture
and the basis on which the assets are to be realised
upon its dissolution. The profits and losses from the
joint venture's operations and any distributions of
surplus assets are shared by the venturers, either in
proportion to their respective capital contributions,
or in accordance with the terms of the joint venture

agreement.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BA ¥R R M RE

31 March 2010
—E-ZF=A=1+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Joint ventures (continued)

A joint venture is treated as:

(a

(®)

©

(d

a subsidiary, if the Group has unilateral control,

directly or indirectly, over the joint venture;

a jointly-controlled entity, if the Group does not
have unilateral control, but has joint control,
directly or indirectly, over the joint venture;

an associate, if the Group does not have
unilateral or joint control, but holds, directly or
indirectly, generally not less than 20% of the
joint venture's registered capital and is in a
position to exercise significant influence over

the joint venture; or

an equity investment accounted for in
accordance with HKAS 39, if the Group holds,
directly or indirectly, less than 20% of the joint
venture's registered capital and has neither
joint control of, nor is in a position to exercise

significant influence over, the joint venture.
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New Century Group Hong Kong Limited $tt 2 £E&EEER AT

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when
annual impairment testing for an asset is required
(other than inventories, deferred tax assets,
financial assets and investment properties), the
asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. An asset's
recoverable amount is the higher of the asset's or
cash-generating unit's value in use and its fair value
less costs to sell, and is determined for an individual
asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows
that are largely independent of those from other assets
or groups of assets, in which case the recoverable
amount is determined for the cash-generating unit to

which the asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying
amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows
are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific
to the asset. An impairment loss is charged to the
income statement in the period in which it arises in
those expense categories consistent with the function
of the impaired asset, unless the asset is carried at
a revalued amount, in which case the impairment
loss is accounted for in accordance with the relevant

accounting policy for that revalued asset.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Bt F5 3R R P E

31 March 2010

—E-ZF=A=1+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING Q4T EESTHEBE (F)
POLICIES (continued)
Impairment of non-financial assets FEMEEZRME (&)

(continued)
REREMREGTEES B EMAH

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting

period as to whether there is any indication that KETRBERRZBEBETNBT
previously recognised impairment losses may no FEHAIREE R - MEBRZEFEDR

Al fhat AT @ RER - AEERINE

longer exist or may have decreased. If such an

indication exists, the recoverable amount is estimated.
A previously recognised impairment loss of an asset
other than goodwill is reversed only if there has
been a change in the estimates used to determine
the recoverable amount of that asset, but not to an
amount higher than the carrying amount that would

have been determined (net of any depreciation/

EEERWE KRR 2 A EH T AR E
- @ERRZEEREBEEER(TE

EEE) T erdE RN EEFE
WAREERRDREEE  BREKE
TEERREEE 2 KREE (FNRE
T H) XHEZREEE
ERAELRYBEZRER  RIEE

ENZEGEYER  ERERLT &
HOREEEeRSAREEEEZES

impairment loss is credited to the income statement in St BERDIER -

amortisation) had no impairment loss been recognised

for the asset in prior years. A reversal of such an

the period in which it arises, unless the asset is carried
at a revalued amount, in which case the reversal of the
impairment loss is accounted for in accordance with

the relevant accounting policy for that revalued asset.

Related parties EBEAL
A party is considered to be related to the Group if: ETHBERT » —BATEZHEKE AR
SEzEBEEAL

() ZATEEXMEEB @A
ERNMAL s DEGARER - =
E'Jﬁ’ili B - SR EEZE

(a) the party, directly or indirectly through one or
more intermediaries, (i) controls, is controlled

by, or is under common control with, the Group;

(i) has an interest in the Group that gives it HEES : (DVEBEAER 2
significant influence over the Group; or (iii) has o @EZ%‘%“T$’§I??@E§7($Z
joint control over the Group; 2 k(i FERIZEHAEE

(b) the party is an associate; (b) ZEALTREBE QT

(c) the party is a jointly-controlled entity; (0) ZATRILREEHIEE:
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Related parties (continued)

(d) the party is a member of the key management

personnel of the Group or its parent;

(e) the party is a close member of the family of any

individual referred to in (a) or (d);

(f) the party is an entity that is controlled, jointly
controlled or significantly influenced by or for
which significant voting power in such entity
resides with, directly or indirectly, any individual

referred to in (d) or (e); or

(g) the party is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of the employees of the Group, or of

any entity that is a related party of the Group.

Property, plant and equipment and
depreciation

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost or
valuation less accumulated depreciation and any
impairment losses. The cost of an item of property,
plant and equipment comprises its purchase price and
any directly attributable costs of bringing the asset
to its working condition and location for its intended
use. Expenditure incurred after items of property,
plant and equipment have been put into operation,
such as repairs and maintenance, is normally charged
to the income statement in the period in which it is
incurred. In situations where the recognition criteria
are satisfied, the expenditure for a major inspection
is capitalised in the carrying amount of the asset as a
replacement. Where significant parts of property, plant
and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals,
the Group recognises such parts as individual assets

with specific useful lives and depreciation.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BA ¥R R M RE

31 March 2010
—E-ZF=A=1+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Property, plant and equipment and
depreciation (continued)

Valuations are performed frequently enough to ensure
that the fair value of a revalued asset does not differ
materially from its carrying amount. Changes in the
value of property, plant and equipment are dealt with
as movements in the cruise ship revaluation reserve. If
the total of this reserve is insufficient to cover a deficit,
on an individual asset basis, the excess of the deficit
is charged to the income statement. Any subsequent
revaluation surplus is credited to the income statement
to the extent of the deficit previously charged. On
disposal of a revalued asset, the relevant portion of the
cruise ship revaluation reserve realised in respect of
previous valuations is transferred to retained profits as

a movement in reserves.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to
write off the cost or valuation of each item of property,
plant and equipment to its residual value over its
estimated useful life. The principal annual rates used
for this purpose are as follows:
Medium-term leasehold Over the remaining
office premises lease terms
in Hong Kong
and hotel properties
in Indonesia
Leasehold improvements Over the remaining
lease terms
Furniture, fixtures and 10% to 33'/,%

equipment

QAT EESTHEBE (#)
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HMEEZAVFEEZAKREEILE
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GREBRETEAEEEAM RER
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HEZEFNGEENE - FAEMAZ
EFEFRMT

Motor vehicles

Cruise ships

ANNUAL REPORT 2010 #3&

20% to 25%
8% to 9%

RHEAEE 2 BFREE
BEWANEME FH
K ENJE O JE ¥ 5

HEWFEEE RFREE

& Hf

Rt KE 10%Z%33"/,%
K &

A 209% % 25%

R im 8%Z9%



New Century Group Hong Kong Limited $tt 2B &8GR AT

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Property, plant and equipment and
depreciation (continued)

Drydocking costs represent major inspection and
overhaul costs and are included in cruise ships
and depreciated to reflect the consumption of
benefits, which are to be replaced or restored by the

subsequent drydocking generally every two years.

Where parts of an item of property, plant and
equipment have different useful lives, the cost or
valuation of that item is allocated on a reasonable
basis among the parts and each part is depreciated

separately.

Residual values, useful lives and the depreciation
method are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at

least at each financial year end.

An item of property, plant and equipment and any
significant part initially recognised is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits
are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss
on disposal or retirement recognised in the income
statement in the year the asset is derecognised is the
difference between the net sales proceeds and the

carrying amount of the relevant asset.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BA ¥R R M RE

31 March 2010
—E-ZF=A=1+—H

Investment properties are interests in land and
buildings held to earn rental income and/or for capital
appreciation, rather than for use in the production
or supply of goods or services or for administrative
purposes; or for sale in the ordinary course of
business. These properties are measured initially at
cost, including transaction costs. Subsequent to initial
recognition, investment properties are stated at fair
value, which reflects market conditions at the end of

the reporting period.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair values
of investment properties are included in the income

statement in the year in which they arise.

Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of
an investment property are recognised in the income

statement in the year of the retirement or disposal.

Deposit paid to acquire property under
development

A property under development is a project in which the
Group has an interest either as the developer or as the
ultimate owner of the completed property. An interest
in a property under development is stated at cost or
carrying amount at the date of change of the intended

use of the property, less any impairment losses.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Leases

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks
of ownership of assets remain with the lessor are
accounted for as operating leases. Where the Group is
the lessor, assets leased by the Group under operating
leases are included in non-current assets, and rentals
receivable under the operating leases are credited to
the income statement on the straight-line basis over
the lease terms. Where the Group is the lessee, rentals
payable under the operating leases are charged to the
income statement on the straight-line basis over the

lease terms.

Prepaid land premiums under operating leases are
initially stated at cost and subsequently recognised on

the straight-line basis over the lease terms.

Investments and other financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets within the scope of HKAS 39 are
classified as financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss, loans and receivables and available-
for-sale financial assets, as appropriate. The Group
determines the classification of its financial assets at
initial recognition. When financial assets are recognised
initially, they are measured at fair value, plus, in the
case of investments not at fair value through profit or

loss, directly attributable transaction costs.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets
are recognised on the trade date, that is, the date
that the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset.
Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or
sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets
within the period generally established by regulation or

convention in the marketplace.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets
(continued)

Initial recognition and measurement (continued)
The Group’s financial assets include cash and cash
equivalents, bank deposits, trade and other receivables,
equity investments at fair value through profit or loss,

available-for-sale investments, and an amount due

from a related company.

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial assets

depends on their classification as follows:

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
include financial assets held for trading. Financial
assets are classified as held for trading if they are
acquired for the purpose of sale in the near term.
This category includes derivative financial instruments
entered into by the Group that are not designated as
hedging instruments in hedge relationships as defined
by HKAS 39. Financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss are carried in the statement of financial position
at fair value with changes in fair value recognised in
the income statement. These net fair value changes
do not include any dividends on these financial assets,

which are recognised in accordance with the policy set

out for “Revenue recognition” below.
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New Century Group Hong Kong Limited $rtt 2B & EEMR AT

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets
(continued)

Subsequent measurement (continued)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

(continued)

The Group evaluates its financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss (held for trading) to assess
whether the intent to sell them in the near term is
still appropriate. When the Group is unable to trade
these financial assets due to inactive markets and
management’s intent to sell them in the foreseeable
future significantly changes, the Group may elect to
reclassify these financial assets in rare circumstances.
The reclassification from financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss to loans and receivables,
available-for-sale financial assets or held-to-maturity
investments depends on the nature of the assets.
This evaluation does not affect any financial assets
designated at fair value through profit or loss using the

fair value option at designation.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that
are not quoted in an active market. After initial
measurement, such assets are subsequently measured
at amortised cost using the effective interest rate
method less any allowance for impairment. Amortised
cost is calculated taking into account any discount or
premium on acquisition and includes fees or costs
that are an integral part of the effective interest rate.
The effective interest rate amortisation is included in
finance income in the income statement. The loss
arising from impairment is recognised in the income

statement in finance costs.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BA ¥R R M RE

31 March 2010
—E-ZF=A=1+—H

(continued)
Subsequent measurement (continued)
Available-for-sale financial investments

Available-for-sale financial investments are non-
derivative financial assets in unlisted equity securities.
Equity investments classified as available for sale are
those which are neither classified as held for trading

nor designated at fair value through profit or loss.

After initial recognition, available-for-sale financial
investments are subsequently measured at fair value,
with unrealised gains or losses recognised as other
comprehensive income in the available-for-sale
investment valuation reserve until the investment is
derecognised, at which time the cumulative gain or
loss is recognised in the income statement in other
income, or until the investment is determined to be
impaired, at which time the cumulative gain or loss is
recognised in the income statement and removed from
the available-for-sale investment valuation reserve.
Interest and dividends earned are reported as interest
income and dividend income, respectively and are
recognised in the income statement as other income
in accordance with the policies set out for “Revenue

recognition” below.

When the fair value of unlisted equity securities cannot
be reliably measured because (a) the variability
in the range of reasonable fair value estimates is
significant for that investment or (b) the probabilities
of the various estimates within the range cannot be
reasonably assessed and used in estimating fair value,
such securities are stated at cost less any impairment

losses.
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New Century Group Hong Kong Limited $tt 2B &8GR AT

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets
(continued)

Subsequent measurement (continued)
Available-for-sale financial investments (continued)

The Group evaluates its available-for-sale financial
assets whether the ability and intention to sell them
in the near term are still appropriate. When the
Group is unable to trade these financial assets due
to inactive markets and management's intent to do
so significantly changes in the foreseeable future, the
Group may elect to reclassify these financial assets
in rare circumstances. Reclassification to loans and
receivables is permitted when the financial assets meet
the definition of loans and receivables and the Group
has the intent and ability to hold these assets for the
foreseeable future or to maturity. The reclassification to
the held-to-maturity category is permitted only when
the entity has the ability and intent to hold until the

maturity date of the financial asset.

For a financial asset reclassified out of the available-for-
sale category, any previous gain or loss on that asset
that has been recognised in equity is amortised to
profit or loss over the remaining life of the investment
using the effective interest rate. Any difference
between the new amortised cost and the expected
cash flows is also amortised over the remaining life of
the asset using the effective interest rate. If the asset
is subsequently determined to be impaired, then the
amount recorded in equity is reclassified to the income

statement.
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The Group assesses at the end of each reporting
period whether there is any objective evidence that
a financial asset or a group of financial assets is
impaired. A financial asset or a group of financial
assets is deemed to be impaired if, and only if, there
is objective evidence of impairment as a result of
one or more events that has occurred after the initial
recognition of the asset (an incurred “loss event”)
and that loss event has an impact on the estimated
future cash flows of the financial asset or the group
of financial assets that can be reliably estimated.
Evidence of impairment may include indications that a
debtor or a group of debtors is experiencing significant
financial difficulty, default or delinquency in interest
or principal payments, the probability that they will
enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation and
observable data indicating that there is a measurable
decrease in the estimated future cash flows, such
as changes in arrears or economic conditions that

correlate with defaults.

Financial assets carried at amortised cost

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the
Group first assesses individually whether objective
evidence of impairment exists for financial assets
that are individually significant, or collectively for
financial assets that are not individually significant. If
the Group determines that no objective evidence of
impairment exists for an individually assessed financial
asset, whether significant or not, it includes the asset
in a group of financial assets with similar credit risk
characteristics and collectively assesses them for
impairment. Assets that are individually assessed for
impairment and for which an impairment loss is, or
continues to be, recognised are not included in a

collective assessment of impairment.
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New Century Group Hong Kong Limited $tt 2B &8GR AT

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Financial assets carried at amortised cost
(continued)

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss
has been incurred, the amount of the loss is measured
as the difference between the asset's carrying amount
and the present value of estimated future cash flows
(excluding future credit losses that have not been
incurred). The present value of the estimated future
cash flows is discounted at the financial asset’s original
effective interest rate (i.e., the effective interest rate
computed at initial recognition). If a loan has a variable
interest rate, the discount rate for measuring any

impairment loss is the current effective interest rate.

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced either
directly or through the use of an allowance account
and the amount of the loss is recognised in the
income statement. Interest income continues to
be accrued on the reduced carrying amount and is
accrued using the rate of interest used to discount the
future cash flows for the purpose of measuring the
impairment loss. Loans and receivables together with
any associated allowance are written off when there is

no realistic prospect of future recovery.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the estimated
impairment loss increases or decreases because of an
event occurring after the impairment was recognised,
the previously recognised impairment loss is increased
or reduced by adjusting the allowance account. If
a future write-off is later recovered, the recovery is

credited to the income statement.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BA ¥R R M RE

31 March 2010
—E-ZF=A=1+—H

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss
has been incurred on an unquoted equity instrument
that is not carried at fair value because its fair value
cannot be reliably measured, the amount of the loss
is measured as the difference between the asset's
carrying amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows discounted at the current market rate
of return for a similar financial asset. Impairment losses

on these assets are not reversed.

Available-for-sale financial investments

For available-for-sale financial investments, the Group
assesses at the end of each reporting period whether
there is objective evidence that an investment or a

group of investments is impaired.

If an available-for-sale asset is impaired, an amount
comprising the difference between its cost (net of
any principal payment and amortisation) and its
current fair value, less any impairment loss previously
recognised in income statement, is removed from
other comprehensive income and recognised in the

income statement.
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New Century Group Hong Kong Limited $rtt 2B & EEMR AT

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Available-for-sale financial investments
(continued)

In the case of equity investments classified as
available for sale, objective evidence would include a
significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of an
investment below its cost. The determination of what
is “significant” or “prolonged” requires judgement.
“Significant” is evaluated against the original cost of
the investment and “prolonged” against the period
in which the fair value has been below its original
cost. Where there is evidence of impairment, the
cumulative loss — measured as the difference between
the acquisition cost and the current fair value, less
any impairment loss on that investment previously
recognised in the income statement — is removed
from other comprehensive income and recognised in
the income statement. Impairment losses on equity
instruments classified as available for sale are not
reversed through income statement. Increases in their
fair value after impairment are recognised directly in

other comprehensive income.

Derecognition of financial assets
A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a
financial asset or part of a group of similar financial

assets) is derecognised when:

«  the rights to receive cash flows from the asset

have expired;
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

QAFTEESTHEBE (F)

POLICIES (continued)
Derecognition of financial assets (continued)

< the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash
flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation
to pay the received cash flows in full without
material delay to a third party under a “pass-
through” arrangement; and either (a) the Group
has transferred substantially all the risks and
rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks
and rewards of the asset, but has transferred

control of the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive
cash flows from an asset or has entered into a “pass-
through” arrangement, and has neither transferred nor
retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the
asset nor transferred control of the asset, the asset
is recognised to the extent of the Group's continuing
involvement in the asset. In that case, the Group also
recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset
and the associated liability are measured on a basis
that reflects the rights and obligations that the Group

has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a
guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the
lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and
the maximum amount of consideration that the Group

could be required to repay.
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New Century Group Hong Kong Limited $rtt 2B & EEMR AT

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Financial liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities within the scope of HKAS 39 are
classified as financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss, loans and borrowings, or as derivatives
designated as hedging instruments in an effective
hedge, as appropriate. The Group determines
the classification of its financial liabilities at initial

recognition.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair
value and in the case of loans and borrowings, plus

directly attributable transaction costs.

The Group's financial liabilities include trade payables,
other payables and deposits received, interest-bearing
bank loans, a mortgage loan advanced from a fellow
subsidiary, loans advanced from minority shareholders
of the Group's subsidiaries and an amount due to a

related company.

Subsequent measurement

The measurement of financial liabilities depends on

their classification as follows:

Loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and
borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised
cost, using the effective interest method unless the
effect of discounting would be immaterial, in which
case they are stated at cost. Gains and losses are
recognised in the income statement when the liabilities
are derecognised as well as through the effective

interest rate method amortisation process.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BA ¥R R M RE

31 March 2010
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discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs
that are an integral part of the effective interest rate.
The effective interest rate amortisation is included in

finance costs in the income statement.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation

under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by
another from the same lender on substantially
different terms, or the terms of an existing liability
are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as a derecognition of the
original liability and a recognition of a new liability,
and the difference between the respective carrying

amounts is recognised in the income statement.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset
and the net amount is reported in the statement
of financial position if, and only if, there is currently
enforceable legal right to offset the recognised
amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net
basis, or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities

simultaneously.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Fair value of financial instruments

The fair value of financial instruments that are traded
in active markets is determined by reference to quoted
market prices or dealer price quotations (bid price
for long positions and ask price for short positions),
without any deduction for transaction costs. For
financial instruments where there is no active market,
the fair value is determined using appropriate valuation
techniques. These techniques include using recent
arm’s length market transactions; reference to the
current market value of another instrument which is
substantially the same; and a discounted cash flow

analysis.

Inventories

Inventories, comprising food and beverage for the
hotel operations, are stated at the lower of cost and
net realisable value. Cost is determined on the first-
in, first-out basis. Net realisable value is based on
estimated selling prices less any estimated costs to be

incurred to completion and disposal.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on
hand and demand deposits, and short term highly
liquid investments that are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash, are subject to an insignificant
risk of changes in value, and have a short maturity
of generally within three months when acquired, less
bank overdrafts which are repayable on demand and

form an integral part of the Group's cash management.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the purpose of the statements of financial position,
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand
and at banks, including term deposits, which are not

restricted as to use.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income
tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss
is recognised outside profit or loss, either in other

comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities for the current and
prior periods are measured at the amount expected
to be recovered from or paid to the taxation
authorities, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period, taking into consideration
interpretations and practices prevailing in the countries

in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on
all temporary differences at the end of the reporting
period between the tax bases of assets and liabilities
and their carrying amounts for financial reporting

purposes.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable

temporary differences, except:

where the deferred tax liability arises from
goodwill or the initial recognition of an asset or
liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and, at the time of the transaction,
affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable

profit or loss; and

in respect of taxable temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries,
associates and interests in joint ventures, where
the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences can be controlled and it is probable
that the temporary differences will not reverse in

the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible

temporary differences, carryforward of unused tax

credits and unused tax losses, to the extent that it is

probable that taxable profit will be available against

which the deductible temporary differences, and the

carryforward of unused tax credits and unused tax

losses can be utilised, except:

where the deferred tax asset relating to the
deductible temporary differences arises from
the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination
and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither

the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B F5 R R M5t
31 March 2010
—E-ZFE=A=1+—H

QAFTEETHEME (&)

Fi 1S BL (4)
A B TE £ 5 T 94 P G SRR
RER - A TBRI -

s HWHRBMEBXNET —HIEXHE
HREBVTHER 2 EEXARE
IRy 2 A T 0 32 5 B I M B & At
Mk FE AR B a K Sk B IR R 2
ZIEEFIABE &

s BMBBANMBARMBERRZ
&é&%EAM“TV\FEZ
ERTEREZERMS - HERE
%EZ%E%WTMT%&ﬁh
ZRABAIET &N AR R R K
[ o

BEREEESMAETRERER
RARWE A HBEE R EREEA 2
WIBEE 2 S EHR - EAB R B
B 5 B R B v ) AT Eh A DA 8 BT 00
EREZENAREEIAZBHIEER L KK
WBRAZMBEBEZEERAR - AT
BRI

o MERNET - IHIFEBEHZIHK
VLR EEXBERESM
722 5 B I 4 1 & 50k A SRR
BaMskEEEReE G@A]
HREREZE2BREHIBEEE
53

ANNUAL REPORT 2010 #3&

91



New Century Group Hong Kong Limited $ritt 2B &8GR AT

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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e in respect of deductible temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries,
associates and interests in joint ventures, deferred
tax assets are only recognised to the extent that
it is probable that the temporary differences will
reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable
profit will be available against which the temporary

differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and reduced to
the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of
the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised
deferred tax assets are reassessed at the end of each
reporting period and are recognised to the extent that
it has become probable that sufficient taxable profit
will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax

asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the
tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when
the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based
on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted
or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting

period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are
offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off
current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the
deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the

same taxation authority.

ANNUAL REPORT 2010 #3&

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING QAT ESTHBEEE (&)
POLICIES (continued)
Income tax (continued) Frig®t (4)

s MRMBARNKBEARZKE
NFiE & & RmEmESE 2 A
BEREZEREMS - EEMBEEE
EAERHERBAERAIALR
A B N2 B S 5 8 R B it K R B
RAREEREZRZQRER -

BRIETRIAE E Z FREEN SE®R S H
Kiged  YHBMETBAIER BHE

AREB AR o REER ZIRLERIAE
ERESEHREBREHNGE - LA
BEB B SRR B )i MR P A S Bl 0 iR
FER TR B 2 YR O B T 7R

BERBEERBBENEERER N
BEBEZHEZENERAME 1%
RBERARSHEXERE HIE 2
R (RMBGED)GE -

M FEAEANITEANRRIAE EE
HAHIR AR EZER - MiELER A
HE-ERNEE LR —RATEEE
B ARERAEEMELERARE
Al B AR e
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the

economic benefits will flow to the Group and when

the revenue can be measured reliably, on the following

bases:

C)

(®)

©

(d)

©)

®

®

cruise ship charter service income, on a time
proportion basis over the terms as set out in the

agreements governing such activities;

slot machine income, on the sharing basis over
the total cash receipts from the slot machines

placed on the cruise ships;

rental income, on a time proportion basis over the

lease terms;

income from hotel operations, when the services

are rendered;

interest income, on an accrual basis using
the effective interest method by applying the
rate that discounts the estimated future cash
receipts through the expected life of the financial
instrument to the net carrying amount of the

financial asset;

dividend income, when the shareholders’ right to

receive payment has been established; and

realised fair value gains or losses on securities
trading, on a trade date basis, whilst unrealised
fair value gains or losses, on change in fair value

at the end of the reporting period.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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The Company operates a share option scheme for the
purpose of providing incentives and rewards to eligible
participants who contribute to the success of the
Group's operations. Employees (including directors) of
the Group receive remuneration in the form of share-
based payment transactions, whereby employees
render services as consideration for equity instruments

("equity-settled transactions”).

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees
for grants after 7 November 2002 is measured by
reference to the fair value at the date at which they
are granted. The fair value is determined by an external
valuer using the binomial model, further details of

which are given in note 27.

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised,
together with a corresponding increase in equity, over
the period in which the performance and/or service
conditions are fulfilled. The cumulative expense
recognised for equity-settled transactions at the end
of each reporting period until the vesting date reflects
the extent to which the vesting period has expired and
the Group's best estimate of the number of equity
instruments that will ultimately vest. The charge or
credit to the income statement for a period represents
the movement in the cumulative expense recognised

as at the beginning and end of that period.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Employee benefits (continued)

No expense is recognised for awards that do not
ultimately vest, except for equity-settled transactions
where vesting is conditional upon a market or non-
vesting condition, which are treated as vesting
irrespective of whether or not the market or non-
vesting condition is satisfied, provided that all other

performance and/or service conditions are satisfied.

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are
modified, as a minimum an expense is recognised
as if the terms had not been modified, if the original
terms of the award are met. In addition, an expense is
recognised for any modification that increases the total
fair value of the share-based payment transaction, or is
otherwise beneficial to the employee as measured at

the date of modification.

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated
as if it had vested on the date of cancellation, and any
expense not yet recognised for the award is recognised
immediately. This includes any award where non-
vesting conditions within the control of either the
Group or the employee are not met. However, if a new
award is substituted for the cancelled award, and is
designated as a replacement award on the date that it
is granted, the cancelled and new awards are treated
as if they were a modification of the original award, as
described in the previous paragraph. All cancellations

of equity-settled transaction awards are treated equally.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as
additional share dilution in the computation of earnings

per share.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B ¥R R M RE
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The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefits scheme (the
“MPF Scheme"”) under the Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Ordinance for all of its employees.
Contributions are made based on a percentage of
the employees’ basic salaries and are charged to
the income statement as they become payable in
accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme. The
assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately from
those of the Group in an independently administered
fund. The Group’s employer contributions vest fully
with the employees when contributed into the MPF
Scheme, except for the Group’s employer voluntary
contributions, which are refunded to the Group
when the employee leaves employment prior to the
contributions vesting fully, in accordance with the rules
of the MPF Scheme.

Borrowing costs

All borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which
they are incurred. Borrowing costs consist of interest
and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with

the borrowing of funds.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Dividends

Final dividends proposed by the directors are classified
as a separate allocation of retained profits within
the equity section of the statement of the financial
position, until they have been approved by the
shareholders in a general meeting. When the dividends
has been approved by the shareholders and declared,

they are recognised as a liability.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed
and declared. Consequently, interim dividends are
recognised immediately as a liability when they are

proposed and declared.

Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars, which is the Company's functional
and presentation currency. Each entity in the Group
determines its own functional currency and items
included in the financial statements of each entity
are measured using that functional currency. Foreign
currency transactions recorded by the entities in the
Group are initially recorded using their respective
functional currency rates ruling at the dates of
the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at
the functional currency rates of exchange ruling at the
end of the reporting period. All differences are taken
to the income statement. Non-monetary items that
are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign
currency are translated using the exchange rates at
the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary
items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are
translated using the exchange rates at the date when

the fair value was determined.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING QAFTEETHEME (&)
POLICIES (continued)
Foreign currencies (continued) hitk (88)
The functional currencies of certain overseas aTHEIINNBRR e BB BB T
subsidiaries are currencies other than the Hong Kong AN EHE - R EEIR - 25 B8

RR

ZEERBESRBEPRRIIERR
BERARABZEINEY  MEERE
RFEMEFIERBERETT - A

dollar. As at the end of the reporting period, the

+

assets and liabilities of these entities are translated

into the presentation currency of the Company at

the exchange rates ruling at the end of the reporting
period and their income statement are translated into
Hong Kong dollars at the weighted average exchange
rates for the year. The resulting exchange differences

are recognised in other comprehensive income and

ErZEREZBREEREMEEKET
R WAE X ORBHHET RE o B
ERINEERE - BEZNEEIN
EBzEMmemEm 2 EKE g
Woah 2k PR

accumulated in the exchange fluctuation reserve.
On disposal of a foreign operation, the component
of other comprehensive income relating to that

particular foreign operation is recognised in the income

statement.
For the purpose of the consolidated statement of GBS REEMmMS  JFINKERD
cash flows, the cash flows of overseas subsidiaries A rReREeRa B EXR

BRERBTT - BINHEB AR R EBESF
EEMELEZRERERFREINEF
BERBERETT °

are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the exchange
rates ruling at the dates of the cash flows. Frequently
recurring cash flows of overseas subsidiaries which
arise throughout the year are translated into Hong
Kong dollars at the weighted average exchange rates

for the year.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group's financial statements
requires management to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts
of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the
disclosure of contingent liabilities, at the end of the
reporting period. However, uncertainty about these
assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes
that could require a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of the assets or liabilities affected in the

future.

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting
policies, management has made the following
judgements, apart from those involving estimations,
which have the most significant effect on the amounts

recognised in the financial statements:

Operating lease commitments — Group as lessor

The Group has entered into commercial property
leases on its investment property portfolio. The Group
has determined, based on an evaluation of the terms
and conditions of the arrangements, that it retains all
the significant risks and rewards of ownership of these

properties which are leased out on operating leases.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

Judgements (continued)

Classification between investment properties and
owner-occupied properties

The Group determines whether a property qualifies
as an investment property and has developed criteria
in making that judgement. Investment property is a
property held to earn rentals or for capital appreciation
or both. Therefore, the Group considers whether a
property generates cash flows largely independently
of the other assets held by the Group. The office
premises located in Hong Kong comprise a portion
that is held to earn rentals or for capital appreciation
and another portion that is held for administrative
purposes. As these portions could be sold separately,
the Group accounts for the portion held to earn rentals

separately as investment properties.

Income tax

The Group is engaged in the cruise ship chartering
business and accordingly may be subject to income
taxes in different jurisdictions depending on the routes
of the cruise ships and the operations of the relevant
companies. Significant judgement is required in
determining the provision for income taxes worldwide,
if any. The Group does not recognise any liability for
income tax based on management’s judgement that
the Group is not subject to income taxes of any of the
jurisdictions based on the existing routes of the cruise
ships and the operations of the relevant companies. In
addition, the management obtained indemnity letters
from tenants to confirm that all relevant tax exposure
of the Group’s cruise ships would be borne by the

tenants.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other
key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the
reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are

discussed below.

Estimation of fair value of investment properties
and cruise ships

The best evidence of fair value is current prices in an
active market of similar leases and other contracts.
In the absence of such information, the Group
determines the amount within a range of reasonable
fair value estimates. In making its judgement, the
Group considers information from fair market value by
reference to independent valuations. This conclusion
is supported by an independent professional appraiser
who was engaged by the Group during the year
to perform a valuation on the Group’s investment
properties and cruise ships. As at 31 March 2010,
the fair values of investment properties and cruise
ships amounted to HK$733,175,000 (2009:
HK$624,250,000) and HK$163,800,000 (2009:
HK$210,600,000), respectively, which were obtained

by reference to quoted second hand market prices.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)
Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all unused tax
losses to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profit will be available against which the losses can
be utilised. Significant management judgement is
required to determine the amount of deferred tax
assets that can be recognised, based upon the likely
timing and level of future taxable profits together with
future tax planning strategies. The gross deferred tax
asset relating to recognised tax losses at 31 March
2010 was HK$7,745,000 (2009: HK$16,943,000).
The amount of unrecognised tax losses at 31 March
2010 was HK$189,807,000 (2009: HK$182,122,000).
Further details are contained in note 25 to the financial

statements.

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

For management purposes, the Group is organised into
business units based on their businesses and services

and has four reportable operating segments as follows:

(a) the cruise ship charter services segment engages
in the provision of chartering services of cruise

ships;

(b) the hotel operations segment engages in the

operation of a hotel property in Indonesia;

(c) the property investments segment invests in
prime office space and commercial shops for its

rental income potential; and

(d) the securities trading segment engages in the
trading of marketable securities for short-term

investment purposes.
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OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION
(continued)

Management monitors the results of its operating
segments separately for the purpose of making
decisions about resources allocation and performance
assessment. Segment performance is evaluated
based on reportable segment profit/(loss), which
is a measure of adjusted profit/(loss) before tax.
The adjusted profit/(loss) before tax is measured
consistently with the Group's profit/(loss) before tax
except that interest income, finance costs, fair value
gains/(losses) from the Group's financial instruments
as well as head office and corporate expenses are

excluded from such measurement.

Segment assets exclude deferred tax assets, bank
deposits, pledged deposits, cash and cash equivalents,
and other unallocated head office and corporate assets

as these assets are managed on a group basis.

Segment liabilities exclude interest-bearing bank and
other borrowings, tax payable, deferred tax liabilities
and other unallocated head office and corporate
liabilities as these liabilities are managed on a group

basis.

There were no intersegment sales and transfers during
the year (2009: Nil).

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B ¥R R Mt
31 March 2010
—E-ZF=A=1+—H

meniER (&)
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New Century Group Hong Kong Limited $ritt @B &8GR AT

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BAFS 4R R BT AT
31 March 2010
104 -=z-=z£=A=+-~
4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4, RBESIXER (F)
(continued)
Group i
Cruise ship
charter services  Hotel operations  Property investments  Securities trading Total
BRBERE BELE NERE R5EE At
2000 2009 2010 2009 2000 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009
CE-BECTTNFCR-BECRTNFIE-BF TN IR-BECRTNFIE-BE TN
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR ThEr TEn ThEx TR TEr TEx TEr TEn TEn
Segment revenue: AHRA:
Income from external customers — KESNAEPZMA 141167 221823 23227 28089 34793 29857 130253 (60621) 329,440 219148
Other income EfplA 143 17 1413 9884 1140 1627 - - 269% 11528

Totel revenue and other income MARZMMART 141310 221840 24640 37973 35933 31484 130,253 (60,621) 332,136 230676

Segment results PEEY 0447 101372 (4985) (6015) 133374 (93866) 129990 (60804) 288826 (59313)
Reconciliation: HE

Interest income FaMA 721 4338
Unallocated gains Ao EKE 189 30
Corporate and other EERAM

unallocated expenses AARAR (17.883) (11,954)
Finance costs BERK (5789)  (7186)

Profit/(loss) before tax REaERN/ (B8) 266,070 (74,085)
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OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

New Century Group Hong Kong Limited $tt 2B &8GR AT

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B F5 R R M5t

31 March 2010

—E-ZFE=A=1+—H

4. REDTHER (&)

(continued)
Group EH
Cruise ship
charter services  Hotel operations  Property investments  Securities trading Total
BRRERK BELE NERE R5EE At
2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009 2000 2009
CE-RE _RENFCR-BF _TRNFCR-BE _SENECE-3F CRENFCR-BE NG
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS 000
Thn Thr TEx TEn TEx TEx TREr TExr TEn  TEn
Segment assets PHEE 192,880 234216 32,795 30950 752,017 644641 426385 225398 1,404,077 1135205
Reconciliation: HE:
Corporate and SERER
other unallocated assets FOLEE 253351 307873
Total assets BeE 1,657,428 1,443,078
Segment liabilities PH8E 19725 23793 24719 21442 12519 11,929 13 5 56976 57169
Reconciliation: HE:
Corporate and other SERAM
unallocated liabiliies APERE 457219 401,118
Total libiltes 2aR 514,195 458,287
Other segment information: B HER
Depreciation and amortisation MEREH 19420 24109 4192 3749 1224 12% - - 2483% 29,154
Impaiment of items of property, ~ #1% * FR
plant and equipment RAEERZHE - - 210 58%7 - - - - 210 5837
Fair value losses/(gains) on RENZEZAT
investment properties BEEE/ (h&) - - - - (104,740) 102,000 - - (104,740) 102,000
Fair value losses on cruise BENTEE
ships charged to the EERUEERN
income statement ik 64174 56970 - - - - - - 64174 56970
Revaluation deficit/(surplus) BANAENE
of office premises LERER/
in Hong Kong (k=) - - - -8 (4 - -8 @)
Fair value losses/ (gains) EHERELT
on equity investments at BE5IR RiE
fair value through profit REZRTEE
or loss, net BB/ (k&) 58 - - - - - - (105,600) 43,965 (105,600) 43,965
Capital expenditure* AR 36,794 - 1,046 2449 3 83 - - 38 2532
*  Capital expenditure consists of additions to property, * BAXHEBEME - BEMREBNIE

plant and equipment.

on e
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B ¥R R M RE

31 March 2010
—E-ZF=A=1+—H

4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION
(continued)

Geographical information

(@)

(b)

Revenue and other income from external

4.

mesaER (&)

(a) KEINREP Z WA KA

customers A
2010 2009
—E-TF —_ZTTAF
HK$'000 HK$ 000
FET FET
Hong Kong BB 144,652 (40,116)

Southeast Asia except R IE

Hong Kong (TEEEB) 187,484 270,792
332,136 230,676

The revenue information above is based on the

location of the customers.

Non-current assets

LA B AR P PR R 134

Eig o

(b) FmEEE

2010 2009

—E-=F —_ETNF

HK$' 000 HK$' 000

FET FET

Hong Kong BB 505,829 421,663
Southeast Asia except o

Hong Kong (TBEFB) 432,978 454,519

938,807 876,182

The non-current asset information above is based
on the location of assets and excludes financial

instruments and deferred tax assets.
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New Century Group Hong Kong Limited $rtt 2B &EEEMRA T

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION
(continued)

Information about a major customer

Revenue of approximately HK$107,068,000 (2009:
HK$161,009,000) was derived from provision of cruise
ship charter services to a single customer. In the prior
year, revenue of approximately HK$44,891,000 was
derived from provision of cruise ship charter services to

another customer.

REVENUE AND OTHER INCOME

Revenue, which is also the Group’s turnover,
represents cruise ship charter service income, slot
machine income, income from hotel operations, gross
rental income received, receivable from investment
properties and income from securities trading during

the year.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B F5 R Rt
31 March 2010
—E-ZFE=A=1+—H

mensiER (&)

Al

FEEFER

I A #9107,068,0008 7T (Z 2T 1
£ : 161,009,000 7T) 1S EME —
EPRHEBHREERS - NEF - K
A#)44,891,0004 T 715 B M5 —AL
EPRHBmMEERE -

WA RE AU A

WA (g ARz & %8m) B
FRZBHAEREEA - AT K
A BIEEEBA - BREMEZ B
RERESRARESEERAR
B
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New Century Group Hong Kong Limited $ritt @B &8GR AT

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BA ¥R R M RE

31 March 2010
—E-ZF=A=1+—H

REVENUE AND OTHER INCOME (continued)

5.

An analysis of revenue and other income is as follows:

5. WARHEMYA (&)

WA R E MW AZDHT

Group
AEE
2010 2009
—2F5 —"ZTThF
HK$' 000 HK$' 000
THExT FHET
Revenue WA
Cruise ship charter service TR ¥m 78 & R 7
income PN 63,229 124,375
Slot machine income A A 77,938 97,448
Income from hotel operations B Ji &8 & WA 23,227 28,089
Gross rental income e U A 4258 34,793 29,857
Gains/(losses) on trading of #HEEEARE B
equity investments at BREATEE
fair value through profit or PIBR 2 I IR E
loss held for trading ZEEHQ = (E518) 17,379 (19,681)
Fair value gains/(losses) on BB EZHE A FEE
equity investments at PIRRZ Ix IR E 2
fair value through profit or N EEYE
loss, net (EE) - F8 105,600 (43,965)
Dividend income from equity #H1EFEEA®RER
investments at fair value Bmi AV EE
through profit or loss PR 2 IRIERE
held for trading 2 R B A 7,274 3,025
329,440 219,148
Other income H b g A
Bank interest income 7R B UL A 727 4,338
Waiver from creditors and a  f&# A & — R EE QA
related company on long HERARREED
outstanding trade payables FETE SRR = 7,437
Others Hh 2,885 4117
3,612 15,892
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New Century Group Hong Kong Limited $tt 2B &8GR AT

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

EEEE R EE

31 March 2010

—E-ZFE=A=1+—H

6. PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE TAX BRELAER, (E8)
The Group's profit/(loss) before tax is arrived at after REBZBTFHDER, 7 (F1E) 240
charging/(crediting): B (GTA) -
Group
rEE
2010 2009
—E-ZF —ZEFENEF
Note HK$' 000 HK$' 000
ki FET FA&T
Depreciation e 13 24,429 28,743
Auditors’ remuneration %2 B RN BN & 1,300 1,300
Employee benefit expense EERAMAXZ
(including directors’ (BfEMEeZ
remuneration in note 8): EEMWE) :
Wages and salaries TENEH® 16,209 19,591
Pension scheme BRIKEET S
contributions HX 609 670
Total staff costs B T A4 E 16,818 20,261
Minimum lease payments TH RIEFLEE
under operating leases on HEKEHES
land and buildings KR 233 170
Foreign exchange HEH =R
differences, net FHER (8,474) 27,595
Rental income on investment & & ¥ & WA
properties less direct BEERLERX
operating expenses of 1,773,000/ 7T
HK$1,773,000 —ETNF
(2009: HK$1,813,000) 1,813,0005% 7T) (33,020) (28,044)
Loss on disposal of items of HEWE - W&E
property, plant and K &#HIER
equipment B E 1B 45 -
Other expenses, net: HmAx - F5E
Revaluation deficit/(surplus) EHEBPAE
of leasehold office YIEZ B
premises in Hong Kong (&ER) 13 187 (4)
Impairment of items of WM - BB K
property, plant and =R\ B Z
equipment B 13 2,120 5,837
2,307 5,833
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A F5$R R E
31 March 2010
110 -—=—=£=5=1-8
7. FINANCE COSTS ELE=go %N
An analysis of finance costs is as follows: BREMRADTAT ¢
Group
AEE
2010 2009
—2-ZF —ZETNEF
HK$' 000 HK$' 000
FET FA&T
Interest on bank loans WITERZHE 2,861 4,208
Interest on a mortgage loan R R M B A A
advanced from a fellow BT 2118
subsidiary BRFE 2,903 2,968
Interest on securities BIFRZED
margin facilities EEFE 25 10
5,789 7,186
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New Century Group Hong Kong Limited $rtt 2B &EEEMRA T

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

8. DIRECTORS’ AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID 8.
EMPLOYEES" EMOLUMENTS
(a) Directors’ remuneration
Directors’ remuneration for the year, disclosed
pursuant to the Listing Rules and Section 161

of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, is as

B ¥5 R R MIGE
31 March 2010
E-TF=A=+—H

ESERIfVESHFEEME

(a) ESM=
RIE AR B N BB R RRDI S
I6EMIRBEZAFEESTIE
LUNINE

follows:
Group
REH
2010 2009
—E—ZF —ETNEF
HK$ 000 HK$" 000
FHET FET
Fees & 360 360
Other emoluments: HEaie -
Salaries and allowances e MoERL 7,200 8,100
Bonuses TEAT 684 710
Pension scheme contributions RIKEFT 8 394 435
8,278 9,245
8,638 9,605
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BA ¥R R M RE

31 March 2010
TE-THFE-A=+—H

8. DIRECTORS' AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID
EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS (continued)
(a) Directors’ remuneration (continued)
() Independent non-executive directors

The fees paid to independent non-executive

8. EERANBSSFEEMS

(#)
(@) EEM< (&)

() BIIFHTER
RERIN FTELIFRITE

directors during the year were as follows: FHEEWT
2010 2009
—E2-2F —ETNF
HK$ 000 HKg$' 000
THET FET
Mr. Ho Yau Ming ARk A 120 120
Mr. Kwan Kai Kin, Kenneth 8 B2 ot &= 120 120
Mr. Wong Kwok Tai HEEFLE 120 120
360 360

There were no other emoluments payable
to the independent non-executive directors

during the year (2009: Nil).
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New Century Group Hong Kong Limited $tt 2B &8GR AT

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BA 5 R R B s

31 March 2010
z-z#=A=+-8 113

8. DIRECTORS’' AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID 8. EENRTANESHFEEMS
EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS (continued) (&)
(a) Directors’ remuneration (continued) (a) EEM = (&)
(ii) Executive directors (i) AITEFE
Pension
Salaries and scheme Total
allowances Bonuses contributions remuneration
Ehe
FERER AL FHEIH R Memam

HK$'000 HK$’ 000 HK$’000 HK$' 000
TET TET TER TER

2010 —E-ZF

Executive directors: HITES

Mr. Wilson Ng BRESE 1,320 110 72 1,502

Ms. Sio lon Kuan REHLLE 1,320 110 72 1,502

Mr. Ng Wee Keat BREAELE 1,200 100 65 1,365

Ms. Ng Siew Lang, Linda BERLL 840 70 45 955

Ms. Lilian Ng EREZ T 840 70 45 955

Ms. Chen Ka Chee PRI& B2 + 600 75 34 709

Mr. Yu Wai Man RENGEE 1,080 149 61 1,290
7,200 684 394 8,278
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New Century Group Hong Kong Limited $ritt 2B &8GR AT

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B ¥R R M RE

31 March 2010
—E-ZF=A=1+—H

8. DIRECTORS’ AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID 8. EENRTANESHFEEMS
EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS (continued) ()
(a) Directors’ remuneration (continued) (a) EEM = (&)
(if) Executive directors (continued) (i) BA77EF (&
Pension
Salaries and scheme Total
allowances Bonuses  contributions  remuneration
BIKE
= TE4L BEIEEA B & 158
HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000
THET FTET FET THT
2009 —TTNF
Executive directors: WITES:
Mr. Wilson Ng BERELE 1,320 110 72 1,502
Ms. Sio lon Kuan mHRZLT 1,320 110 72 1,502
Mr. Ng Wee Keat HEREE 1,200 100 65 1,365
Ms. Ng Siew Lang, Linda BERLL 840 70 45 955
Ms. Lilian Ng BT+ 840 70 45 955
Ms. Chen Ka Chee PRI& B+ 600 50 32 682
Mr. Yu Wai Man RENEE 1,080 110 60 1,250
Mr. Lo Ming Chi, Charles* 45 B3 %5 %t A+ 900 90 44 1,034
8,100 710 435 9,245

There was no arrangement under which

a director waived or agreed to waive any

remuneration during the year.

*  Mr. Lo Ming Chi, Charles resigned as an

executive director on 1 February 2009.
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DIRECTORS’ AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID
EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS (continued)

(b) Five highest paid employees’ emoluments
The five highest paid employees during the year
included five (2009: five) executive directors,

details of whose remuneration are disclosed in (a)

above.

INCOME TAX

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate
of 16.5% (2009: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable

profits arising in Hong Kong during the year.

profits assessable elsewhere have been calculated at

the rates of tax prevailing in the countries in which the

Group operates.

Taxes on

New Century Group Hong Kong Limited $rtt 2B &EEEMRA T

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BA 5 R R B s
31 March 2010
—ZEZ—ZTF=-A=+—H
8. EERANERFEEMS
(#&)

b)) EuEEFEEMS
FRNAUE=FEEBRERANM
ZEFENF A HITES -
Efe c7FBE R ExX@ER

= o

9. FiBH
EBFIGR AR ZEERNEESE
K2 R RE SR B AR 16.5% (8
THE :16.5%) 2B EEE - Hitit
B2 R B M B IE AR R A R E
BAREBRRZBITHEHE -

2010 2009
—E2-ZTF —ZTTNF
HK$' 000 HK$" 000
FET FHET
Group: AEH :
Current — Hong Kong REE-FHE
Charge for the year REEHIE 9,236 127
Overprovision in BEFE
prior years HREEEE - (25)
Current — Elsewhere REE - Hbib R
Charge for the year REFEHIA 1,616 889
Overprovision in BEFE
prior years HBEEEE (318) -
Deferred (note 25) IEFEREIE (FFFE25) 26,212 (25,123)
Total tax charge/(credit) FABEBEER (ER)
for the year 45 36,746 (24,132)
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BA ¥R R M RE

31 March 2010
—E-ZF=A=1+—H

9.

INCOME TAX (continued) 9. FF1BH (&)
A reconciliation of the tax expense/(credit) applicable HEARRNE RE KIS HE R T A
to profit/(loss) before tax at the statutory rates for ZBIRZIEEMETE 2 R AR F
the countries in which the Company and the majority S(EB)EAZHMEYH (K R)
of its subsidiaries are domiciled to the tax expense HIZEBMEFTE MBS R Z2H
at the effective tax rates, and a reconciliation of the B ANRERF R (BETHE) HE
applicable rates (i.e., the statutory tax rates) to the BB R ZHERAT ¢
effective tax rates, are as follows:
Group - 2010
AEE--%-%F
Hong Kong Elsewhere* Total
£ At B CEl
HK$'000 % HK$' 000 % HK$' 000 %
TERL THERL TERL

Profit before tax BBt A 229,704 36,366 266,070
Tax at the statutory taxrate  REEREFEZHA 37901 16.5 6,531 18.0 44,432 16.7
Adjustments in respect of HIARTEE

current tax of previous 2R

periods AR - - (318) (0.9) (318) (0.1)
Income not subject to tax BARTMA (3,307) (1.4) (5,225) (14.4) (8,532) (3.2)
Expenses not deductible for tax a1 H % 75 - 33 0.1 108 -
Tax losses utilised from MABU AT SRS

previous periods HBER (110) - (5) - (115) -
Tax losses not recognised RERNHBEE 1,291 05 1 - 1292 05
Others i (402) (02) 281 0.8 (121) (0.1)
Tax charge at the Group's RASEERBEGE

effective rate ZHBERX 35,448 15.4 1298 36 36,746 138
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10.

INCOME TAX (continued)

New Century Group Hong Kong Limited $tt 2B &8GR AT

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B F5 R R M5t

31 March 2010

—E-ZFE=A=1+—H

9. FrE® (4]|)

Group - 2009
AEE-_ZTNE
Hong Kong Elsewhere* Total
B0 Ef i Ch
HK$' 000 % HK$' 000 % HK$' 000 %
TBT T TR

Profit/(loss) before tax BEAER/ (BR) (161,745) 87,660 (74,085)
Tax at the statutory tax rate AT REHE 2 HA (26,688) 16.5 16,260 18.5 (10,428) 14.1
Effect on opening defered ~ REXREZHBMERE

tax of decrease in rate HEngEZ (1,947 12 - - (1,947) 26
Adjustments in respect of HIART AR

current tax of previous BEHE

periods MRE (25) - - - (25) -
Income not subject to tax BERRRA (863) 05 (20,543) (23.4) (21,406) 289
Expenses not deductible for tax A1 F ¥ 3,588 22) 4,443 5.1 8,031 (10.8)
Tax losses utilised from FIE AT E R &

previous periods HBER (162) 0.1 (320) (0.4) (482) 0.7
Tax losses not recognised AERNHBEHE 552 (03) 1 - 553 (0.8)
Others Eft 524 (0.3) 1,048 12 1572 2.1)
Tax charge/(credit) at the BRASEERBEHE

Group's effective rate JRERY/ (E%) (25,021) 15.5 889 1.0 (24,132) 3.6
*  Elsewhere comprised of Singapore and Indonesia with * o Hpbh[ReREER N REE - Mt

statutory tax rates of 17% (2009: 18%) and 10%

(2009: 10%), respectively.

PROFIT/(LOSS) ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF

THE COMPANY

The consolidated profit/(loss) attributable to owners
of the Company for the year ended 31 March 2010
includes a profit of HK$84,537,000 (2009: a loss of
HK$12,247,000) which has been dealt with in the
financial statements of the Company (note 28(b)).

EEBREDRIB17% (Z BTN
18%) % 10% (ZZZ JLEF : 10%) °

10. X AR HEE ABMEREF
(E518)
BEEFARRBH BRI BE_T—
TFE=ZA=1T—HIFEARAES
ARG RmT (BB BfFEaf R
84,537,000 7L (ZZE T NL9F : BB
£12,247,0007% 7v) (Mizx28(b)) °

ANNUAL REPORT 2010 #3&

117



118

New Century Group Hong Kong Limited $ritt @B &8GR AT

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BA ¥R R M RE

31 March 2010
—E-ZF=A=1+—H

1. DIVIDENDS 1. RE
2010 2009
—8F —TTHF
HK$' 000 HK$" 000
FET FET
Interim — HKO0.2 cent HEIRR B — AR AR
(2009: Nil) 0.2/
per ordinary share —ETNEF  |) 11,531 -
Proposed final — EEARHRE -
HKO0.4 cent BlEBRRK
(2009: HKO0.35 cent) 0.4781
per ordinary share —ZEFNF : 0.3581) 23,061 20,179
34,592 20,179

12.

The proposed final dividend for the year is subject to
the approval of the Company's shareholders at the

forthcoming annual general meeting.

EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE
TO ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE
COMPANY

The calculation of basic earnings/(loss) per share
amount is based on the profit/(loss) for the year
attributable to ordinary equity holders of the Company,
and the weighted average number of ordinary shares
of 5,765,288,705 (2009: 5,765,288,705) in issue
during the year.

No adjustment has been made to the basic earnings/
(loss) per share amounts presented for the years
ended 31 March 2010 and 2009 in respect of a
dilution as the Group had no potentially dilutive

ordinary shares in issue during those years.
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New Century Group Hong Kong Limited $tt 2B &8GR AT

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B F5 R R M5t
31 March 2010

—z-z#==+-8 119

12. EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE  12. A A REER R ERZH AFELL

TO ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE BRERN (FHE) (&)
COMPANY (continued)
The calculations of basic earnings/(loss) per share BIREREF, (EE) THRAT&E
amounts are based on: ATE
2010 2009
—E2-2F _—_ZTThF
HK$' 000 HK$" 000
THERT FTET
Earnings/(loss) 2R (FE)
Profit/(loss) attributable RAEEER
to ordinary equity holders MHERER A
of the Company FEAR BRI, (E18) 191,613 (69,704)
Shares idv)
Weighted average number of st E BRRER
ordinary shares in issue BA (B18) &
during the year, used in ERZFR
the basic earnings/(loss) BT EER
per share calculation INHE & 5,765,288,705 5,765,288,705*
* In the prior year, the weighted average number of *OREF  BETEBRINEFSHEE
ordinary shares in issue was adjusted to reflect the TUAAE - WRBREZFENETZ
bonus issue which took place during that year. Pursuant BATARFIE - REBEERARBAR =T
to an ordinary resolution passed at the annual general FAFNAA-ARTHRFBAFAE
meeting of the Company held on 2 September 2008, b EIERESR - BITAROE
bonus shares were issued on the basis of one new share ERR-FZN\FNLA-BEHA
for every twenty shares held on 2 September 2008. — TR (R AL EE AT — BRATAR (D o
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Bt ¥5 3R R P E
31 March 2010

120 -=—=£=5=+-8
13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 13.E -BERRXE
Group E
Medium-
Medium-term term
leasehold leasehold
hotel office Furniture,
properties in premises in Leasehold ~fixtures and Motor Cruise
Indonesia Hong Kong  improvements equipment vehicles ships Total
e L
hHEE hHRE BENE PUS
EEN% HAZNE 3 RERRE ot 3 % ait
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

TER TR TR TR TR TR TR

31 March 2010 “E-FEZfA=1-A
At 31 March 2009 and RZEENFZA=1-HR
at 1 April 2009: RZZTNERA-B:
Cost or valuation RASfEE 20,007 4,420 37868 12,859 5,879 210,600 291,633
Accumulated depreciation 2iEE
and impairment REE (13,507) - (26,556) (10,198) (4,485) - (54,746)
Net carrying amount EHRE 6,500 4420 11,312 2,661 1,39 210,600 236,887
At 1 April 2009, RZZENEMA-A-
net of accumulated NREENE
depreciation and impaiiment REEZFE 6,500 4420 11312 2,661 1,394 210,600 236,887
Additions hE - - 242 1113 2,348 36,794 40,497
Disposals k3 - - - - (420) - (420)
Deficit on revaluation EfFA - (187) - - - (64,174) (64,361)
Depreciation provided RERRE
during the year BB (1,481) (93) (1953) (1,040) (442) (19,420) (24,429)
Impairment il (744) - (1376) - - - (2120)
Exchange realignment ERA% 1,565 - 2,616 526 46 - 4,753
At 31 March 2010, RZE-FF=f=1-H
net of accumulated Nh2ENE
depreciation and impairment ~ RHEZFE 5,840 4,140 10,841 3,260 2,926 163,800 190,807
At 31 March 2010: RZE-2EZA=1-R:
Cost or valuation AAGfEE 25,342 4,140 47459 16927 7m 163,800 265,440
Accumulated depreciation 2ENE
and impairment REE (19,502) - (36,618) (13,667) (4,846) - (74,633)
Net carrying amount BEE 5,840 4,140 10,841 3,260 2,926 163,800 190,807
Analysis of cost o valuation: RESHEEAT :
A cost ERA 25,342 - 47459 16927 7 - 97,500
At 31 March 2010 %-Z-%E£ZR
valuation =+-BiE - 4,140 - - - 163,800 167940
25,342 4,140 47459 16,927 mm 163,800 265,440
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13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

New Century Group Hong Kong Limited $tt 2 £E&EEEMR AT

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B ¥R R Mt

31 March 2010

—E-ZF=A=1+—H

13. 9%~ BERRE (&)

(continued)
Group (continued) AEE (&)
Medium-
Medium-term term
leasehold leasehold
hotel office Furniture,
properties in premises in Leasehold fixtures and Motor Cruise
Indonesia Hong Kong  improvements equipment vehicles ships Total
R B
RHHE hERE i B
EENE  BREME xB  RERGE A il A
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK8 000 HKS'000 HK$'000
TEL TEn Tin i ThT ThL ThL
31 March 2009 “ETNFZACT-H
At 31 March 2008 and RITTNEZF=F-RR
at 1 April 2008: RZZZN\ERA-B:
Cost or valuation AASEE 25,436 4510 45117 14492 6,553 320,580 417288
Accumulated depreciation 2RNE
and impairment RiE (13,019) - (27006) (11,670) (4874) - (56,569)
Net carrying amount EEFE 12417 4510 18711 2822 1679 320,580 360719
At 1 April 2008, RZETNERA-R-
net of accumulated Nh2ENE
depreciation and impairment Rz 3E 12417 4510 18711 282 1,679 320,580 360,719
Additions FE - - 1317 1,095 152 - 2,564
Surplus/(defict) on revaluation ~ EfE &8/ (F4) - 4 - - - (85,871) (85,867)
Depreciation provided TERHE
during the year B (1395) (94) (1,901) (838) (406) (24,109) (28743)
Impairment RE (2,226) - (3611) - - - (5,837)
Exchange realignment ExdE (2,29) - (3,204) (418) (31) - (5949)
At 31 March 2009, RITTNF=F=1-R"
net of accumulated hZRENE
depreciation and impaiment ~ RHEZFE 6,500 4420 11312 2661 1394 210,600 236,887
At 31 March 2009: RZFEAEZA=1+-R:
Cost or valuation RASEE 20,007 4420 37868 12,859 5879 210600 291,633
Accumulated depreciation 2BNE
and impairment R (13,507) - (26,556) (10,198) (4,485) - (54,746)
Net carrying amount FHFE 6,500 4420 11312 2,661 1,394 210,600 236,887
Analysis of cost or valuation: BASEEA
At cost BIE 20,007 - 37868 12,859 5879 - 76613
At 31 March 2009 BZEENEZA
valuation =+-BiEE - 4420 - - - 210,600 215,020
20007 4420 37668 12,859 5,879 210600 291,633
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New Century Group Hong Kong Limited $ritt @B &8GR AT

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Bt F5 3R R P E
31 March 2010

—E-ZF=A=1+—H

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(continued)
The Group's leasehold office premises in Hong Kong
were revalued on 31 March 2010 by Knight Frank Petty
Limited, independent professionally qualified valuers,
on an open market, existing use basis. A revaluation
deficit of HK$187,000 (2009: a surplus of HK$4,000)
(note 6) resulting from the valuation has been charged

to the income statement.

The Group's cruise ships were revalued on 31 March
2010 by Vigers Appraisal and Consulting Limited,
independent professionally qualified valuers, on
an open market, existing use basis. A revaluation
deficit of HK$64,174,000 (2009: HK$56,970,000)
resulting from the valuation has been charged to
the income statement. In the prior year, a deficit of
HK$28,901,000 resulting from the valuation was also

charged to other comprehensive income.

Had these leasehold office premises and cruise
ships been carried at historical cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses, their carrying
amounts would have been approximately HK$3,803,000
(2009: HK$3,904,000) and HK$163,800,000 (2009:
HK$210,600,000), respectively.

At 31 March 2010, the leasehold office premises in
Hong Kong with a carrying value of HK$4,140,000
(2009: HK$4,420,000) were pledged to secure a loan
granted to the Group (notes 22 and 30). In the prior
year, one of the Group's cruise ships with a carrying
value of HK$132,600,000 (2010: Nil) was pledged to

secure a loan granted to the Group.
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13. 2% - BERRE (&)

AEBREBEHERNEMENR_T—
THE=ZA=T—"HHBIYEELGE®
HERD R DAIETEN T B R A AR RIR
BRBEAAATEETEMN - HEE
A2 EEEAE187,0008 L (ZEE N
&« B#44,0008T) (M3E6) B E I
#r R AHIBR ©

KEEBHGR-_ZE—TF=A=+—
BEBIEEXSERMGEBEMB KN
BEENGEMAERARREIRER
BUAARATELETEMGR - HEELE
2 EHEA64,174,0008 L (ZEF
N : 56,970,000/ 7T ) B FE W a8 7%
AR - REF  HEEEZEA
28,901,000/ 7T 71 B, 1£ H fib 2 H W a5
AHRR ©

WZERERDNEYHERIRIRES
FRAR RIEHT & RO E BB SRR - Al
1% % 2 BR H 18 JE 9 51| #9 /3,803,000
B (ZZEZNF 1 3,904,000% 7T)
163,800,000/ 7T (ZZ T L4 ¢
210,600,000/ 7L °

RZZE—ZTF=ZA=+—H8 &%
EER M (B 54,140,000 L (ZEZ N,
£ : 4,420,000 7T) 2 BAHERRA
EMEEEER  FRAKEENRE
R PER (M 5E22%30) « REF -
AEEBERMEE A132,600,00078 7T (=
T-ZTF BI2AET —EEBRE
B EAREEEBIERZER-
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

T eI
31 March 2010
—z-z5=A=+-8 123
14. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 14. REYE
Group
REH
2010 2009
—B2-FF _—_TTAF
HK$'000 HK$ 000
FHET FHET
Carrying amount at 1 April KREA—B®8EREE 624,250 753,700
Net profit/(loss) from fair NEEEARZ
value adjustments wmA (B 18) F5a 104,740 (102,000)
Disposal k== (15,500) -
Exchange realignment FE 34, 38 B 19,685 (27,450)
Carrying amount at 31 March W=A=+—H®KHEE 733,175 624,250
The Group's investment properties are held under AEENGHBEERF 2REMELL
medium-term leases and are situated in: A
Group
rEH
2010 2009
—B2-FF _—_TTAF
HK$'000 HK$ 000
FHET FHET
Hong Kong BE 486,200 402,400
Elsewhere H b i [= 246,975 221,850
733,175 624,250
The Group’s investment properties were revalued AEEBCKREMEBRBIEES
on 31 March 2010 by Knight Frank Petty Limited BRGEEMEIFBETEATERE A
and PREMAS Valuers & Property Consultants Pte. 7] LPREMAS Valuers & Property
Ltd., independent professionally qualified valuers, at Consultants Pte. LtdiZW =T —ZF
an aggregate balance of HK$733,175,000 (2009: —A=+t—HREBREREUAQFT
HK$624,250,000) on an open market, existing use BEMEHRAEE F£733,175,000% 7T
basis. ZZETNHF 1 624,250,000 7T) ©
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BA ¥R R M RE

31 March 2010
—E-ZF=A=1+—H

14. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

The investment properties are leased to third parties
under operating leases, further summary details of
which are included in note 31(a) to the financial

statements.

Certain of the Group's investment properties located
in Hong Kong with an aggregate carrying value of
HK$441,000,000 (2009: HK$353,500,000) at 31
March 2010 have been pledged to secure banking
facilities granted to the Group as further detailed in
notes 22 and 30.

The Group's investment property located in Singapore
with a carrying value of HK$246,975,000 (2009:
HK$221,850,000) at 31 March 2010 have been
pledged to secure a mortgage loan advanced from a

fellow subsidiary (note 23).

Further details of the Group’s investment properties

are included on pages 185 to 187.
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14. REY =X (]R)

BiEgEHE  REYWETVETFE=
7o BEZE—SEBEEFES R
HEERERMIFE31() ©

TEBR-_Z—ZTF=ZA=+—RHZ
AR M 42 {6441,000,0008 70 (= F =
FLEF : 353,500,000 ) (U R & B 2
ETIREMEDHEER - LEUSAKSE
BERIRITEE  FHEAMEF2R
30 °

AEEBR-_ZT—FTF=A=+—H
2 BRE{E246,975,0008 T (—ZZEZ h
£ : 221,850,000/ 70 ) 2 7 B T AN3E
ZIREYECEEM - LA R R
BATRRMNZIZBER(M35E23)
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15. PREPAID LAND PREMIUMS

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B F5 R R M5t
31 March 2010
—E-ZFE=A=1+—H

15. St fE

Group
AEE
2010 2009
—2-F —TTIHF
HK$ 000 HKg 000
FET FHET
Carrying amount at 1 April KREA—BZEREEAE 15,831 17,566
Recognised during the year R AN E #ER (867) (836)
Exchange realignment HE H, 8 B 769 (899)
Carrying amount at 31 March W= A=+—HZEHEE 15,733 15,831
Current portion B ER (908) (786)
Non-current portion IEmEN B 14,825 15,045

Included above was certain leasehold land with
a carrying value of HK$12,461,000 (2009:
HK$12,793,000) which is held under a medium-term
lease and is situated in Hong Kong and leasehold
land with a carrying value of HK$3,272,000 (2009:
HK$3,038,000) which is held under a medium-
term lease and is situated in Indonesia. The Group's
prepaid land premiums with a carrying value of
HK$12,461,000 (2009: HK$12,793,000) at 31 March
2010 have been pledged to secure banking facilities
granted to the Group as further detailed in notes 22
and 30.

X B EREE12,461,000% 7T (=
T TN F ¢ 12,793,000 0) 2 1R IE
FHREREYNREEZETHE
+ b AR BREES,272,000%8 7T (=
T T NF : 3,038,000 L) ZIRIEF
HAERHETMREEZHE L1 -
AEBR-_ZT—FTF=A=+—H
R {E 512,461,000 L (ZEZ 1
& 12,793,000 ) 2 FEMHER
TEIRIR - IS A EEIR ZIRITE
B B RME22K%30 -
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B F5 R R MIE
31 March 2010
—E-ZF=A=1+—H

16. DEPOSIT PAID TO ACQUIRE PROPERTY UNDER 16 SIS SRR W E M X WET

DEVELOPMENT o
Group
REE
2010 2009
—2-Z2F —EENEF
HK$' 000 HK$' 000
TET FET
At cost LA {E 47,400 42,560
Provision for impairment B B (47,400) (42,560)
At end of year FR - -

In prior years, the Group acquired the entire issued
shares of a company which had paid a deposit of
Malaysian Ringgit (“RM") 20,000,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$47,400,000) to acquire a property
situated in Malaysia. The amount of the deposit
paid was accounted for as the cost of the property
under development, which is stated at cost less any
provision for impairment. In prior years, an impairment
provision against the carrying value of the property
under development of RM20,000,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$47,400,000) was provided by the
directors of the Company in light of the then market
conditions.

The Group has claimed for the refund of the deposit
of RM20,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$47,400,000) from the developer of this property
through legal proceedings in Malaysia since 2004. On
29 April 2009, the Kuala Lumpur High Court dismissed
the appeal made by the Group by way of summary
judgement and the Group filed the “Notice of Pre-Trial
Case Management” at the High Court for further legal
action. The litigation is still in process at the date of
this report.

Further details of the Group's deposit paid to acquire
property under development are included on page

188.
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B F5 R R M5t
31 March 2010
—z-z#==+-8 127

17. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 17. FFEH B A 5 > 3%
Company
NN
2010 2009
—2-F —TTIHF
HK$ 000 HKg 000
FET FHET
Unlisted shares, at cost JFEETIRG - B AE 1 1
Due from subsidiaries g EENEIE 854,871 846,249
854,872 846,250
Less: Provision for impairment Rk Rk (B (236,540) (327,051)
618,332 519,199
Due to subsidiaries FEASTH & A RIsR1E (176,115) (112,587)

Amounts due from subsidiaries are unsecured,
interest-free and have no fixed terms of repayment.
Amounts due to subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-

free and repayable on demand.

FEUS M BB A R SRR AR - 2 B &
b 4[] 7E R R HA o FE A BT B A B ERIA
WERHA 2L NAREREER -
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BA ¥R R M RE

31 March 2010
—E-ZF=A=1+—H

17. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

17. Rt B ARz s ()

The movements in provision for impairment of

amounts due from subsidiaries are as follows:

M B 3 ST R R R B
T~

Company
¥ NN

2010 2009

—E—EF —EENF

HK$' 000 HK$ 000

FET FHET

At 1 April R A—A 327,051 323,336
Impairment losses BEHER.(Em)

recognised/(reversed) B E 1B (90,511) 3,715

236,540 327,051

The above provision for impairment of amounts due
from subsidiaries represents a provision for individually
impaired receivables. The individually impaired
receivables relate to the Company's subsidiaries that
were in financial difficulties. The Company does not
hold any collateral or other credit enhancements over
these balances. All amounts due from subsidiaries are

not past due.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

17. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are as follows:

Name

=1

New Century Maritime

Limited

Jackston Maritime

Limited

Queenston Maritime

Limited

Gaintech Investment
Limited
MEEHEEBRAQF

Jet Top Development
Limited
VEZERABRAT

Place of
incorporation
and operations
AR L
REE I

British Virgin
Islands ("BVI")
RBERUES

((ZBEZEHES])

BVI
RERLEE

BVI
RERZES

Hong Kong
A

Hong Kong
B0

Nominal value
of issued
share capital
2#1T

Az H{E

US$10,000
10,000% 7T

US$10,000
10,000% 7T

US$10,000
10,000% 7T

HK$2

28T

HK$2
2B TT

BA¥5 R R MIGE
31 March 2010
—ET-TF=R=+—H

17. b B 2~ Rz #E = (&)
TEMBARFBOT
Percentage
of equity
attributable Principal
to the Group activities
rEEERL
EEEOL FTRER
2010 2009

—E-BF —TTHEF
60 60 Investment

holding and
securities
trading
®E R R
BHEBE
60 60 Cruise ship
investment
gk a
60 60 Cruise ship

investment

B g

100 100 Property
investment
MERE
100 100 Property

investment

MERE
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BA ¥R R M RE

31 March 2010
—E-ZF=A=1+—H

New Century Group Hong Kong Limited $ritt @B &8GR AT

17. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are as follows:

(continued)

Name

=1

Jet Victory Development
Limited
VKERBRAT

New Century Properties

Investments Limited

HELMEREBRAA

Senic Investment Limited

BRRERERRAA

Wealth International
Development Limited
BRERERABRAA

Wise Century Investments
Limited
EHNREBRAF

P. T. Horizon Bandar

Bahrut/*

ANNUAL REPORT 2010 #3&

Place of
incorporation
and operations
oF i B 2
REEHH

Hong Kong
N0

Hong Kong
B

Hong Kong
&R

Hong Kong
B0

Hong Kong
B0

Indonesia

gfe

Nominal value
of issued
share capital
B#1T

B4z HE

HK$2
287

HK$2
28T

HK$2

27T

HK$2
27T

HK$1

15T

US$2,200,000
2,200,000% 7T

Percentage
of equity
attributable
to the Group

AEBEL
REED L
2010 2009
—2-BF —TIAF
100 100
100 100
100 100
100 100
100 100
50 50

17. FRAGE B A Al 2 fE 2% (4E)
FEMBRAFHEOT : (8)

Principal

activities

FRER

Property
investment

MERE

Property
investment

MERE

Property
investment

MERE

Property
investment

MERE

Property
investment

MEERE

Hotel

operations
BERE
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

17. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are as follows:

(continued)

Place of Nominal value

incorporation of issued

Name and operations share capital
8 AR 3L B #®1T

=y REEHE R A 2 EfE
Capplus Investments BVI US$1
Limited RERIHE 17T
ACE Properties Pte. Ltd. Singapore SG$1
0% 15 7T

* Not audited by Ernst & Young Hong Kong or other

member firm of the Ernst & Young global network.

* This joint venture is classified as a subsidiary because
the Group has unilateral control over its board of

directors.

Except for Capplus Investments Limited, all of the
above principal subsidiaries are indirectly held by the

Company.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company
which, in the opinion of the directors, principally
affected the results for the year or formed a substantial
portion of the net assets of the Group. To give details
of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the

directors, result in particulars of excessive length.

B ¥5 R R MIGE
31 March 2010
TE-TFE-A=+—H

17. RGBT 2 B (&)

TEMBARFBHT - (B)

Percentage
of equity
attributable Principal
to the Group activities
rREES
EZEH FRER
2010 2009
“E-ZF —ZTTNF

100 100 Securities
trading

60 60 Property

investment

UESE-

*  BREBWIFHBB LRGSR ERTK
Ernst & Young global networkz Hfi
FBEMEZ -

tOHRAREHZAE AR ZERTSH
BEHEZESE Bt ZAERF
DIEKE A 7] ©

Bk Capplus Investments Limited%h » A
FABEFENE AR AARRRIFE
e =1

EXRFIDNESRBHARERNFE
XBEEARERNELAEEFEE
TEHDZARFMBRRF - EFR
o WE AN B AR Z RIS RE
2BNITE -
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BA ¥R R M RE

31 March 2010
—E-ZF=A=1+—H

18. TRADE RECEIVABLES, PREPAYMENTS,

1. EWESZRN - MARE &

DEPOSITS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES EREMEUWERR
Group Company
rEH PN/
2010 2009 2010 2009
—EB-TF —TTNF =B-BF C"—TTILHF
HK$' 000 HK$" 000 HK$' 000 HK$" 000
T#ET FHET FHET FET
Trade receivables FEWE R K 33,845 46,997 — —
Impairment VoRIEL (23) (18) - -
33,822 46,979 — -
Prepayments TEAT R IE 2,346 2,418 678 625
Deposits and Be REAM
other receivables JE W BR 3R 8,167 2,960 96 112
44,335 52,357 774 737
The Group's billing terms with customers are mainly AEEHBERZEZEREZUE
on credit. Invoices are normally payable within 30 ERNETT c HEME AN TIE30

days of issuance, except for certain well-established

customers, where the terms are extended to 90 days.

Each customer has a maximum credit limit. The Group

seeks to maintain strict control over its outstanding

receivables. Overdue balances are regularly reviewed

by senior management. Trade receivables are non-

interest-bearing.
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18. TRADE RECEIVABLES, PREPAYMENTS,

New Century Group Hong Kong Limited $tt 2 £E&EEER AT

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B ¥5 R R MIGE

31 March 2010

TE-TFE-A=+—H

1. EWE FRA ~ A RIE » &2

DEPOSITS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

(continued)

Below is an aged analysis of trade receivables, net of

impairment, based on the invoice date, which is the

date when the services are rendered.

TR EAMERERR (F)

AT REWE ZERRNERBER R
BEREAH (AREHERSE 2 BH) 2R

B o

Group

REH
2010 2009
—B2-FF _—_TTAF
HK$ 000 HK$" 000
FTHET FHET
Within 1 month —{E AR 12,597 35,452
1 to 2 months —ZMIE A 7,253 8,355
2 to 3 months M2 = 1@ A 4,766 886
Over 3 months B’ =1EA 9,206 2,286
Trade receivables FEWE SR 33,822 46,979

The movements in the provision for impairment of

trade receivables are as follows:

JEWE ZERR 2 BMEREBEESHNT -

Group
EEE
2010 2009
—2-ZF —ETNF
HK$' 000 HK$' 000
THET FET
At 1 April RO H—H 18 23
Exchange realignment VE 5,5 B 5 (5)
23 18

ANNUAL REPORT 2010 £3%

133



134

New Century Group Hong Kong Limited $ritt 2B &8GR AT

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Bt F5 3R R P E
31 March 2010

—E-ZF=A=1+—H

18. TRADE RECEIVABLES, PREPAYMENTS,
DEPOSITS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
(continued)

The above provision for impairment of trade
receivables represents a provision for individually
impaired trade receivables. The individually impaired
trade receivables relate to customers that were in
financial difficulties. The Group does not hold any
collateral or other credit enhancements over these

balances.

The aged analysis of the trade receivables that are not

considered to be impaired is as follows:

1. EWESZRN - MARE &

TR EAMEWIERR (F)

VA b e W BR FURME B B R R B B R E
Z FEWBRBURE R - ERIRE 2’
WRRFORERER BN ERE#H 2
BF - AKBYERZFR/BITEL
A ek s I EY -

RBEZ EWE SRR Z BRE DT a0
T

Group

rEE
2010 2009
—E2-Z2F —ETNF
HK$' 000 HK$' 000
FET FE&T
Neither past due nor impaired R HA IR R AE B 6,922 17,422
Less than 1 month past due #HE L —E A 11,701 23,340
1 to 3 months past due wmHE—Z = @ A 9,875 4,775
Over 3 months past due w0 HA R A = (& A 5,324 1,442
33,822 46,979

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired
relate to a large number of diversified customers for

whom there was no recent history of default.
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18. TRADE RECEIVABLES, PREPAYMENTS, 1. BREZIRM » FANRE -~ &

DEPOSITS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES TREMBWERR (&)
(continued)
Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate 10 BB 2R 1 Rk B 2 & YRR 3R 7Y BE 21
to a number of independent customers that have HEAREEBBERIFTELE 2B
a good track record with the Group. Based on past BEAH - REBERLER  XAFE
experience, the directors of the Company are of the ERE BHRZEEECZCEEE X
opinion that no provision for impairment is necessary AW B OK B T AR BR AR R K A BE
in respect of these balances as there has not been a Y E - WHARZSERIED
significant change in credit quality and the balances BERE AXEBEFEAEERERZ
are still considered fully recoverable. The main type BERmE2HFNAMMEFKERAF
of collateral held by the Group as security is rental B 1A 523,584,000 L (ZEF h -
deposits received from tenants with fair value of 22,190,000 L) 2 &L ® -

HK$23,584,000 (2009: HK$22,190,000).

None of the prepayments, deposits and other FE IR - 1R K H 8 U AR S A
receivables is either past due or impaired and there BHSORE - AR P ITEER
was no recent history of default among the customers. B4 8% o
19. EQUITY INVESTMENTS AT FAIR VALUE 19. BBREFRAFEEIEZR
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS ExE
Group
rEE
2010 2009
—E-2F —ZTTNF
HK$' 000 HK$" 000
FET FHET
Listed equity investments BEL™
in Hong Kong, friERE
at market value mmiE 316,716 207,395
Listed equity investments oonsg
in Singapore, RERE -
at market value TR 105,513 -
422,229 207,395
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19.

20.

EQUITY INVESTMENTS AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS (continued)

The above equity investments were classified as held
for trading at 31 March 2010 and 2009.

At 31 March 2010, the Group's equity investments
amounting to HK$199,3212,000 (2009: HK$46,526,000)
were pledged to secure a margin account facility

granted to the Group (note 30).

At 31 March 2010, certain of the Group's bank loans
facilities amounting to HK$60,000,000, of which
HK$20,000,000 had been utilised as at the end of the
reporting period, are secured by certain of the Group's
equity investments amounting to HK$222,917,000
(2009: Nil) (note 30).

Assuming the portfolio of the Group’s equity
investments remained unchanged, the market value of
the Group's equity investments at the date of approval
of these financial statements was approximately
HK$404,475,000.

BANK DEPOSITS

Bank deposits represented cash placed with banks,
with maturities of more than three months, but less

than twelve months.

As at 31 March 2010, the average interest rate on
these bank deposits is 0.37% per annum (2009:
Nil) and the balances with carrying amounts of
HK$97,400,000 (2009: Nil) and HK$2,574,000
(2009: Nil) are denominated in Hong Kong dollars and

United States dollars, respectively.
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19.

20.

ERERRATFEEIEZR
ERE (&)
R-Z—ZFER-—TTAF= S
=+—8 - ERRBEREDHERR
feEH -

RZE—TF=A=+—0 x5H
7380199,312,0008 T (ZEF N4F -
46,526,000/ 7T) 7 IRIERE B 1EE
LG ETAEE 2 RESKS
ZE8 (KMi5E30) -

R-—_TE—ZTF=ZA=+—H8 &%
BlAmEGEHRSLCEBRAES TR
B X Bt & & £60,000,000/% 7T F &
20,000,000/ 7T * HIAKREE B
222,917,000 T (ZEZE N F : &)
#E T REREEARER (MH:E30) ©

BEREAEENRELEEEGERT
B REBRIRERER I IFRETAL
/Ez HH M {EL) A404,475,000%8 7T °

RITER
RITFEREFRERTZERE 66
FHBEE=@AEIRN+ @A -

RZE—ZETF=HA=+—8"
WITHFRZ FHNEREF037E
(ZEZNEFE |) AAKREER
97,400,000 T (ZEZFNF - ) &
2,574,000 T (Z T T NF : #) 5

AT M ETTRIEEEBA -

e
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21. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND PLEDGED
DEPOSIT

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B ¥R R M5t
31 March 2010
—E-ZFE=A=1+—H

BERREEEYRCERT
b3
Group Company
ES LN
2010 2009 2010 2009

—2-BF _—TTNF CB-BF _—TTNF

Note HK$'000 HK$' 000 HK$'000 HK$' 000
iz TR FHET TR FHET
Cash and bank balances RekRTER 56,843 108,032 44,704 47938
Time deposits EHFR 91,662 185,557 70,000 149,306
148,505 293,589 114,704 197244

Less: Pledged time deposit W RRITEREER
for a bank loan ZEBER 22 - (175550) - -
Cash and cash equivalents ReRRe%HED 148,505 276,039 114,704 197,244

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based
on daily bank deposit rates. Short term time deposits
are made for varying periods of between eight day
and three months depending on the immediate cash
requirements of the Group, and earn interest at the
respective short term time deposit rates. The bank
balances, time deposits and a pledged deposit are
deposited with creditworthy banks with no recent

history of default.

RITEFRESIREE B RITHEK
MEIZZ IR B o FEHE BTN
ZEBRERNTFNARE=@EATZE
RIEREE KRR FEME - I
BB ME TN KR - RITH
7 EMEFEREE ERERTIEFRR
EE R of B ST B R GRIRACBR 2
RTT e
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22. INTEREST-BEARING BANK LOANS

- %‘l- /BN ﬁE /i— E ;i—k
Group
%8

2009
-2%

—TR

2010
“§-%%
Effective interest rate Maturity
Lk 348
Current il
Bank loans, secured REN(FER) Hong Kong
Interbank offered
rate + 1% p.a. to
Hong Kong
Prime rate - 1.625% p.a. 2011
gk
RORERSHIEER
EER
BEEAZ-165EFR -%--F
Non-current it
Bank loans, secured ZAEN(RER) Hong Kong
Prime rate - 2.7% p.a. to
Hong Kong
Prime rate - 1.625% pa. ~ 2011-2017
Bk
REEAE-27EER
5F% -%--%%
RESNE-165EFE -%-tF
Analysed into: YR
Bank loans repayable: ARNTEHER
LRTER
Within one year or —ER
on demand E2X
In the second year 5%
In the third to fith years, ~ E=ZZR%
inclusive (REERMEF)

Beyond the fifth year F0Ffk
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HK$'000

TEn

60,999

110,547

49,548
13,145

35,005
12,849

110,547

Effective interest rate

ERA=

Hong Kong

Prime rate - 2.7% pa. to

Hong Kong

49,548  Prime rate - 1.625% pa.
B

REFNE-2TEER

B0

RERFE-165EFE

Hong Kong
Prime rate - 2.7% p.a. fo
Hong Kong
Prime rate - 1.625% p.a.
REENE-2TEFR

RERFR-1605EFE

M}l-]

|1 «pd
A

Ayl

A

HK$ 000
it

26,577

70,544

97121

26,571
9,545

36,060
24939

97121
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22. INTEREST-BEARING BANK LOANS (continued)

Certain of the Group's bank loans are secured by:

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

mortgages over the Group’s leasehold
office premises together with its investment
properties and prepaid land premiums which
had an aggregate carrying value at the end
of the reporting period of approximately
HK$457,601,000 (2009: HK$370,713,000)
(notes 13, 14 and 15);

corporate guarantees up to HK$210,340,000
(2009: HK$210,340,000) provided by the

Company;

a pledge of the Group’s equity investments
amounting to HK$222,917,000 (2009: Nil) (note
19); and

rental assignment over certain of the Group's
investment properties located in Hong Kong with
an aggregate carrying value of HK$441,000,000
(2009: HK$353,500,000) at 31 March 2010
which have been pledged to secure banking

facilities granted to the Group.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

22.

B ¥R R M5t
31 March 2010
—E-ZFE=A=1+—H

SFRRITER (&)

AREBE TRITERA TS HAELR

poit

®

@i

(i)

(@v)

AEBHAERAEWEERHE
WEMEA KRB HE ZIRIB
RMEBAR  ZEEECHAET
B4 /457,601,000 L (ZE=F
FLE 370,713,000 Jt) (B 7%
13+ 14%15) ;

KARBEZADERES
210,340,000 T (ZZEZ JLF
210,340,000/ 7T)

AEBHRZKEERSE B H
222,917,000 L2 WiF (2=
NEF &) (ME19) - &

AEBETREME A H
EBEEAMEMLRESE  RZZT
—EF=ZA=+—HZEKEHE&E
441,000,000 7T (ZEFF -
353,500,000 7T) + H B {EE
ARG TAEBNIRITE
=
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22. INTEREST-BEARING BANK LOANS (continued)

In the prior year, the Group’s bank loans were also
secured by (i) the Group's time deposit amounting
to US$2,250,000 (equivalent to HK$17,550,000)
(note 21); (ii) a first priority Tuvaluan statutory
mortgage over one of the Group's cruise ships with
a carrying value at the end of the reporting period
of HK$132,600,000 (note 13); (iii) assignments of
charter proceeds, earnings and insurance relating to
one of the Group's cruise ships; and (iv) unconditional
and irrevocable personal guarantees executed
by Mr. Ng (Huang) Cheow Leng to the extent of
US$9,000,000 (equivalent to HK$70,200,000). Mr.
Ng (Huang) Cheow Leng is one of the discretionary
beneficiaries and the settlor of a discretionary trust
which wholly owns Huang Group (BVI) Limited, the

Company's ultimate holding company.

Except for the secured bank loan of HK$17,550,000 in
the prior year which was denominated in United States
dollars, all other bank loans are denominated in Hong
Kong dollars. All bank loans bear interest at floating

interest rates.

The carrying values of the Group’s bank loans
approximate to their fair values. The fair values of
bank loans have been calculated by discounting the

expected future cash flows at prevailing interest rates.

In the prior year, the Group could not meet
the relevant debt covenants of a bank loan of
HK$17,550,000 in relation to the requirements on fair
value of a cruise ship and net worth of the subsidiary
which entered into the loan agreement. The bank loan
was classified as a current liability in the statement
of financial position as at 31 March 2009. Such debt
covenants had been relinquished upon full settlement

of the related loan during the year.
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22.5TEBTER(E)

REF  AEERITERIPATIE
HEERR (VA EEBZEBRTFRAEH
2,250,000 7t (#8557 17,550,000/%
70) (BFaE21) 5 (DAEE R FREHR
Z BRE {E A132,600,000/% T 2 E R
—MEBH B RES —EBLEEIR
B (M3E13) + (i) AN 5= @ H fh — A2 50
¥ MEFTISRIE - BF MR 2 &
ER(VEBBL EMEMRZ &K
HRAAIHEZEABERER S E
9,000,000 7T, (#8%57470,200,000/%
) cEMBBEEREERBARNT
2 B R4 IE A A)Huang Group (BVI)
Limitedz — A2 #EFZEF —(L 2
BZ@mARBETA -

Br £ F A EIFERITE 17,550,000
TCIIAETT REEBALIN - FTA HAMb
RITERTNAB T AKEEEN - FTE
RITERIIRZBFIREGTH -

AEEZRITERZEEDEEELQF
BEMAE - RITERZQFEETDE
BITIRITA RITIRFBERKIB S RE

st -

REF AEBREFESRITER
17,550,000/ 7T & A & #w A~ T (B E &
FIVERmEIMNEARNEEFE
HMEMBRAEERGE - Bt - BN =
TTNF=ZA=+—8 " E¥BHKR
®AIRITEREDEARBAERE -
RAFEAN E2HEEEHREX
B AEAEEZHECDENE-
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

23. MORTGAGE LOAN ADVANCED FROM A FELLOW 23,
SUBSIDIARY

The mortgage loan advanced from a fellow subsidiary
bears interest at 4.25% per annum for the first year,
4.75% per annum for the second year, and 0.5% per
annum above the commercial financing rate quoted
by United Overseas Bank Limited for the third year
and thereafter. The loan denominated in Singapore
dollars is repayable by 180 monthly instalments. The
mortgage loan was secured by the Group's investment
property with a carrying amount of HK$246,975,000
(2009: HK$221,850,000) at 31 March 2010 (note
14). The carrying amount of the mortgage loan

advanced from a fellow subsidiary approximates to its

BA 5 R R B s
31 March 2010
—E-ZFE=A=1+—H
BRAMBARBRNZIEIB
B
RAEMBARRNZIRBERNE —
FRFRAEFAENES REZF
BEBATSEFERNE  MRE=F
RHEBZRRERITERQAMERE
ERMEFMEMNFEBOSEFTHEFE -
ZERAF M TEE - WHEH 180
BAZRESEEE ZIRBERUR
—ET-TF-A=-+—BZE@EE
7%246,975,0008 7T (ZZEFT L4 -
221,850,000/87T) 2 NEEE KR E W%
EIR (M 5E14) - A RME A AR
NziBEREREDEREL QT EEHE

fair value. E=
Group
REE
2010 2009
—B-TF C—TTIHF
HK$' 000 HKg 000
THET FHET
Analysed into: DR
Mortgage loan BERINTFHER 2
repayable: BBENR:
Within one year or on demand —FRANEEK 3,780 3,305
In the second year E_F 3,968 3,474
In the third to fifth years, E-EERF
inclusive (BREEEMF) 13,188 11,524
Beyond the fifth year ELF%E 36,316 37612
57,252 55,915
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31 March 2010
—E-ZF=A=1+—H

24. TRADE PAYABLES, ACCRUALS, OTHER
PAYABLES AND DEPOSITS RECEIVED

The aged analysis below shows the Group's trade

payables, based on goods receipt date and the date

24 BN EZ RN BEFRE - H
b B IR R E WIS
ATAREE A EDRKE SR
e ER B R AR A5 1R 6L B B A 2 R IR

when services are rendered. DHT ©
Group Company
rEH PN
2010 2009 2010 2009
—E-FF —EENF —E-EHF —EENF
HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$" 000
THExT FET FE T FHET
Trade payables: JETE 5 BRK -
Current to M=
180 days 180H 4,001 2,269 - -
Over 180 days Hi@®180H 12,150 11,254 - -
16,151 13,523 - -
Accruals JE T FRIE 4,611 17,720 1,870 1,464
Other payables and  E i FE 1 BR 3K
deposits received M Bk s 38,084 26,387 = -
58,846 57,630 1,870 1,464

Deposits received of HK$10,518,000 (2009:
HK$9,064,000) were included as a non-current

liability. The trade and other payables are non-interest-

bearing and are normally settled on 90-day terms.
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25. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS/LIABILITIES

The movements in deferred tax liabilities and assets

New Century Group Hong Kong Limited $tt 2 £E&EEER AT

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B ¥R R M5t
31 March 2010
—E-ZFE=A=1+—H

25.REHIBEE BE
EERIEABEREENERNZ S0

during the year are as follows: T
Deferred tax liabilities ELEHEEE
Group 2010
S 310 —B-2F
Depreciation
allowance in
excess of related Revaluation
depreciation  of properties Total
HERHE
SZREBHITE MEER wat
HK$' 000 HK$ 000 HK$'000
TET TER THET
At 1 April 2009 RZFEZENFNA—H 3,577 22,316 25,893
Deferred tax charged FRWERA
to the income Hkz
statement during BTN
the year (note 9) (F39) 1,585 15,429 17,014
Gross deferred tax liabilities R-Z—ZF=ZA=+—8
at 31 March 2010 ZELERERBERR 5,162 37,745 42,907
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31 March 2010
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25. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS/LIABILITIES

(continued)
Deferred tax assets

Group
REHE

EERBEEE

2B EEBIEEE B E (F)

2010
—g-BF

Losses available

for offsetting against

future taxable profits

] {4 4K 85 R 2R
FERBURF Z B8
HK$'000
FAExT
At 1 April 2009 RZZEZNAFMUH—H (16,943)
Deferred tax charged to the income FRWHERANNRZ
statement during the year (note 9) EIERIE (B 5E9) 9,198
Gross deferred tax assets RZE—ZEF=A=+—H
at 31 March 2010 ZIRETR I B E AR (7,745)
Deferred tax liabilities RERIEEE
Group 2009
rEE ZZETNF
Depreciation
allowance in
excess of related Revaluation
depreciation of properties Total
nELT®E
SRIEENITE MEER @t
HK$' 000 HK$'000 HK$' 000
FET FHET FET
1 April 2008 R-ZZEZENFOHA—-R 2,142 36,670 38,812
Deferred tax charged/(credited) FRWERA
to the income Mmer,/ (GtA) 2
statement during RIENIE
the year (note 9) (F3E9) 1,435 (14,354) (12,919)
Gross deferred tax liabilities RZEZNFE=RA=1+—H
at 31 March 2009 ZEERIA R ERAR 3,577 22,316 25,893
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25. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS/LIABILITIES
(continued)

Deferred tax assets

Group
RNEE

New Century Group Hong Kong Limited $tt 2 £E&EEER AT

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B ¥5 R R MIGE

31 March 2010

TE-TFE-A=+—H

2B EERIEEE B E (E)

ELEBIEEE
2009
—ETNF
Losses available
for offsetting against

future taxable profits

AJ L 8 R 2Rk

FE R T m M 2 B 18

HK$" 000

FAET

At 1 April 2008 RZZEZNFMWH—H (4,739)

Deferred tax credited to the income FRWmERANTTAZ

statement during the year (note 9) RAETETE (FFEE9) (12,204)
Gross deferred tax assets R-ZEZENF=ZA=+—H

at 31 March 2009 IR IE B E R (16,943)

For presentation purposes, certain deferred tax assets AT MR FKAE TIELE

and liabilities have been offset in the statement of
financial position. The following is an analysis of

the deferred tax balances of the Group for financial

MEBEERABBCD TEE - LA THI
TE B AR A i 2 AR BRI IR 4
BR

reporting purposes:

2010 2009

—E-EF —ETNF

HK$ 000 HK$ 000

FHET T
Net deferred tax assets RERE B SRR R
recognised in the consolidated TR 2 IEIERL A

statement of financial position B EFRE - 11,193
Net deferred tax liabilities REra iR &
recognised in the consolidated R IELEIA

statement of financial position BEFE (35,162) (20,143)

(35,162) (8,950)
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Bt F5 3R R P E
31 March 2010

—E-ZF=A=1+—H
25. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS/LIABILITIES
(continued)

The Group has tax losses arising in Hong Kong
and Indonesia of HK$209,193,990 (2009:
HK$263,015,547) and HK$27,550,578 (2009:
HK$21,792,982), respectively. The Company has
tax losses arising in Hong Kong of HK$162,256,309
(2009: HK$154,399,773). The tax losses in Hong
Kong are available indefinitely for offsetting against
future taxable profits of the companies in which the
losses arose. The tax losses in Indonesia can be carried
forward for a maximum period of ten years. Deferred
tax assets of HK$29,527,349 (2009: HK$28,633,558)
have not been recognised in respect of tax losses
because these tax losses have arisen in companies
that have been loss-making for some time and it is not
considered probable that taxable profit will be available

against which the tax loses can be utilised.

At 31 March 2010, there was no significant
unrecognised deferred tax liability (2009: Nil) for tax
that would be payable on the unremitted earnings of
the Group's subsidiaries as the Group has no liability to

additional tax should such amounts be remitted.
There are no income tax consequences attaching

to the payment of dividends by the Company to its

shareholders.
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2B EEBIEEE B E (F)

REERBEEROEDBIEEIE
#518209,193,9908 L (ZZEZ 1
F : 263,015,5477% 7t) }&27,550,578
BT (ZZEZENF - 21,792,982%
TT) c ARRIMRBRBELE ZMIEEE
7%162,256,309 7T (ZZE L4 ¢
154,399,773 70) - REBEBELEZT
HERAERAAEEREESER
NAIZ RRERBUAN - RENEEAE
ZHIEEBERZAAETF - NEE
WARFZEB BB E#RBELRIA
& 29,527,349 L (ZE T N F ¢
28,633,558/ 1) - A% & IEE B
TREEEE-BEBRZAE B
1R B 71 7] B FE A B RR T vaa ) LA 4K 88 5%
EREEE -
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Z TR BRAE AR B AR FE SRR SE B IR
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—E-ZFE=A=1+—H

26. SHARE CAPITAL 26. R &
Shares B& 13
Group and Company
KEERADH
2010 2009
—E-2F —ETNF
HK$' 000 HK$' 000
THER FET
Authorised: EERA
40,000,000,000 ordinary 40,000,000,000%
shares of HK$0.0025 each SR HE{E0.0025/8 T
(2009: 40,000,000,000 2EBR(ZZEZTNE :
ordinary shares of 40,000,000,0000% & f%
HK$0.0025 each) F{E0.0025/8 0 2 Ti@A%) 100,000 100,000
Issued and fully paid: EBEITREERA
5,765,288,705 ordinary 5,765,288,705%
shares of HK$0.0025 each SR HE{E0.0025/8 T
(2009: 5,765,288,705 ZEBR(ZZEZTNE :
ordinary shares of 5,765,288,705 8% & %
HK$0.0025 each) E{H0.0025/4% 7T 2 L iBAR) 14,414 14,414
In the prior year, pursuant to an ordinary resolution REE BRER-_ZEZTN\EFHLA-A

passed on 2 September 2008, a bonus issue was
made to the shareholders whose names appear on
the register on the record date, 2 September 2008,
representing 5,490,751,148 shares in total, on the
basis of one new share, credited as fully paid, for every

twenty shares held on the record date, resulting in

BB ERAEE - AR ARG
AT N NFNLAZBRIBR
Tz REZEITLAR
5,490,751,148 s 7 - AR E &=
Rtk BHE/RAE - TIRKRMH AT E
BT —IRARY B ERR K

SRS

SN

the issue of 274,537,557 shares of HK$0.0025 each, fn B EF17274,537,5570% B I M

ranking pari passu in all respects with the existing share
capital of the Company. Further details of the bonus

issue were included in the Company's circular dated 8

August 2008.

{H0.0025&8 T 2 &1 -
FHEAARRAERNODEER SR
I o BITAI R ZHE—SFFBE REER

ZEBRDES

ARARHEBMA—ZTZENFENANBZ

[

B -
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26. SHARE CAPITAL (continued) 26.

Shares (continued)

A summary of the transactions during the year with

B A (#&)
Iz (&)

FP - BRAARA BT i

reference to the above movements in the Company's B X SEMMT
issued share capital is as follows:
Share
Number of Issued premium
shares in issue capital account Total
EETRAHE BETRE ROEER CE
HK$' 000 HK$'000 HK$' 000
TET TR TR
At 1 April 2008 RZZEZN\EMA—-A 5,490,751,148 13,728 352,630 366,358
Bonus issue BATHR 274,537,557 686 (686) -
At 31 March 2009, R-BBA$=ZA=+—-RH"
1 April 2009 and “EENFOEA-BR
31 March 2010 —E-ZFZA=Z+—H 5,765,288,705 14,414 351,944 366,358
Share options iR A

Details of the Company’s share option scheme are

included in note 27 to the financial statements.
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27. SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company operates a share option scheme (the

"Scheme”) for the purpose of providing incentives and

rewards to eligible participants who contribute to the

success of the Group’s operations.

Details of the Scheme are as follows:

C)

(b)

Participants

Participants are any directors (including
executive directors, non-executive directors
and independent non-executive directors) of
the Company and employees of the Group
and any advisors (professional or otherwise),
consultants, distributors, contractors, suppliers,
agents, customers, business partners, joint venture
business partners, promoters, service providers
of any member of the Group who the board of
directors of the Company (the “Board”) considers,
in its sole discretion, have contributed to the
Group or any shareholders of the Group (the

“Grantee").

Subscription price
The Subscription price shall be determined by the
Board at its absolute discretion but in any event

shall not be less than the greatest of:

(i) the closing price of the shares of HK$0.0025
each of the Company (the “Shares”) as stated
in the daily quotation sheet issued by The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”) on the date of grant of an

option (the “Date of Grant");

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B F5 R R M5t
31 March 2010
—E-ZFE=A=1+—H

27. R ESTE
ARERE —EERESE (%3
) ZEEZANDAARERS
BERINEHERZAEKRLBELT
&) R B3R

At Bl Z BT

(a)

(b)

S RE
SHEQ[RNRAEMES (B
MITEF  FRTEERBIIF
WITESR) MAKRBEZRBEREA
~rAEFE([EFg) 2ER
REANEE A REEMRRG
FERMZAEEEMKERAZ
R (BREetEE)  &#
A DHE - RERE - HER -
KREBA -BEP EBBH 6E
RiGRMH - BEALRBHER
([HEFEALD -

A IBE
RBEHEFTS2EETE @
PEERUATHESE :

() AARIEREIAEOC.0025% T
2Bt (T 1) B AR 1%
EHEEB(REBE]) EES
BaRXSRMARRAR ([H32
Frl) B BMERT® 2
B
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BA ¥R R M RE

31 March 2010
—E-ZF=A=1+—H

27. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

(b)

(©

(d)

(e)

Subscription price (continued)

(i) the average closing price of the Shares as
stated in the daily quotation sheets issued by
the Stock Exchange for the five business days

immediately preceding the Date of Grant; and

(iii) the nominal value of a Share.

Maximum number of Shares

The maximum number of Shares in respect of
which options may be granted under the Scheme
shall not exceed 10% in nominal amount of
the issued share capital of the Company on the
adoption date of the Scheme (the “Scheme
Mandate Limit"). Options which lapse in
accordance with the terms of this Scheme will
not be counted for the purpose of calculating the

Scheme Mandate Limit.

Maximum number of options granted to
each participant

The maximum number of Shares in respect of
options that may be granted to a specifically
identified single Grantee under this Scheme within
any 12-month period shall not (when aggregated
with any Shares subject to any other share option
scheme(s) of the Company) exceed 1% of the

Shares in issue (the “Individual Limit").

Period of exercise of options

An option may be exercised in a period notified by
the Board to each Grantee at the time of making
an offer, which shall not expire later than 10 years

from the Date of Grant.
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RIBE (E)
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B ¥5 R Rt
31 March 2010
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27. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued) 27. B ER S (E)

(f) Remaining life of the Scheme () Z=tEIZReRFH
SRS RN B BT
NA-+=BRITERNER
BEITHEHREETINRER

amended. ol

The Scheme is valid and effective for a period of
10 years commencing on its adoption date, 23

September 2002, unless otherwise cancelled or

B EE TEEAAEDIRRE
HERRAGIRZEZRER -

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to

dividends or to vote at shareholders’ meetings.

Py EH BT R TTE 2 B AR B

The following share options were outstanding under

the Scheme during the year: =R
2010 2009
ZB-%f% —EENE
Weighted Weighted
average Number average Number
exercise price of options exercise price of options
METHTER BREHA MEFITEE BIES B
HK$ per share '000 HKS per share '000
BRER T BRET T
At 1 April REA—H 0.2667 139,230 0.28 148,800
Lapsed during 1 Apri RZZE\EMA-A
2008 to 8 September EZTNENANE
2008 (date of bonus (B1THRAE)
issue) HELN - - 028 (1,200)
0.2667 139,230 0.28 147,600
Effect of bonus issue Bk vE = = - 7380
Lapsed during RZZZ\ENANE
8 September 2008 (RTARAS 2
(date of bonus issue) “Z-ZFZR
to 31 March 2010 ST-AEBEAN 0.2667 (3,570) 0.2667 (15,750)
At 31 March W=ZR=1+-H 0.2667 135,660 0.2667 139,230
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

v pE RS
31 March 2010
152 -—z-=zH£=A=+-~
27. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued) 27. BBIRESTE (F&)
The exercise prices and exercise periods of the share PRI ERAR  BARITEZBRE 21T
options outstanding as at the end of the reporting EELITEEAMT

period are as follows:

2010
S
Number of options Exercise price Exercise period
BREHE TEE THEH
000 HK$ per share
¥ BRET
135,660 0.2667 27-04-07 to 26-04-12
—EELtFWMA=-t+tHE
—E--FfWmAZ=-+AXH
2009
—ETNF
Number of options Exercise price * Exercise period
EElibes 3 g= ITEE* 171 H3
'000 HK$ per share
T BRET
139,230 0.2667 27-04-07 to 26-04-12
—EELFMA -+ ERZE
—E-—_FMA=-+XAH
*  The exercise prices and the numbers of the relevant * BEARARITEBREZITEREREE
outstanding share options were adjusted as a result ERBITAREL AR - ZERAEZ
of a bonus issue. Further details of these adjustments E-—HFBEREARATARZZEZT)NF
were included in the Company's announcement dated 8 NANBERHZRAE -

September 2008.

There is no vesting period for the outstanding share Y RENEE Y AT B
options granted to employees and directors. I 4 R B HA o
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27. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

The fair value of equity-settled share options granted in
prior years was estimated as at the date of grant, using
the binomial model, taking into account the terms and
conditions upon which the options were granted. The
following table lists the inputs to the model used in
2008:

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B ¥5 R Rt
31 March 2010
—E-ZFE=A=1+—H

27. R 8 (&)

RBEFERD 2 ARESEEBIRE
ZRAFEEDREHBHRER BN
HEEERAKLEEBERDBREZIK
AR AR o TREBIR=FZ)N
FEABEAREAZER

Dividend yield (%) K2 22 (%) 4.000
Expected volatility (%) T8 HA % 08 (%) 39.000
Historical volatility (%) JIE 5282 18 (%) 39.000
Risk-free interest rate (%) 3 Bex A1) 2 (%) 4114
Expected life of options (years) FERR A 2 TEHREE B () 5.000

The expected life of the options is based on the
historical data over the past three years and is not
necessarily indicative of the exercise patterns that may
occur. The expected volatility reflects the assumption
that the historical volatility is indicative of future trends,

which may also not necessarily be the actual outcome.

No other feature of the options granted was

incorporated into the measurement of fair value.

At the end of the reporting period, the Company had
135,660,000 share options outstanding under the
Scheme which represented approximately 2.35% of
the Company's shares in issue as at that date. The
exercise in full of the outstanding share options would,
under the present capital structure of the Company,
result in the issue of an additional 135,660,000
ordinary shares of the Company together with the
increase in the share capital of HK$339,150 and share
premium of HK$41,770,000 (before issue expenses).

BREZIERHFHRIREBE=F2
FEEBIEEE - X~ —ER A
W2 ATEER - T8 HIR I8 [ bR FE 528
BRAIRRARRBE 2 RE - BRLR
ERER-

FFEAFEERYEN RERLBA
P2 AT E A 451 o

RmEBR - BRIBEZE - NAA
A 135,660,00017 f A% #E i AR 1T (8 -
HWEARRAEBZEBEITRMAD
2.35% c EARAIIRARAEHET -
BHITERARITECBREGER
%1788 5N 35,660,0000% 4~ A &) i@
A% - 38 [F) 38 10 AR AN339,1507% 7T K&
1934 {E41,770,0005% 7T (R HBREFT
) °
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BAF5 3R R
31 March 2010
154 -—=z-=z#=5=+-~8
28. RESERVES 28. f# &
(a) Group (a) =& H

The amounts of the Group's reserves and the AEBZRHEFEELRAFTFER
movements therein for the current and prior years BAEFEZFEEZLERIEHRE
are presented in the consolidated statement of FS54RESSE e EmEEW
changes in equity on pages 54 and 55 of the FKE5 -

financial statements.

(b) Company (b) &2
Share Share Proposed
premium option Contributed  Retained final

account  reserve  surplus profits  dividend Total

BE
khaEk BREGE RUBRH RERN RHRS aif
Notes  HK§'000 ~ HKF'O00 ~ HKS'000 ~ HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
it AT TErT  TEr  TEn  TER  TER

At 1 April 2008 RZZE\FEA-A 352,630 6,800 162,587 80,796 - 602813
Total comprehensive AFE2E

income for the year hais 10 - - - (12,47) - (1247
Bonus issue BTHR 26 (686) - - - - (686)
Share option lapsed RERKH

during the year L ERIE - (743) - 743 - -
Proposed 2009 “ZTNERE

final dividend REKE il - - - (20179) 20179 -

At31 March2009and  R-EEAF=F=1-H

at 1 April 2009 RRZZZNEMA-A 351,944 6,057 162587 49,113 20,179 589,880
Total comprehensive TEEZE

income for the year WHEE 10 - - - 84537 - 84537
Final 2009 dividend BERZZEENE

declared RHRE - - - - (20179)  (20,179)
Interim 2010 dividend ~ —Z—-FFHREHRESE 1 - - - (11,53 - (11,53
Proposed 2010 “T-TEEE

final dividend REMRE il - - - (23061) 23,061 =
Share option lapsed RERKM

during the year 2R - (124) - 124 - -
At 31 March 2010 R-Z-FE=f=+-H 351,944 5933 162587 99,182 23061 642,707
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28. RESERVES (continued)

The contributed surplus of the Group arose from:

(i) the Group’s reorganisation on 13 June 1990,
representing the excess of the nominal value of
the Company’s shares issued under the Group's
reorganisation, and the nominal value of the
shares and share premium of the former holding

company acquired by the Group;

(i a transfer from the share premium account
pursuant to the capital restructuring on 2 June
1999.

The contributed surplus of the Company arose from:

(i) the reorganisation mentioned in note 28(b)(i)
above, representing the excess of the nominal
value of the Company's shares issued under the
Group's reorganisation and the then consolidated

net asset value of the acquired subsidiaries; and

(i a transfer from the share premium account
pursuant to the capital restructuring on 2 June
1999.

Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as
amended), the contributed surplus of the Company is
distributable to shareholders in certain circumstances

prescribed by Section 54 thereof.

The share option reserve comprises the fair value of
share options granted but are yet to be exercised, as
further explained in the accounting policy for share-
based payment transactions in note 2.4 to the financial
statements. The amount will either be transferred to
the share premium account when the related options
are exercised, or be transferred to retained profits

should the related options expire or lapse.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B F5 R R M5t
31 March 2010
—E-ZFE=A=1+—H

28. & (&)

AREBZEHBBKRIKE

() AEER—-AAZEFARA+T=A
ETZEHR  BARFREARSE
EEMHEPEITROEEBBEANE
B AT i i 2 AT R AR A R ) E B
B R B 2 &85

(i) RE—NNANFRNA-RETZ
AR E T B B D i (B B P
'ljj o

RARZEHRBRKE

() ExHraE8Mb)()utz EAR
RNABRIBEANEEEAHRTEITR
DEEBEBFKENE R R E R
ZEABEEFEZHY R

(iy RE—HNANFARA-—BETZ
N SO = W G i = e S
ﬁ o

BRFE-—NN\—FBREQRFE(ER]
) - FEZIEDESAGRML 2 A T1E
T NRBZBBEERA DK T
& o

BREREEESCREMBFITE
BB AT EE FERMBE®R
KW E24UNBO N R2R 5 2 &5
R — IREE - E BB ETT
E - BRARESEERERMDEE
R - SR B 8 B AR U S R R
ABBRRBEREBREEREBERN -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BA ¥R R M RE

31 March 2010
—E-ZF=A=1+—H

29.

30.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

At the end of the reporting period, the Company had
outstanding guarantees of HK$210,340,000 (2009:
HK$210,340,000) given to banks to secure general
credit facilities granted to certain subsidiaries of the
Group. Credit facilities in an aggregate amount of
HK$90,547,000 (2009: HK$79,571,000) had been
utilised by these subsidiaries in respect of these

guarantees as at the end of the reporting period.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

Details of the Group's bank and margin facilities and
the mortgage loan advanced from a fellow subsidiary,
which are secured by the assets of the Group, are
included in notes 13, 14, 15, 19 and 21, respectively,

to the financial statements.
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31. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS

(a) As lessor

The Group leases its cruise ships (note 13) and
investment properties (note 14) under operating
lease arrangements, with leases negotiated for

terms ranging from one year to six years.

At 31 March 2010 and 2009, the Group had total
future minimum lease receivables under non-
cancellable operating leases with its charters and

tenants falling due as follows:

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B F5 R R M5t
31 March 2010
—E-ZFE=A=1+—H

3.EEHERH

() AEBEASH
REEBRBELEHERHHEER
Wim (M5E13) RILE W (M &
14) -MARZHEANTF—F2
AN

R ZEFR_ZFTTNEFE=A
=+—HB AEEREEEAA
MMBPEIS 2 N HEHEEHE
AR TIFERNER 2 KRR &K
HERIBEEFENT :

Group

AEE
2010 2009
—E2-2F —ETNF
HK$'000 HK$" 000
FET TET
Within one year —FNR 41,864 39,560

In the second to fifth years, EEZFERF

inclusive (BHEEEMF) 28,957 35,512
70,821 75,072
Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, NEEHREL  R-E—TF
on 27 April 2010 and 15 June 2010, the Group BE-++B K- fﬂz/\ﬁ]

entered into a provisional agreement and an
option agreement, respectively, with independent
third parties for the disposal of investment
properties with tenancy. They are expected to be
completed on or before 30 August 2010 and 7
September 2010, respectively. At 31 March 2010,
these properties’ total future minimum lease
receivables amounted to HK$40,446,000. Further
details are disclosed in note 36 to the financial

statements.

THA G AEED %'JE@%I%E
FHET SR B ek SR A
NEBROTALEREYE - 7(5
FHESFEEHB S HIN =

—FENA=Z+AR-Z %
FNALARZAER - RF
—EE=A=+—0 ®EN%

JEW 2 KRR EHSBRE A
40,446,000/ 7T - B RF#E — L5
FE SRR FEI6NHEE -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BA ¥R R M RE

31 March 2010
—E-ZF=A=1+—H

31. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS
(continued)
(b) As lessee

The Group leases certain of its commercial
properties under operating lease arrangements,
with leases negotiated for terms ranging from one

to three years.

At 31 March 2010 and 2009, the Group had
total future minimum lease payments under non-

cancellable operating leases falling due as follows:

3. EEHE LB (&)

(b) AEBA & 65

A BRI R B R AR
ETFHAYE  MAmZAESEN
B

R-FB-—ZTER_TTNF=A
=t—8 AEEREA B
REMEARTIFHAZNZ
RSB S RIBEBROT -

Group
AEE
2010 2009
—E2-Z2F —ZTTNEF
HK$'000 HK$ 000
FET FHET
Within one year —F R 201 183
In the second to fifth EZEZERF
years, inclusive (RIEBEWT) = 143
201 326
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32. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
Save as disclosed elsewhere in these financial
statements, the Group had the following material

transactions with related parties during the year:

(a) Related party transactions in connection with the

Group's operations:

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B ¥5 R Rt
31 March 2010
—E-ZFE=A=1+—H
NREBRAEALIXRS
BRAMEHmREMEOSHHEEN
FRAREBERGEEATZIEARS
N

(@) BAREXGEB 2 BREAL
R

2010 2009
—E-EF ZETNF
Notes HK$' 000 HK$" 000
ik FTERT FHET
Rental income received ERERMEBAR 2
from a fellow subsidiary el A 0) 240 240
Interest expenses paid to ENRRNBATZ
a fellow subsidiary FMEREZ (i) 2,903 2,968
Notes: &t

(i) Rental income was charged based on a tenancy
agreement entered between the Group and
a fellow subsidiary at a monthly rental rate of
HK$20,000.

(i) Interest expenses were paid for the mortgage
loan advanced by a fellow subsidiary at an annual
interest rate of 5% (2009: ranging from 4.75% to
5%) for the year.

(b) Other related party transactions

Personal guarantee given by a related party

In the prior year, one of the Group’s bank loans
was secured by an unconditional and irrevocable
personal guarantee executed by Mr. Ng (Huang)
Cheow Leng to the extent of US$9,000,000
(equivalent to HK$70,200,000). Mr. Ng
(Huang) Cheow Leng is one of the discretionary
beneficiaries and the settlor of a discretionary trust
which wholly owns Huang Group (BVI) Limited,

the Company's ultimate holding company.

() MW ARAEEERRNE
RABRIZ 2 HE BHEWE - & H
7H & /20,000 7T °

(i FEFZTIBER KM E QR A
ZIEBERMZS  AFEZF
FEEBSE(ZTTNGF 4752
ZE5[E) o

(b) EMhBBEEALRS

BEREAN IR AN ER
REF REBHEFP —IHIRT
ERUNEEBEEEmMERZE
& &R OB 2 8 A ERE
B % #9,000,000% 7t (HHZE R
70,200,000/ 7T) #EF - FHE
BAEER2EREADAIZK
442 B /A B)Huang Group (BVI)
Limitedz — B & #F st 2 Hd —
UEEImARKTA -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BA ¥R R M RE

31 March 2010
—E-ZF=A=1+—H

32. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

©

(d)

Waiver from a related company on long
outstanding trade payables

Due to foreign currency controls in Indonesia, the
Group, through a related company, purchased
daily consumables and made payments to
vendors abroad in the past few years. Since some
of the daily consumables were of defective items
or not delivered on time, the Group made claims
against the vendors of HK$1,242,000 in the prior
year. A waiver was received from that related
company and the relevant amount was credited to
the prior year income statement. No such waiver

was noted for the current year.

Balance with a related company

As disclosed in the consolidated statement of
financial position, the Group had an outstanding
balance due from a related company of
HK$970,000 (2009: an amount due to a related
company of HK$1,004,000) which arose from the
purchase of daily consumables on behalf of the
Group. This balance is unsecured, interest-free
and has no fixed terms of repayment. Particulars
of the amount due from a related company,
disclosed pursuant to Section 161B of the Hong

Kong Companies Ordinance, are as follows:
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EpEAEEEEREHEERM
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32. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(d) Balance with a related company (continued)

©)

Name of the related company BEATER
Huang & Co (Singapore) Pte. Ltd.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B ¥5 R Rt
31 March 2010
—E-ZFE=A=1+—H
NR.EREALTXRS (&)
(d) EBBEEERT &% (E)

Maximum

amount
31 March outstanding 31 March
2010  during the year 2009
—E-2F FRREM —ZETNF
=ZA=t-H EE¢¥E =—A=t—H
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TERT TET
970 970 (1,004)

The related company is beneficially owned by
certain close family members of certain directors
(Mr. Wilson Ng, Ms. Sio lon Kuan, Mr. Ng Wee
Keat, Ms. Ng Siew Lang, Linda and Ms. Lilian Ng)
of the Company.

ZEBEBERARIIBAARFETE
= (FERELE BEHELL
BEGEE  BEBEBEKTIRERN
BRI ZETERBRBERH
Ao

Loans advanced from minority shareholders of the (e) NEBWEB AT 2 PEIEEAN
Group's subsidiaries Z B

2010 2009

—E-EF —EFNF

Notes HK$' 000 HK$" 000

izt T#ET FHETT

First loan HEEX 0 55,713 43,984

Second loan IREE (i) 131,823 131,823

Third loan EF=ZFZEXN (iii) 51,060 46,920

238,596 222,727
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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31 March 2010
—E-ZF=A=1+—H

32. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(e) Loans advanced from minority shareholders of the

Group's subsidiaries (continued)

Notes:

0}

@i

With respect to the first loan, pursuant to the
shareholders' agreement entered into between the
Group and a minority shareholder of a subsidiary,
the minority shareholder agreed not to demand
repayment of the loan until the subsidiary has the
ability to do so and prior consent was obtained
from the Group. In addition, if the paid up share
capital of the subsidiary and the shareholders’
loans shall be insufficient to meet the operating
expenses, the minority shareholder and the Group
agree to either apply for allotment of shares from
the subsidiary or provide a shareholders’ loan in
proportion to their respective shareholding in the
subsidiary. The minority shareholder is a fellow
subsidiary of the Company. The loan is unsecured

and interest-free.

With respect to the second loan, pursuant to a
shareholders' agreement entered into between the
Group and a minority shareholder of a subsidiary,
the shareholder shall not demand repayment of
this loan unless a resolution in writing signed by
all shareholders of the Group for the demand of
repayment has been duly passed at a general
meeting. In the opinion of the directors, after
confirming with the minority shareholder, there
was no intention for the minority shareholder to
demand the Group to repay this loan in the next
twelve months from the end of the reporting
period. Accordingly, the second loan was classified
as a non-current liability. The minority shareholder
is a fellow subsidiary of the Company. The loan is

unsecured and interest-free.

ANNUAL REPORT 2010 #3&

REBEALRS (HK)

(e) AEEWB AR ZVHARREN

ZER ()
Hi3t -
() HEFERMS  RESEER

)

—FHIf B AR Z —B D BARET
Tz BRGE  ZB L HEEERRA
BEEM AR AL E R E
SAEBEZELERABRTFENR
EEER o Uho - 3 B RIS
RNEE R B A R BCR B R
TRAEMEEMS  PEIR
RALEREZREES NS
R EH B L ) FR SE A RART A
AR IR AR E K - &
HZLOBBRRBART ZEFH
BRAE - ERABEMELE -

.

HREBERME - RIBEAEH R
—RMEB ATz —&DBBRET
2R RIEAEEEZE
BREZERBR ETRER
ERBREREAE LIEES - TR
PR G ERERBZBER - &
FRA - KEZBDHBRER
HRIE > B PBERREEENR
AN E R E R R R 2R 12
A NEEZIAER - At - %
REBRDIDBRIERBAE -
ZARLBBRRRARRE ZFE R
BT - ERRERARES



New Century Group Hong Kong Limited $tt 2B &8GR AT

32. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(e) Loans advanced from minority shareholders of the
Group's subsidiaries (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(iii) With respect to the third loan, the minority
shareholders of a subsidiary, who granted the
third loan to the Group’s subsidiary include (1)
a director of the Company; (2) a close family
member of the Company's directors; and (3) a
company beneficially owned by the Company’s
directors and their close family members. In the
opinion of the directors, after confirming with the
minority shareholders, there was no intention for
the minority shareholders to demand the Group for
repayment of this loan in the next twelve months
from the end of the reporting period. Accordingly,
the third loan was classified as a non-current

liability and is unsecured and interest-free.

(f) The mortgage loan advanced from a fellow
subsidiary bears interest at 4.25% per annum for
the first year, 4.75% per annum for the second
year, and 0.5% per annum above the commercial
financing rate quoted by United Overseas Bank
Limited for the third year and thereafter. The
mortgage loan is secured by a legal mortgage on
the Group's investment property with a carrying
amount of HK$246,975,000 as at the end of the

reporting period.

(g) The compensation of key management personnel

of the Company has been disclosed in note 8(a).

The related party transactions in respect of items (a)
to (f) above also constitute connected transactions
or continuing connected transactions as defined in

Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B F5 R R M5t
31 March 2010
—E-ZFE=A=1+—H
N.EREALTXRS (&)
(e) XEBWE QT 2 PEPFEA(
ZEZE)
HiaF - (4E)

(i) BRI AEENMBRAAFE=EE
Rz — BB AR Z DEERER
BEMWMARABZ —REE (2)
ARBEEZERKEE - 2G)
ARAREELRBREZERRE
BHmBEAZRA %%j <
HMZE L BRRELERIL - &%
S0 Hx%ﬂiE/\ZS%IEQ
HE AR AR K218 A AE
EBZEENR - At ZF=FE

R BERIERDAE - LRME

KHRRRE -

#

N RARERMBRAABRMNZEBER
RE—FIRFBA425E &7
8 RE_FRFLITSEFE
FIE  MRE=ZFRHEBRAE
ﬁﬁﬁﬁ/&ﬁﬁm&ﬁﬁ%%ﬂﬁﬂ
EINFSOSEFAERE - &R
BERUBREHRZEETBER
246,975,000 T 2 A EEIKE
Y EEERBIEE IR -

(9 ARAFNEBEEBAEZHEDR
B 75 R % M 38 (a) AR o

i@ EOBZEREALRZZITE

PR E TR B + WA BT SR e 2 Bl &
RPAFFERBERS -

ANNUAL REPORT 2010 #3&

163



164

New Century Group Hong Kong Limited $ritt @B &8GR AT

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BA ¥R R M RE
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33. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of

financial instruments as at the end of the reporting

period are as follows:

2010
—E-ZF
Financial assets

TREE

Financial assets at
fair value through

profit or loss

3. FEAHE s 2T A
RIMEHKR  SHESHTAEYEEME
W

Group
rEE

Available-
for-sale

Loans and financial

- held for trading receivables assets Total
AEEER
ZEMEE EXR UHHE
-KEEE RBURER SREE BE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$' 000 HK$'000
TET THERT TET THET
Available-for-sale investments AHEEZRE - - 780 780
Trade receivables (note 18) EUE SR (HizE18) - 33,822 - 33,822
Deposits and other receivables B RHE M E KRR
(note 18) (FFzE18) - 8,167 - 8,167
Equity investments at fair BRBRBRATEE
value through profit or loss FIBR 2 IR #E IR & 422,229 - - 422229
Due from a related company e BRE A RIFRIA - 970 - 970
Bank deposits BITFH - 99,974 - 99,974
Cash and cash equivalents ReRkBESEEY - 148,505 - 148,505
422,229 291,438 780 714,447
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BA 5 R R B s
31 March 2010
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33. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 33. R ERES 2SR T A (E)
(continued)

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of RBEHR SESRMITAZERAEE
financial instruments as at the end of the reporting mT (&)

period are as follows: (continued)

2010 Group
—EB-EF rEH
Financial liabilities

sReE

Financial liabilities

at amortised cost

DR AT E

ZEeRBE

HK$' 000

FET

Trade payables (note 24) FET B 5 BR 3K (Bt 5524) 16,151
Other payables and deposits received EAth BT BR R R B iR &

(note 24) (MF7E24) 38,084
Interest-bearing bank loans STEIRITER 110,547
Mortgage loan advanced from RAMERRRNZ

a fellow subsidiary BBERX 57,252
Loans advanced from minority shareholders ~ NEBEIME Q72 L 28R

of the Group's subsidiaries @z BER 238,596

460,630
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33. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY
(continued)

B.REHNEAD 2B T AR (&)

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of RBESR SERMITAZERE
financial instruments as at the end of the reporting mT ()
period are as follows: (continued)
2009 Group
—TThF AEHE
Financial assets
EREE
Financial assets at Available-
fair value through for-sale
profit or loss  Loans and financial
— held for trading  receivables assets Total
FERERE
RFEEDR
ZEREE Bk AHEE
—-BIEEE RBURER SREE FGEEE]
HK$' 000 HK$'000 HK$' 000 HK$ 000
THET THET TET FHET
Available-for-sale investments AHEEZRE - - 780 780
Trade receivables (note 18) FEUE ZERFR (MizE18) - 46,979 - 46,979
Deposits and other receivables B R E AR WER R
(note 18) (BFzx18) - 2,960 - 2,960
Equity investments at fair BERBREATEE
value through profit or loss PR R E 207,395 - - 207,395
Pledged time deposit BB THER - 17,550 - 17,550
Cash and cash equivalents ReRkBEEEEY - 276,039 - 276,039
207395 343,528 780 551,703
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B F5 R Rt
31 March 2010
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33. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY BEEHES 2B T A (&)
(continued)
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of RBEHR SEMITAZEAEE
financial instruments as at the end of the reporting mT (&)

period are as follows: (continued)

2009 Group
—ETAF R
Financial liabilities

TREBE

Financial liabilities

at amortised cost

VAR SH A AN ET &

e o= =N

HK$" 000

FA&T

Trade payables (note 24) JET B 5 B (Pt 5E24) 13,523
Other payables and deposits received EAth BT BR R R B R &

(note 24) (MI7E24) 26,387
Interest-bearing bank loans STEHRITER 97,121
Mortgage loan advanced from RAMMERRRNZ

a fellow subsidiary W E R 55,915
Loans advanced from minority AEEMB AR 2 LHBARR

shareholders of the Group's subsidiaries sz BER 222,727
Due to a related company JE 1~ B8 33 A R RKIR 1,004

416,677
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31 March 2010
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33. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

33.1BEHE s z2Em T A (&)

(continued)

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of RBEHR SESRMITAZERAEE
financial instruments as at the end of the reporting m (&)
period are as follows: (continued)
Financial assets Company
EcWMEE VNN
2010 2009
“Z2-%F —ZZNF
Available- Available-
for-sale for-sale
Loans and  financial Loans and  financial
receivables assets Total receivables assets Total
EXR AHEE ERR  AHEE
ERES <SREE BE EREX SREE ok
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000
TET TR TER TER TER TER
Available-for-sale investments [ 85 21 E - 780 780 - 780 780
Due from subsidiaries L C=NGIE e 618,331 - 618331 519,198 - 519,198
Deposits and other receivables %% & £t FE UL B 5%

(note 18) ) 9 - 96 112 - 112
Bank deposits RITER 99,974 - 99,974 - - -
Cash and cash equivalents BekR2EED 114,704 - 114704 197244 - 197244

833,105 780 833,885 716,554 780 717334
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33. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY
(continued)
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of
financial instruments as at the end of the reporting

period are as follows: (continued)

Financial liabilities

TRAE

Due to subsidiaries

JE A B 8 2~ B 3R IR

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B F5 R R M5t
31 March 2010
—E-ZFE=A=1+—H

3.1 W8 s z2Em T A (&)

RBEEHRR SRR TAZEREE

wmr (&)
Company
ZX A F]
2010 2009
—E—ZF —ETNF
Financial Financial
liabilities at liabilities at

amortised cost amortised cost

LB SE R A DAHESHACR
TR AEZ
TRAE TERE
HK$’000 HK$' 000
FTET TAET
176,115 112,587

34. FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY

The Group uses the following hierarchy for determining

and disclosing the fair value of financial instruments:

Level 1: fair values measured based on quoted prices
(unadjusted) in active markets for identical

assets or liabilities

Level 2: fair values measured based on valuation
techniques for which all inputs which have a
significant effect on the recorded fair value

are observable, either directly or indirectly

Level 3: fair values measured based on valuation
techniques for which all inputs which have a
significant effect on the recorded fair value
are not based on observable market data

(unobservable inputs)

34, AEEERE X
REFBUTIBAEENHEESRT
BEMAFEE

FIE: BHEBRMS LEREENRE
ERE CMRERAE) 5
HEAFEE

F2E 0 RIBMGEERM (B EAF
BEEEAFENSHBA
YA EEZAREEE
F)FFENRFEE

FIE - RBEERM (HIEQF

BEEEAFENSHBA
2 HWIFFAIERET S
BExiE(THAEBEEHAZ
B ENRFEE
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B ¥R R M RE

31 March 2010
—E-ZF=A=1+—H

34. FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY (continued)

35.

As at 31 March 2010, the financial instruments
measured at fair value held by the Group comprised of
equity investments at fair value through profit or loss of

HK$422,229,000 and was classified as Level 1.

During the year ended 31 March 2010, there was no
transfer of fair value measurements between Level 1

and Level 2 and no transfer into or out of Level 3.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES

The Group's principal financial instruments comprise
interest-bearing bank loans, a mortgage loan advanced
from a fellow subsidiary, bank deposits and cash
and short term deposits. The main purpose of these
financial instruments is to raise finance for the Group's
operations. The Group has various other financial
assets and liabilities such as trade receivables and

trade payables, which arise directly from its operations.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial
instruments are interest rate risk, foreign currency risk,
credit risk, liquidity risk and equity price risk. The board
reviews and agrees policies for managing each of these

risks and they are summarised below.

Interest rate risk

The Group's exposure to the risk of changes in market
interest rates relates primarily to the Group's long term

debt obligations with floating interest rates.

The Group does not hedge interest rate fluctuations.
However, management closely monitors interest rate
exposure and will consider hedging significant interest

rate exposure should the need arise.
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35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (continued)

Interest rate risk (continued)

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a
reasonably possible change in interest rates, with all
other variables held constant, of the Group's profit/loss
after tax and retained profits (through the impact on

floating rate borrowings).

2010 =
Hong Kong dollar BT

Hong Kong dollar BT
Singapore dollar AN T
Singapore dollar #r ¥ ot
2009 —EENF
Hong Kong dollar B TT

Hong Kong dollar BT
Singapore dollar A3 7T
Singapore dollar ¥ AN TT
United States dollar ETT
United States dollar =

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

35.

B F5 R Rt
31 March 2010
—E-ZFE=A=1+—H

Bt 7% b S TR B AR R BUR ()
F == 2 B (48)
THRERHEMESRENE - MHIX
AR IRABES BT « AEE
BrFiigm A BB KRR ) (B Z
BRI R EE IR 8)) Hk B A UK
D
Group
rEE
Increase/
(decrease) in
Increase/ profit/loss after
(decrease) in tax and retained
basis points retained profits
BREL&ER
HE BERREREF
EH(FRE) #hn CGR)
HK$' 000
FET
15 (138)
(15) 138
15 (71)
(15) 71
15 100
(15) (100)
15 69
(15) (69)
15 26
(15) (26)
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35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBIJECTIVES

AND POLICIES (continued)
Foreign currency risk

The Group has transactional currency exposures. These
exposures arise from sales or purchases by operating
units in currencies other than the units’ functional
currencies. Most of the Group’s revenue and cost are
denominated in Singapore dollars, Indonesia rupiah
and Hong Kong dollars. The Group currently does
not have a foreign currency hedging policy. However,
management closely monitors foreign exchange
exposure and will consider hedging significant foreign

currency exposure should the need arise.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at the
end of the reporting period to a reasonably possible
change in the Singapore dollar exchange rate, with all
other variables held constant, of the Group's profit/loss
after tax and retained profits (due to changes in the

fair value of monetary assets and liabilities).
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

AND POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currency risk (continued)

2010

If Hong Kong dollar weakens
against the Singapore dollar
If Hong Kong dollar strengthens

against the Singapore dollar
2009

If Hong Kong dollar weakens
against the Singapore dollar
If Hong Kong dollar strengthens

against the Singapore dollar

—E-TF

fisd 78 7T 5%
TRz (B

fis 7 7T 5%
AN ST IHE

—EETNF

w8 T

N TRz B
fis 78 T 5,

¥ AN T IHE

ShEE = B (4K

Increase/
(decrease) in
foreign

currency rate

HhEEEE R
FE(RE)

%

10

(10)

(10)

B ¥5 R R MIGE
31 March 2010
TE-TFE-A=+—H

5. ERREREEERBEE (&)

Group

FEME

Increase/
(decrease) in
profit/loss after
tax and
retained
profits
MBIERF
EBER

RE = F
#in, CEL)
HK$’ 000
T#ET

7,344

(7,344)

(187)

187
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35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

AND POLICIES (continued)
Credit risk

The Group provided services only to recognised and
creditworthy third parties and related parties. It is
the Group's policy that all customers who wish to
trade on credit terms are subject to credit verification
procedures. In addition, receivable balances are
monitored on an ongoing basis and the Group's

exposure to bad debts is not significant.

With respect to credit risk arising from the other
financial assets of the Group which comprise cash and
cash equivalents, available-for-sale financial assets,
an amount due from a related company and other
receivables, the Group’s exposure to credit risk arises
from default of the counterparty, with a maximum
exposure equal to the carrying amounts of these

instruments.

Concentrations of credit risk are managed by
customer/counterparty, by geographical region and
by industry sector. There is no significant credit risk as
the tenants have paid security deposits as collateral to
the Group for the lease of cruise ships and investment

properties.
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35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

AND POLICIES (continued)
Credit risk (continued)

Further quantitative data in respect of the Group's
exposure to credit risk arising from trade and other
receivables are disclosed in note 18 to the financial

statements.

Liquidity risk

The Group monitors its risk to a shortage of funds
using a recurring liquidity planning tool. This tool
considers the maturity of both its financial instruments
and financial assets (e.g., trade receivables) and

projected cash flows from operations.

The Group's objective is to maintain a balance
between continuity of funding and flexibility through
the use of bank loans. The Group's policy is that not
more than 50% of the borrowings should mature in
any 12-month period. 32% of the Group's debts would
mature in less than one year at 31 March 2010 (2009:
20%) based on the carrying value of borrowings

reflected in the financial statements.
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35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (continued)
Liquidity risk (continued)
The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities

as at the end of the reporting period, based on the

contractual undiscounted payments, was as follows:

5. BRBEREEEREE (&)

RBESERE (&)
RIEE T HIRITIRERSR

AT #E A

SERBERRzcRABEZHA ¢

Group
rEE
2010
—E-%F
3to
Less than  less than 1to5 Over
On demand 3 months 12 months years 5 years Total
=f@A
PR EHR
EEREE =R +=f@B -ZIZF HBBIF L
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$' 000
TET TET TERT TR TR TR
Interest-bearing bank loans FERITERK - 42,906 8,697 52,485 13,379 117,467
Mortgage loan advanced EESIEPNS AN
from a fellow subsidiary ZIRBER - 1,640 4918 26232 42616 75406
Loans advanced from AEENERR
minority shareholders of ZLERRBN
the Group's subsidiaries ZEX - - - 238,596 - 238,596
Trade payables FERTE S8R0 12,150 4,001 - - - 16,151
Other payables and H it AR R
deposits received Blizd 17,818 8,638 1,110 10,518 - 38,084
29,968 57,185 14,725 327,831 55,995 485,704
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B ¥R R Mt

31 March 2010

—E-ZF=A=1+—H

5. ERMREREEERBEE (&)

Liquidity risk (continued) REE SRS (&)
Group
REE
2009
—ZENF
310
Less than  less than 1t05 Over
On demand 3 months 12 months years 5 years Total
=f@A
EEXRER =fEA +ZEA —Z1F ®BBLE ok
HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000  HK$'000
AT AT FHT FHT TET TET
Interest-bearing bank loans ATRBRITERN 17729 2,760 8564 51918 25521 106,492
Mortgage loan advanced EESi-PNGEN
from a fellow subsidiary ZIEBER - 1,548 4639 24,641 45,633 76,461
Loans advanced from AEEMERLA
minority shareholders of Z D ERE BN
the Group's subsidiaries ZER - - - 222,727 - 22727
Trade payables e E S BR 11,254 2,269 - - - 13,523
Other payables and Hitt AT R
deposits received Bl 10,710 4,308 2,305 9,064 - 26,387
Due to a related company [EBEREIRIE 1,004 - - - - 1,004
40697 10,885 15508 308350 71,154 446,594

At the end of the reporting period, the Company's
amounts due to subsidiaries of HK$176,115,000
(2009: HK$112,587,000) and guarantees given
to banks in connection with facilities granted
to subsidiaries of HK$210,340,000 (20009:

HK$210,340,000) are repayable on demand.

RMEBHR ARa 2 EMAHBEA
A FKIE176,115,0008 L (ZZEZ A,
£ :112,587,0008 70) KB T M
BARMBEMmMES TIRITHOHER
210,340,000 7t (ZZFF NLF -
210,340,000/ 7T ) EfE ZKEIE -
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35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBIJECTIVES

AND POLICIES (continued)

Equity price risk

Equity price risk is the risk that the fair values of
equity securities decrease as a result of changes in
the levels of equity indices and the value of individual
securities. The Group is exposed to equity price risk
arising from individual equity investments classified as
equity investments at fair value through profit or loss
(note 19) as at 31 March 2010. The Group’s listed
investments are listed on the stock exchange of Hong
Kong and Singapore and are valued at quoted market

prices at the end of the reporting period.

The market equity indices for the following stock
exchange, at the close of business of the nearest
trading day in the year to the end of the reporting
period, and their respective highest and lowest points

during the year were as follows:

35.

31 March

2010

—E-Zf

=A=+—H

Hong Kong - Hang Seng Index BE - BAEEH 21,239
Singapore — Straits Times Index N — B IR E RIEH 2,887

B %5 L B R B AR R UK (M0

g R

PSR (B AR [ B 2 45 AR M 48 BUK 7 R (|
MEFEEEDMERNERESF R
FETH®MER R-_T—FF=H
=+t—8 AEEFMEHOKREER
ERE D BREBBRRZ A TFEE
SRRz BRI A M E Bl T AR E
(FffaE19) « REBEM EHRERER
BRI B SRS LS - X
MR ERRIZAHHEFTE -

REERRNRIRZ S HEERRES
RE - TIFBSFRGPAERERE
UERERNAEE BN &S R&IEB N
T~

High/low 31 March High/low
2010 2009 2009
—E-2f C—TTHhFE CZTTHE
&/ =R=t+-8 /&
23,100/ 13,576 26,387/
13,412 10,676
2,947/ 1,700 3,270/
1,690 1,455
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35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (continued)

Equity price risk (continued)

New Century Group Hong Kong Limited $tt 2B &8GR AT

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to

every 10% change in the fair value of the equity

investments, with all other variables held constant,

based on their carrying amounts at the end of the

reporting period.

2010

Investments listed in:

Hong Kong — Held-for-trading

Singapore — Held-for-trading

2009

Investments listed in:

Hong Kong — Held-for-trading

Carrying amount

—z-2%

REEMR

EB-HEEE

MIE-—FERE

RELMR
BERE-RBERE

of equity

investment

BERE

HEREE

HK$"000

TR

316,716

105,513

207,395

B ¥5 R R MIGE
31 March 2010

—E-ZFE=A=1+—H
5. HEEREEEERKE (&)

B HE (B 4% = B (4

RN RS R REE - Y
A& 2 A FEES I 10%5 8

ZHREE -

Group
rEE

Increase/
(decrease)

in fair value
NEEE
#n,

(R 2)

%

10
(10)

(10)

(10)

ANNUAL REPORT 2010 #3&

Increase/
(decrease) in
profit/loss after tax
and retained profits
wAER

RRE A

#im,/ (BA)
HK$'000

TER

26,446
(26,446)

8,810
(8,810)

(17,317)
17317
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B ¥R R M RE

31 March 2010
—E-ZF=A=1+—H

35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

AND POLICIES (continued)
Capital management

The primary objectives of the Group’s capital
management are to safeguard the Group's ability to
continue as a going concern and to maintain healthy
capital ratios in order to support its business and

maximise shareholders’ value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes
adjustments to it in light of changes in economic
conditions. To maintain or adjust the capital structure,
the Group may adjust the dividend payment to
shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue
new shares. The Group is not subject to any externally
imposed capital requirements. No changes were made
in the objectives, policies or processes for managing
capital during the years ended 31 March 2010 and 31
March 2009.
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5. Bt i E b B 3E B F R BUR (#)

BEXER

AEEEARER 2 T ZRRERERAN
EEBRNBFBBELEEBZIRANE
ERERBRRE AR RUFEER
Wik REE -

AREERBEEGRGT2EICEEER
MBI IMARE - BERFHFEERN
R AEERHEHERRZIKE
MRREEEARNEBEITHR - AEHE
TEINERAEA S IR E R EZSRKFAIR -
REBEE-_ZT—FTF=A=+—HKZ
TENF=ZA=T—BHLFEER A
HEEEANBR  BRLRELE
HIREF -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (continued)

Capital management (continued)

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which
is total indebtedness divided by the equity attributable
to owners of the Company. The Group's policy is to
maintain the gearing ratio between 10% and 50%.
Total indebtedness includes interest-bearing bank loans
and a loan from a fellow subsidiary. The gearing ratios

as at the end of the reporting periods were as follows:

B F5 R Rt
31 March 2010
—E-ZFE=A=1+—H

5. ERMREREEERBEE (&)

EXREE (&)
AREBNBRBELLERERER &
B RBBEFRANRBEE AR
s - ARBZBERSHREL R
HEFFP10%ZE50% © RIEKEEIET R
RITERERARMBRARRNZE
HeMMERRZBEL AT :

Group
rEE
2010 2009
—E-TF —ZTTAF
HK$'000 HK$" 000
FET FHET
Interest-bearing bank loans STBIRITER 110,547 97,121
Mortgage loan advanced from SESEEN-EPNGIE A D)

a fellow subsidiary 2B E R 57,252 55,915
Total indebtedness BIETS 167,799 153,036
Equity attributable to owners EN/NSIE I

of the Company FEAG 1 A 1,153,199 982,619
Gearing ratio BELL X 15% 16%
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BA ¥R R M RE

31 March 2010
—E-ZF=A=1+—H

36. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

(@)

(®)

On 27 April 2010, the Group entered into a
provisional agreement with an independent third
party for the disposal of an investment property
with tenancy at Shop Nos. 1A, 1B, 1C, 1F, 1G and
TH of Retail Portions, G/F.,, Commercial Podium,
New Mandarin Plaza, No. 14 Science Museum
Road, Tsim Sha Tsui East, Kowloon, Hong Kong at
a consideration of HK$115,000,000. The disposal
is expected to be completed on or before 30
August 2010. Further details of the disposal were
included in the Company's announcement dated

27 April 2010.

On 15 June 2010, the Group entered into an
option agreement with an independent third
party pursuant to which the independent third
party was granted an option to purchase an
investment property of the Group with tenancy
at AIG Building, 22 Martin Road, Singapore
239058 at a consideration of Singapore dollars
("SG$") 46,500,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$259,470,000). The option was exercised by
the nominee of the purchaser on 29 June 2010
and this disposal is expected to be completed
on or before 7 September 2010. Further details
of the disposal were included in the Company's
circular dated 8 July 2010.
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36. REHEREER

(@ »®m

(®)

T —TFEN/-++H K
R Ry VAl
7% © BAI%115,000,0007% 7T 2 X
ELAGEEN T REEMLREBE BN
%%»m%%ﬂ%ﬁ%m%%ﬁ
ERLEGHTEERSEIA
B:1C: 1F - IGRIHSR & 2 %
B - EAEEFERBHERN
TENA=ZTBHZAR
Ko BRAHEEENE - SIS
HRARTR =T —ZTFNA
“tHtEBRBRIAE -

—_=F—

RZE—FTFXA+THEHE K
CEEEBUE=EIT L EERE
Wik B AEBERZ S

%l%i%&ﬁ%%%'ﬂﬁ
R {E46,500,000%F hn # 7T ([
7t 1) (%)% $2259,470,000/7% 7T )
EEHNFABEAREELCR
AIG Building, 22 Martin Road,
Singapore 2390582 % & W) 3£ ©
BEAZRBAEESR_Z—ZF
NAZTNBITHEEERERERH
TEFEERER - —FF 1
AtBskzaizxk - BFALESE
HHE —FTHFBHRERRAIRC
—TFLANBEL ZBEK
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38.

New Century Group Hong Kong Limited $tt 2B &8GR AT

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B F5 R R M5t

31 March 2010

—E-ZFE=A=1+—H

COMPARATIVE AMOUNTS 37. L REH

As further explained in note 2.2 to the financial INARBI TS TR RMTE2. 2095 - AR
statements, due to the adoption of new and revised FEEBHEETMEETNE BT K
HKFRSs during the current year, the presentation FREYER] - BT AR B 7S 3R 3R B 200 18
of certain items and balances in the financial B AR D) HETT THIER - AR E
statements have been revised to comply with the FERK Btk - AT HEAFEMNT
new requirements. Accordingly, certain comparative WMRTF B HH O RBEFEIEEH
amounts have been reclassified and restated to DEMER °

conform with the current year's presentation.

APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 38. B # R T 2 e
The financial statements were approved and authorised TR ERER _ZE—ZFFA+/~H
for issue by the board of directors on 16 July 2010. BEEREIENRIRETE -

ANNUAL REPORT 2010 #3&
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FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
AFUBME

The following table summarises the published consolidated
results and the consolidated assets, liabilities and minority
interests of the Group for the last five financial years, as
extracted from the published audited consolidated financial

statements of the Group and reclassified as appropriate.

TEBEBEAAKTEE B NEEEZGEEY
BHE  BHIAEEBERLERBRFED
R ZFERBREAEE AERDH
PRtz WEIRMBEROE -

RESULTS E ¥
Year ended 31 March
BZE=HA=1+—-HLEE
2010 2009 2008 2007 2006
“E-BF —TTHhE —TT\F —_TTLFE —TTAE
HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$ 000
THER TET FAET FHET FHET
REVENUE 'ON 329,440 219,148 303,482 247329 252,490
PROFIT/(LOSS) FOR THE YEAR AR T#EHE A
ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS Bl AFEE
OF THE COMPANY wBE(BB) 191,613 (69,704) 176,198 124,773 202,338
ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND MINORITY INTERESTS EE -BEBERAVEREES
At 31 March
R=A=+-—H
2010 2009 2008 2007 2006
—2-%F —TTNF ZTT)\F ZBTLE ZFTERE
HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$ 000  HK$'000  HK$ 000
TER FAET FAT FHET FHET
TOTAL ASSETS EEAH 1,657,428 1,443,078 1,643,426 1,332,174 1,042,729
TOTAL LIABILITIES BEATE (514,195) (458,287) (548,483) (591,727) (425,598)
MINORITY INTERESTS DERRER 9,966 (2,172)  (22,163) 771 (7,478)
1,153,199 982,619 1,072,780 741,218 609,653
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PARTICULARS OF PROPERTIES
LUE 31
31 March 2010
—z-z#=A=+-8 185
Investment properties BREYE

Percentage
Description Use Nature of interest

B 2B EX EZASL

3rd and 4th Floors, Industrial Medium term leasehold 100
Nan Fung Industrial Building, T REITEE

15-17 Chong Yip Street,

Kwun Tong, Kowloon,

Hong Kong

EARNEBEAIEE 15175

METEKNEIER4E

7th Floor, Industrial Medium term leasehold 100
Nan Fung Industrial Building, TI% hHIEE

15-17 Chong Yip Street,

Kwun Tong, Kowloon,

Hong Kong

BAENEEEAIEE15-175

HETXRKRNETE

Shop No. 23A, Commercial Medium term leasehold 100
Ground Floor (Level 2), [ HREIFE S

Kwai Chung Plaza,

7-11 Kwai Foo Road,

Kwai Chung, New Territories,

Hong Kong

BENMAZBETET- 115

EORESHT (B = F) 23A 8

Unit Nos. 3810 and 3811, Commercial Medium term leasehold 100
38th Floor, West Tower, HES FRHEIFEE

Shun Tak Centre,

168-200 Connaught Road Central,

Hong Kong

&P IR T 5B 168-2005%

EEPLOARE3SE

381038115k B L
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PARTICULARS OF PROPERTIES

YIZEFTE
31 March 2010
—E-ZF=A=1+—H

Investment properties (continued)

Description

B

Shop Nos. 1A, 1B, 1C, 1

F1G

and 1H of Retail Portions,

G/F., Commercial Podium,

New Mandarin Plaza,

No. 14 Science Museum Road,

Tsim Sha Tsui East, Kowloon,

Hong Kong"
BEENBERDERE

FEEE14R XEFLE G T

ZEERIA 1B~ 1C+ 1F* 1GMK

THSR $8°

Ground Floor including its cockloft,

Chi Fu Building,

No. 301 Portland Street,
Mongkok, Kowloon,
Hong Kong

& LRERE AIABE 301 5%
EEEM N (BREEEZ)

Ground Floor and Mezzanine Floor,

Kam Sha Mansion,

No. 212 Cheung Sha Wan Road,

Shamshuipo, Kowloon,
Hong Kong
BEAENERKERDE
LB T REE

Shop 5, Ground Floor,
Dundas Square,

No. 43H Dundas Street,
Mongkok, Kowloon,
Hong Kong
BEENEEAEIT IS
BT+ ESH T 55 8
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Use

Az

Commercial

GES

Commercial

GES

Commercial

GES

Commercial

GES

REWE ()

Nature
=R

Medium term leasehold

FHHEE

Medium term leasehold

hHEIEE

Medium term leasehold

FHHEE

Medium term leasehold

FHEE

Percentage
of interest
EaEo

100

100

100

100
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Investment properties (continued)

Description Use
B3R Ar
Shop 3, Ground Floor, Commercial
Dundas Square, (e
No 43H Dundas Street,

Mongkok, Kowloon,

Hong Kong

BBNERABZIT T H43HE

BT T E S H T 355 58

AIG Building, Commercial
22 Martin Road, (EES

Singapore 239058™

AW

Martin Road 22%%
AIG Building
239058™

On 27 April 2010, the Group signed a provisional agreement
with an independent third party for the disposal of the
investment property with tenancy. The disposal is expected to
be completed on or before 30 August 2010. Further details of
the disposal were included in the Company’s announcement
dated 27 April 2010.

On 15 June 2010, the Group entered into an option
agreement with an independent third party pursuant to
which the independent third party was granted an option to
purchase the investment property with tenancy. The option
was exercised on 29 June 2010 and the disposal is expected
to be completed on or before 7 September 2010. Further
details of the disposal were included in the Company’s
circular dated 8 July 2010.

PARTICULARS OF PROPERTIES

CE
31 March 2010
—E-ZFE=A=1+—H

BEWHE (&)
Percentage
Nature of interest
R =B
Medium term leasehold 100
FEITE S
Freehold 60
KA ZEHE

ZEFEMA-++EH  NEHEE
EEZREHHE - AEELHTRAD
EREYE - FRALEEEBAHPEN -F
—ZTFNA=+HRZATEX - BRALE
FIENE - FFBHRARRNR T —F
FUAZ+EHBERZASE -

g_

R-ZT-ZFRATER » AEBEEL
FZEHFEEBRERE BRI ARED
MZBBILE=ERTRER  TJAEMR
HWHABELREYR - EEREOR T —
TEXRNA-THBRTERGEEESERE
MR —_ZE—FFNALAHZATK -
FHHEFENE - FPFBIENARFRN
TE-TELANBELZBEK -
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PARTICULARS OF PROPERTIES
MR

31 March 2010

—E-ZF=A=1+—H

Deposit paid to acquire property under
development

Percentage of
Description Use completion

R Rz EREDLL

"Plaza Damas” Commercial N/A
Tower 3A of Crescent Square, S 3 FA
Sri Hartarnas, Kuala Lumpur,

Malaysia

B DR

L3

Sri Hartarnas

Crescent Square 3AFE

[Plaza Damas ]

In prior years, the Group claimed for the refund of the
deposit of RM20,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$47,400,000) from the developer of this property. The

case is still in progress on the date of this report.

ANNUAL REPORT 2010 #3&

RBERRPYUEMIANTE

Gross floor/  Percentage
Nature site area of interest

X BE/#HEEE REEIL

Medium 97,456 sq. ft. 100
term FHR
leasehold
HHIAE

RBEFE  AXEBCRZVEZERERS
R 2220,000,00055 ¥ (49 %5 7247,400,000
BIL)ZIRERK - RARESHE 6
FAITEHEITH ©
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